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Dear Shareholders:

Over the last three years, we have reinvented Gymboree. From the way we source our product to the way we message our brands to
our customers, everything is new. We have implemented a simple strategy that focuses every department in the Company on clear,
quantifiable goals in one of three categories: acquiring new custemers, helding on to our existing customers fonger, or reducing
eXpenses.

As a result, since fiscal 2004, sales have grown over $330 million or 56%, operating margins have increased from 4% to 14.1%,
net income from continuing operations has grown 3.7 times, and earnings per share is almost 4 times greater than in 2004.

Every department in the Company continues to contribute to our top and/or bottom line growth. Our designers and merchants
are creating product that customers just have to have, while our production teams, factories and agents are working tirelessly to
produce the best quality kids’ clothes in the mall at better and betier prices every year. Our real estate and construction teams have
opened more stores in the last three years than in the previous six years combined. Qur field associates are the most passicnate and
committed peopie I've ever met and thrive on providing remarkabte customer service. Qur marketing team has reinvented itself and
now drives customers in the doors in new ways.

By the end of fiscal 2008, our iT team will have repiaced virtually every piece of technology in the Company with almost no
disruption to the business. In addition, we nearly doubled the units flowing through our Distribution Center in the last few years,
added several new concepts and expanded the size of the facility. Lastly, we recently opened our world-leading Gymboree Play &
Music classes in South Africa and Portugal, establishing the Gymboree brand in 32 countries around the world,

As happy as we are with the last three years, we are just as ambitious about the future. We not anly aim to reach every mom in
America through our multi-brand strategy, but we want to reach moms around the world with our leading Play & Music classes and
e-commerce.

Fiscal 2008 promises to be a year of new challenges. Most experts are predicting the U.S. economy will experience a recession
driven in part by higher fuet costs, unprecedented levels of home foreciosures and the related liquidity crisis in the financial sector.
While these macroeconomic conditions are reason for caution, our management team’s focus continues to be on areas that we can
control. Over the past several years, our approach has been to take a cautious view on the retail envirenment and focus the team on
initiatives that can drive bottom-line growth through either revenue gains or cost savings.

The philosophy for 2008 is no different. The good news is we continue to see opportunities for growth in each of our brands for
this year and beyond. .

For the Gymboree brand, the opportunities include continuing to grow Boy and Newborn market share, acquiring new customers
through direct marketing, and integrating the Play & Music and retail customer base. We are also investing in customer relationship
management (CRM) technology to establish a more robust loyalty program to strengthen the relationship with our customers.

We opened our first Gymboree Qutlet in August 2005. in less than three years, Gymboree Qutlet stores afready produce the highest
average store sales and the highest four-wall contribution of all store concepts. With an additional 60 stores yet to open, and gross
margin expansion opportunities, Gymboree Qutlet offers significant growth for the future,

Janie and Jack has becoeme the ultimate place to shop for luxury European-inspired baby clothes and will support earnings growth
for a number of years. Our average store sales growth has been strong year after year since we opened the doors in 2002 and we
expect this trend to continue as brand awareness increases. We have roughly 120 stores still to open before reaching our geal of 200
stores. This store base expansion wilt support higher gross margins in 2008 and beyond as our purchasing power increases.

We also see opportunities within the chitdran’s apparel market, particularly in the “kids' fashion at a price” space. We believe we
can capitalize on this apportunity in a unique way with our newly introduced Crazy 8 brand.

Crazy 8 is targeting moms who want cool, wholesome children's clothing at a price. Our strategy is to impress moms with an
elevated shopping experience, great service, a beautiful store, entertainment for her kids, quality gift packaging, and then surprise
her with impressive Crazy 8 values like $6 graphic tees and $14 denim. We are targeting customers who choose to spend less on
kids' clothes regardless of their income. Crazy 8 also offers an expanded size range compared to Gymboree and lanie and Jack,
allowing us to reach the older customer that Gymboree is graduating. We opened our first sfore at the beginning of August 2007
and currently operate 16 Crazy 8 stores.

While the general outlook for reiail in 2008 may be viewed as challenging by some, the breadth of strategies outlined above gives
us cause for optimism. Our management team has demonstrated an ability to perform in both robust and soft econemic periods.
With a focused and diligent team, we look forward to sharing our progress with you in 2008 and beyond.

Sincerely,

.

Matthew K. McCauley
Chairman of the Board and CEQ
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FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

The discussion in this Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forward-looking statements within the
meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Inaccurate assumptions and known and
unknown risks and uncertainties can affect the accuracy of forward-looking statements, and our actual results
could differ materially from resulis that may be anticipated by such forward-looking statements. Certain risks
and uncertainties that could cause our actual results to differ significantly from management’s expectations are
described in Item 1A, “Risk Factors.” That section, along with other sections of this Annual Report, describes
some, but not all, of the factors that could cause actual results to differ significantly from management’s
expectations. When used in this document, the words “believes,” “expects,” “estimates,” or “anticipates” and
similar expressions are intended to identify certain of these forward-looking statements. In addition, any
statements that refer 1o expectations, projections or other characterizations of future events or circumsiances are
forward-looking statements. The cautionary statements made in this document should be read as being
applicable to all forward-looking statements wherever they appear in this document. Readers are cautioned not
to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements, which are based on information available as of the
date of this report. We-do not intend to revise any forward-looking statements in order to reflect events or
circumstances that may subsequently arise.
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ITEM 1. BUSINESS

The Gymboree Corporation is a specialty retailer operating stores selling high-quality apparel and
accessories for children under the GYMBOREE®, GYMBOREE OUTLET, JANIE AND JACK® and Crazy 8™
brands, as well as play programs for children under the GYMBOREE PLAY & MUSIC® brand. The Company
operates retail stores in the United States and Canada, primarily in regional shopping malls and in selected
suburban and urban locations. All references to “we,” “our,” ““us,” and the “Company” in this Annual Report
mean The Gymboree Corporation and its subsidiaries.

-

LT

GENERAL

As of February 2, 2008, the Company conducted its business through five primary divisions: Gymboree,
Gymboree Outlet, Janie and Jack, Crazy 8, and Gymboree Play & Music.

Gymboree: Gymboree stpres offer high-quality, fashionable, child-appropriate apparel and accessories
characterized by bright colors, patterns and whimsical graphics, complex embellishments, comfort, functionality,
and durability for children sizes newborn through 12. As of February 2, 2008, we operated 597 Gymboree stores,
including 565 stores in the United States, 30) stores in Canada and 2 stores in Puerto Rico, as well as an online
store al www. gymboree.com,

Gymboree Qutlet: Gymboree QOutlet stores provide high-quality children’s apparel and accessories in the
same size ranges as traditional Gymboree stores but at outlet prices. The majority of our Gymboree Qutlet
product is developed and manufactured exclusively for the Gymboree Outlet stores. As of February 2, 2008, we
operated 82 Gymboree Outlet stores in the United States.

Janie and Jack: Janie and Jack shops are highly differentiated from Gymboree stores. Janie and Jack shops
offer distinctive, finely crafted clothing and accessories for boys and girls sizes newborn through 8. Lush fabrics,
a hand-made quality and details such as hand-embroidery, smocking and vintage prints are utilized to create
classic’looks. Shops have an old mercantile boutique style with special details such as wainscoting and distressed
wooden armoires. As of February 2, 2008, we operated 93 Janie and Jack shops in the United States, as well as
an online shop at www janieandjack.com.




Crazy 8: Crazy 8 stores provide wholesome age-appropriate fashion, at price points approximately 30%
lower than Gymboree. Through merchandise design, product presentation, store environment, customer service
and packaging, Crazy 8 stores reflect an upscale store experience at mass-market prices. Crazy 8 apparel is
offered in sizes newborn through 14, and addresses a broader demographic customer base than Gymboree. The
prodizct assortment is a balanced offering of boy and girl product. As of February 2, 2008, we operated 14 Crazy
8 stores in the United States, as well as an online store at www.crazy8.com.

Gymboree Play & Music. Gymboree Play & Music offers children ages newborn to 5 years the opportunity
to explore, learn and play in an innovative parent-child program. Gymboree Play & Music offers an array of
classes developed by early childhood experts, as well as birthday parties and developmental toys, books and
musiz. As of February 2, 2008, Gymboree Play & Music programs included three Company-operated play
cenlers in California and 556 franchisee-operated play centers, of which approximately 48% are located in the
Unite:d States, and the remaining 52% are located in 29 other countries: Argentina, Aus_tralia, Canada, Chile,
China, Celombia, Costa Rica, Ecuador, El Salvador, France, Hong Kong, Indonesia, Ireland, Japan, Malaysia,
Mexico, Panama, Peru, Philippines, Portugal, Singapore, South Africa, South Korea, Spain, Switzerland, Taiwan,
Thai and, Turkey and the United Kingdom.

Gymboree was organized in October 1979 as a California corporation and re-incorporated as a Delaware
corporation in June 1992,

RETAIL STORES

As of February 2, 2008, the Company operated a total of 786 retail stores, including 754 stores in the United
States (565 Gymboree stores, 82 Gymboree Outlet stores, 93 Janie and Jack shops, and 14 Crazy 8 stores}, 30
Gymboree stores in Canada and 2 Gymboree stores in Puerto Rico. The Company also operates three online
stores at www. gymboree.com, www. janieandiack.com, and www.crazy8.com.

In 2007, the Company opened 95 stores, including 24 Gymboree stores, 40 Gymboree Outlet stores, 13
Janie and Jack shops, 14 Crazy 8 stores in the United States, 2 Gymboree stores in Canada and 2 Gymboree
stores in Puerto Rico. The Company alseo relocated or remodeled 52 Gymboree stores and closed 6 Gymboree
stores and one Janie and Jack shop. During 2008, the Company plans to open approximately 100 new stores,
including 20 Gymboree stores, 40 Gymboree Outlet stores, 20 Janie and Jack shops, and 20 Crazy 8 stores. The
Company also plans to remodel, relocate or expand approximately 20 Gymboree and Janie and Jack stores.

The Gymboree online store at www. gymboree.com offers the entire Gymboree product offering for children
between the sizes of newborn through 12. The site also offers online registration for Gymboree Play & Music
classzs at selected U.S. locations. The Janie and Jack online store at www. janieandjack.com offers the entire
Janie and Jack product offering for children sizes newborn through 8. The Crazy 8 online store at
www.crazy8.com offers the entire Crazy 8 product offering for children sizes newborn through 14. The Company
fully integrates its online stores and retail stores in determining pricing, product assortment and promotional
strategies. The Company also has a “Save the Sale” policy, whereby retail stores order merchandise for
customers from the online stores. In addition, customers are allowed to return merchandise purchased online at
traditional retail stores and vice versa.

SUPPLIERS

The majority of our apparel is manufactured to our specifications by approximately 120 independent
manufacturers in Asia (primarily China, Thailand, Indonesia and Vietnam), as well as in the United States,
Central America, the Middle East, and South America. The Company purchases all products in U.S. dollars. One
buying agent manages over 90% of our inventory purchases. We have no long-term contracts with suppliers and
typically transact business on an order-by-order basis. All of our factories underge annual audits for social
accountability by an independent third party. In addition, all products undergoe a quality audit performed by
independent third parties.




SEASONALITY AND COMPETITION

The Company’s operations are seasonal in nature, with sales from our retail operations peaking during the
fourth quarter, primarily during the holiday season in November and December. During fiscal 2007, 2006 and
2003, the fourth quarter accounted for approximately 30% of our net sales from retail operations.

Our Gymboree, Janie and Jack, and Crazy 8 brands compete on a national level with BabyGap and GapKids
{divisions of The Gap, Inc.), and certain leading department stores operating in malls, outlet centers or street
locations, as well as certain discount retail chains such as Old Navy (a division of The Gap, Inc.), The Children’s
Place, Wal-Mart and Target. Qur Gymboree, Janie and Jack, and Crazy 8 brands also compete with a wide
variety of local and regional specialty stores, with certain other retail chains, and with children’s retailers that sell
their products by mail order, over the Internet or through outlet malls. The principal factors of competition for
retail sales are product design, product quality, brand image, customer service and pricing. Our goal is to provide
our customers with high-quality apparel with an excellent price/value relationship. We design and produce our
apparel exclusively for sale at our retail and online stores.

TRADEMARKS AND SERVICE MARKS

In the United States, the Company is the owner of the trademarks and service marks “GYMBOREE,”
“JANIE AND JACK,” “CRAZY 8,” and “GYMBOREE PLAY & MUSIC,” and the trademarks “GYMBO,” and
“GYMBUCKS."” These marks, other than “CRAZY 8,” and certain other of our marks are registered in the
United States Patent and Trademark Office. The mark “GYMBOREE?” is also registered, or is the subject of
pending applications, in approximately 79 foreign countries, Each federal registration is renewable indefinitely if
the mark is still in use at the time of renewal. Qur rights in the “GYMBOREE,” “JANIE AND JACK,” and
“CRAZY 8" marks and other marks are a significant part of our business. Accordingly, we intend to maintain the
marks and the related registrations. We are not aware of any material claims of infringement or other material
challenges to our right to use the “GYMBOREE,” “JANIE AND JACK,” and “CRAZY 8" marks in the United
States,

The Company uses a number of other trademarks, certain of which have been registered with the United
States Patent and Trademark Office and in certain foreign countries. We believe that our registered and
common-law trademarks have significant value and that some of our trademarks are instrumental to our ability to
both market our products and create and sustain demand for our products.

TEAM MEMBERS

As of February 2, 2008, the Company had approximately 10,400 full-time and part-time employees or 4,700
full-time equivalents. In addition, a significant number of seasonal employees are hired during each holiday
selling season. None of the Company’s employees are represented by a labor union.

SEGMENT AND INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Financial information for the Company’s two segments, retail stores and Gymboree Play & Music, and for
its international subsidiary for each of the three fiscal years ended February 2, 2008, February 3, 2007, and
Janvary 28, 2006, is contained in Note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

Less than 5% of the Company’s revenues were derived from outside the United States in fiscal 2007, 2006,
and 2005, and less than 2% of the Company’s long-lived assets were located outside the United States in fiscal
2007, 2006 and 2005.
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AVAILABLE INFORMATION

The Company makes available on its website at www.gymboree.com, under “Our Company—Financial
Resources & SEC filings,” free of charge, its annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q,
current reports on Form 8-K, and amendments to such documents as soon as reasonably practicable after the
Company electronically files or furnishes such materials to the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission. The
Company also makes available under “Our Company—Corporate Governance,” its code of ethics as well as
other documents and materials relating to corporate governance.

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The following table sets forth information regarding our executive officers as of March 27, 2008:

Matthew K, McCauley .. . .. 35  Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board

Blair W. Lambert ......... 50 Chief Operating Officer and Chief Financial Officer

KipM. Garcia ........... 57  President

Marina Armstrong ........ 45 Senior Vice President, Stores, Human Resources, Play
& Music, and Secretary

Lynda G. Gustafson ....... 43 Vice President, Corporate Controller

Jeffrey P. Harris .......... 45  Vice President, Finance

Matthew K. McCauley has served as our Chief Executive Officer since January 2006 and Chairman of the
Board since July 2006. Mr. McCauley joined The Gymboree Corporation in July 2001 as Director of Allocation
and ‘was named Vice President of Planning and Allocation in 2003, Senior Vice President and General Manager
in February 2005, President in June 2005, Chief Executive Officer in January 2006, and Chairman of the Board
in July 2006. Mr. McCauley has been on our Board of Directors since October 2005. Prior to joining The
Gymboree Corporation, Mr, McCauley served in a variety of positions at The Gap, Inc., a clothing retatler,
including Planning Manager from 2000 to 2001 and Manager of Business Solutions in 2001.

Blair W. Lambert has served as our Chief Operating Officer and Chief Financial Officer since January 2005,
and has been on our Board of Directors since 2003. In August 2003, Mr. Lambert joined luminations.com, Inc.,
a candle and home decorating retailer, as the Chief Financial Officer. He was named to the [luminations.com,
Inc. Board of Directors in October 2003, Illurninations.com, Inc. filed for bankruptey protection on January 9,
2004.. Mr. Lambert has been a vineyard owner since October 2001 and, prior to becoming an officer of
Illuminations.com, was a private consultant for specialty retail companies. Mr. Lambert served as the Chief
Financial Officer of Bebe Stores, Inc., a clothing retailer, from June 1996 through October 2001, From 1988 to
1996, Mr. Lambert was employed by Esprit de Corp., a wholesaler and retailer of junior and children’s apparel,
footwear and accessories, most recently serving as Corporate Vice President of Finance. Mr. Lambert is a
Cert:fied Public Accountant.

Kip M. Garcia joined The Gymboree Corporation in May 2004 as Senior Vice President of
Merchandising-—Kids and was named President in January 2006. Prior to joining The Gymboree Corporation,
Mr. Garcia served as Senior Vice President for Gap Kids, a division of The Gap Inc., a children’s clothing
retailer, from April 2002 to February 2003 and Senior Vice President for DFS Merchandising Ltd., a travel retail
company, from February 1992 to February 2002.

Marina Armstrong has served as our Senior Vice President, Stores, Homan Resources, and Play & Music
since January 2006, and Secretary since December 2004. Ms. Armstrong joined The Gymboree Corporation in
May 1997 as a District Manager and became a Human Resources Staffing Manager at the corporate office in
199¢%. Later that year she was promoted to Director, Recruiting and Staffing. Ms. Armstrong was named Vice
President, Human Resources in 1999 and Senior Vice President, Stores, Human Resources and Loss Prevention
in February 2005. Ms. Armstrong was named Assistant Secretary in March 2002 and Secretary in December
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2004. Prior to joining The Gymboree Corporation, Ms. Armstrong held several human resources and store
operations positions with other retailers including Saks Fifth Avenue, Robinsons-May and The Bon Marche.

Lynda G. Gustafson has served as our Vice President, Corporate Controller since February 2005.
Ms. Gustafson joined The Gymboree Corporation in August 2001 as the Corporate Controller and was promoted
to Vice President, Corporate Controller in February 2005. Ms. Gustafson was a business consultant for various
companies from September 2000 to July 2001. From November 1993 to August 2000, Ms. Gustafson was at US
Home & Garden, Inc., and was the Vice President, Finance and Principal Accounting Officer when she departed.
Prior to that time, she spent five years in public accounting. Ms. Gustafson is a Certified Public Accountant.

Jeffrey P. Harris joined the Gymboree Corporation in July 2005 as Vice President, Finance. In 2004,
Mr. Harris served as Vice President of Finance for CBS MarketWatch, a leading multimedia source of financial
news and information, until its sale to Dow Jones in 2005, From 2001 to 2004, he was employed at Lucasfilm in
the capacity of Corporate Controller. Prior to that time, Mr. Harris worked in the Consumer Products division of
The Walt Disney Company, an entertainment company, as Controller and Director of Finance for its Art and
Collectibles division. He also spent over seven years working in various finance and audit roles for the Tribune
Company based in Chicago, Illinois. Mr. Harris is a Certified Public Accountant.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

We may not be able to continue our current level of sales and earnings growth, which could cause the market
price for our common stock to decline.

During the past three years, we realized substantial growth in both sales and earnings. Many factors have
historically affected, and will continue to affect, our rate of growth and performance. We expect that future
increases in net sales and net income will be dependent on our ability, among other factors, to expand our three
newer growth concepts, Janie and Jack, Gymboree Outlet and Crazy 8; to continue to reduce product costs while
maintaining high-quality standards; to generate more sales to existing customers in the core Gymboree division
through appropriate size expansions, growth of the Boy department business and increased newborn product
assortment; and to attract new customers through strategies such as direct mail campaigns and cross-brand
marketing. Other factors that could impact our sales and earnings growth are discussed below in this section.
There can be no assurance that we will be able to grow our sales or continue the earnings performance that we
have recently experienced. In addition, labor costs are currently increasing in countries where our products are
manufactured. Increased labor costs coupled with increasing costs of fuel and the devaluation of the United
States dollar may impact our ability to reduce product costs. Additionally, any decline in our future growth or our
rate of growth in sales or earnings could have a material adverse effect on the market price of our common stock.

Our results may be adversely affected by our failure to anticipate and respond 1o changes in fashion trends and
consumer preferences in a timely manner.

Our sales and profitability depend upon the continued demand by customers for our apparel and accessories.
We believe that our success depends in large part upon our ability to anticipate, gauge and respond in a timely
manner to changing consumer demands and fashion trends and upon the appeal of our products, There can be no
assurance that the demand for our apparel or accessories will not decline or that we will be able to anticipate,
gauge and respond to changes in fashion trends. In addition, since much of our inventory is sourced from vendors
located outside the United States, we usnally must order merchandise, and enter into contracts for the purchase
and manufacture of such merchandise, up to nine months in advance of the applicable selling season and
frequently before trends are known. A decline in demand for our apparel and accessories or a misjudgment of
fashion trends could, among other things, lead to lower sales, excess inventories and higher markdowns, each of
which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and operating results.
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Competition and the strength of our competitors may impair our ability to maintain and grow our sales and
adversely affect our operating results.

The apparel segment of the specialty retail industry s highly competitive, and we may not be able to
compete successfully in the future. The principal factors of competition for retail sales are product design,
product quality, brand image, customer service and pricing. Qur Gymboree, Janie and Jack and Crazy 8 brands
compete on a national leve] with BabyGap and GapKids (divisions of The Gap, Inc.), and certain leading
depzrtment stores operating in malls, outlet centers or street locations, as well as certain discount retail chains
such as Old Navy (a division of The Gap, Inc.}, The Children’s Place, Wal-Mart and Target. Our Gymboree,
Janic and Jack and Crazy 8 brands also compete with a wide variety of local and regional specialty stores, with
certain other retail chains, and with children’s retailers that sell their products by mail order, online or through
outlet malls. Many of these competitors are larger than us and have substantially greater financial, marketing and
other resources. Increased competition may reduce sales and gross margins, increase operating expenses and
decrzase profit margins.

We may not be able to operate successfully if we lose key personnel, are unable to hire qualified additional
personnel, or experience turnover of our management team.

Our continued success is largely dependent on the individual efforts and abilities of our senior management
tearr: and certain other key personnel and on our ability to retain current management and to attract and retain
qualified key personnel in the future. The loss of certain key employees or our inability to continue to attract and
retain other qualified key employees could have a material adverse effect on our growth, operations and financial
posirion,

Changes in economic conditions that impact consumer spending could harm our business.

QOur financial performance is sensitive to changes in overall economic conditions that impact consumer
spending, particularly discretionary spending. Economic conditions affecting disposable consumer income such
as the current conditions in the housing and home mortgage markets and recessionary environment, employment
levels, consumer debt fevels, business conditions, interest rates, and tax rates could reduce consumer spending or
caus: consumers to shift their spending to other products. A general reduction in the level of discretionary
spending or shifts in consumer discretionary spending to other types of products could have a material adverse
effect on our growth, sales and profitability.

Our new concepts and businesses require a substantial commitment of resources and are not certain of ultimate
SHCEC2SS.

Qur ongoing efforts to develop, launch and grow new divisions, businesses and brands require significant
capital expenditures and management attention. Our commitment of management resources and capital to a new
concept means that those resources and capital are unavailabie for our other activities and operations.

Our decision to launch a new business is based on our assessment that a significant opportunity exists in the
marketplace. Our ability to launch a new business successfully depends in part on our ability to appropriately
identify, develop and effectively execute our strategies and initiatives. Failure to effectively identify, develop and
execute our strategies and initiatives may lead to increased costs and could have a material adverse effect on our
operating results. We anticipate losses in the Crazy 8 division in fiscal 2008. These losses may depress the share
price of our stock.

We have opened new businesses in the past that were ultimately unsuccessful such as the Janeville division,
which we opened in fiscal 2004 and closed in fiscal 2006, There can be no assurance that new business concepts
we open in the future will be successful, and our incurrence of expenses in the launch of new business concepts
that do not ultimately succeed could have a material adverse effect on our financial position.
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Our business may be harmed by additional United States regulation of foreign trade or delays caused by
additional United States customs requirements.

Our business is subject to the risk that the United States may adopt additional regulations relating to
imported apparel products, including quotas, duties, taxes and other charges or restrictions on imported apparel.
We cannot predict whether additional United States quotas, duties, taxes or other charges or restrictions will be
imposed upon the importation of our products in the future, or what effect any such actions would have on our
business, financial position and results of operations, If the United States government imposes any such charges
or restrictions, our supply of products could be disrupted and their cost could substantially increase, either of
which could have a material adverse effect on our operating results. Unforeseen delays in customs clearance of
any goods could have a material adverse effect on our ability to deliver complete shipments to our stores in a
timely manner, which in turn could have a material adverse effect on our business and operating results.

7

Because we purchase our products internationally, our business is sensitive to risks associated with international
business.

Our products are currently manufactured to our specifications by independent factories located primarily in =
Asia, Central America, the Middle East, and South America. As a result, our business is subject to the risks i 9
generally associated with doing business abroad, such as foreign governmental regulations, currency fluctuations, :-‘i
adverse conditions such as epidemics, natural disasters, wars, acts of terrorism, social or political unrest, disruptions :J_,_,
or delays in transportation or customs clearance, local business practices and changes in economic conditions in @
countries in which our suppliers are located. For example, we have incurred late deliveries in United States ports b=

due 1o labor strikes. If related contract negotiations are not resolved, we could experience additional late deliveries,
which could negatively impact our sales. We cannot predict the effect of such factors on our business relationships
with foreign suppliers or on our ability to deliver products into our stores in a timely manner. If even a small portion
of our current foreign manufacturing sources or textile mills were to cease doing business with us for any reason,
such actions could have a material adverse effect on our operating results and financial position. In addition, we are
currently pursuing strategies to reduce product costs. These strategies may result in sourcing product from factories
from which we have not previously purchased products and which may be in countries in which we have not done
business before. These efforts could result in greater risk to timely deliveries and quality control.

(

We must timely and effectively deliver merchandise to our stores and customers.

We cannot control all of the various factors that might affect our fulfillment rates for online sales and timely and
effective merchandise delivery to our stores. We rely upon third-party carriers for our merchandise shipments to and
from stores and reliable data regarding the timing of those shipments. We also rely upon a third party distribution
facility for merchandise fulfillment to our Canadian stores. In addition, we are heavily dependent upon two carriers for
the delivery of our merchandise to online customers. Labor disputes, union organizing activity, inclement weather,
natural disasters, and acts of terrorism could affect those carriers’ ability to provide delivery services to meet our
shipping needs. Failure to deliver merchandise in a timely and effective manner could damage our reputation and sales.

We are dependent on two facilities for distribution of product to all of our stores.

We handle merchandise distribution for all of our United States stores from a single facility in Dixen,
California, and distribution for all of our Canadian stores from a third-party owned and operated facility in
Burlington, Ontario. Any significant interruption in the operation of these distribution facilities due to natural
disasters, accidents, system failures or other unforeseen causes could delay or impair our ability to distribute
merchandise to our stores, which could cause sales to decline.

We may suffer negative publicity if any of our products are found to be unsafe.

We currently test products sold in our stores and at our Play & Music sites. We have in the past and may in
the future need to recall products that we later determine may present safety issues. If these products have safety
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protlems of which we are not aware, or if the Consumer Product Safety Commission recalls a product sold in our
store:s, we could experience negative publicity and product liability lawsuits, which could have a material adverse
effect on our reputation, business and financial position.

We mnay be subject to negative publicity or be sued if our manufacturers violate labor laws or engage in practices
that our customers believe are unethical,

We require our independent manufacturers Lo operate their businesses in compliance with the laws and
regulations that apply to them. Our sourcing personnel periodically visit and monitor the operations of our
independent manufacturers, but we cannot control their business and labor practices. We also rely on an
independent third party to audit all of our factories on an annual basis. If an independent manufacturer violales or
is suspected of violating labor laws or other applicable regulations, or if a manufacturer engages in labor or other
practices that diverge from those typically acceptable in the United States, Canada or Europe, we could in turn
experience negative publicity or be sued. Negative publicity or legal actions regarding the production of our
products could have a material adverse effect on our reputation, sales, business and financial position.

The loss of a key buying agent could disrupt our ability to deliver our inventory supply in a timely fashion,
impacting its value.

In fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005, one buying agent managed over 90% of our inventory purchases. Although
we believe that other buying agents could be identified and retained to place our required foreign production, the
loss of this buying agent could result in delays in procuring inventory which could result in a material adverse
effect on our business and operating results.

Changes in seasonal consumer spending patterns that are beyond our control could harm our business.

Historically, a disproportionate amount of our retail sales and a significant portion of our net income have been
realized during the holiday season in November and December. We have also experienced periods of increased
sales activity in the early spring, during the period leading up to the Easter holiday, and in the early fall, in
conniection with back-to-school sales. In fiscal 2006 and 2007, we generated net income in the second quarter;
howsever, we have historically generated net losses during the second quarter and could generate such losses in the
future due to seasonal consumer spending patterns. Changes in seasonal consumer spending patterns for reasons
beyond our control could result in lower-than-expected sales during these periods. Such a circumstance could cause
us to have excess inventory, necessitating markdowns to dispose of these excess inventories, which would reduce
our profitability. Any failure by us to meet our business plan for, in particular, the third or fourth quarter of any
fiscel year would have a material adverse effect on our earnings, which in all likelihood would not be offset by
satisfactory results achieved in other quarters of the same fiscal year. Also, because we typically spend more in
labor costs during the holiday season to hire temporary store employees in anticipation of holiday spending, a
shortfall in expected sales during that period could result in a disproportionate decrease in our net income.

Our ability to successfully implement significant information technology systems is critical 1o our business.

‘We plan to continue to upgrade our information technology infrastructure. In fiscal 2008, these initiatives
include a program to continue the upgrade our point-of-sale system, upgrade our core production system and
continue to support and enhance the functionality of our websites. Such technology systems changes are complex
and could cause disruptions that would adversely affect our business. While management will make every effort
to ensure the orderly implementation of various information technology systems, we cannot ensure that we will
be asle to successfully execute these changes without potentially incurring a significant disruption to our
business, If we are not successful, we may not achieve the expected benefits from these initiatives, despite having
expended significant capital. We may also determine that additional investment is required to bring our systems
to their desired state; this could result in a significant additional investment of time and money and increased
implementation risk. Furthermore, we intend to rely on third parties to fulfill contractual obligations related to
the upgrade of these systems. Failure of these third parties to fulfill their contractual obligations could lead to
significant expenses or losses due to a disruption in business operations.
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Our business may be harmed if our computer network security is compromised.

Despite our considerable efforts and technology to secure our computer network, security could be
compromised, confidential information, such as customer credit card numbers, could be misappropriated, or
system disruptions could occur. These events could lead to adverse publicity, loss of sales and could cause us to
incur significant costs to reimburse third parties for damages which could impact profits. We are currently in the
process of upgrading our systems and procedures to meet the Payment Card Industry (“PCI”) data security
standards, which require periodic audits by independent third parties to assess compliance. Failure to comply
with the security requirements or rectify a security issue may result in fines and the imposition of restrictions on
our ability to accept payment cards. There can be no assurance that we will be able to satisfy PCI security
standards. In addition, PCI is controlled by a limited number of vendors who have the ability to impose changes
in PCI’s fee structure and operational requirements on us without negotiation. Such changes in fees and
operational requirements may result in our failure to comply with PCI security standards, as well as significant
unanticipated expenses.

Damage to our computer systems could severely impair our ability to manage our business.

Our operations depend on our ability to maintain and protect our computer systems on which we rely to
manage our purchase orders, store inventory levels, web applications, accounting functions and other aspects of
our business. Our systems are vulnerable to damage from fire, floods, earthquakes, power loss,
telecommunications failures and similar events. We have computer systems in each of our stores, with the main
database servers for our systems located in San Francisco, California, which exists on or near known earthquake
fault zones. An earthquake or other disaster could have a material adverse impact on our business and operating
results not only by damaging our stores or corporate headquarters, but also by damaging our main servers, which
could disrupt our business for an indeterminate length of time.

Our failure to successfully manage our online businesses could have a negative impact on our business.

The operation of our online businesses depends on our ability to maintain the efficient and uninterrupted
operation of our order-taking and fulfillment operations for our online stores. Disruptions or slowdowns in these
areas could result from disruptions in telephone service or power outages, inadequate system capacity, system
issues, computer viruses, human error, changes in programming, natural disasters or adverse weather conditions,
Our online businesses are generally vulnerable to additional risks and uncertainties associated with the Internet,
including changes in required technology and other technical failures as well as changes in applicable federal and
state regulation, security breaches, and consumer privacy concerns. Problems in any of these areas could result in
a reduction in sales, increased selling, general and administrative expenses and damage to our reputation and
brands.

Our growth will be hampered if we are unable to locate new stores and relocate existing stores in appropriate
retail venues and shopping areas.

Our stores must be located in appropriate retail spaces in areas with demographlc characteristics consistent with
our customer base. These locations tend to be limited to malls and similar venues where the market for available space
is very competitive. The location of acceptable store sites and the negofiation of acceptable lease arrangements require
considerable time, effort and expense. Qur ability to lease desirable retail space for expansion and relocation of stores,
and to renew our existing store leases, on favorable economic terms is essential to our revenue and earnings growth.
Approximately 100, 50, and 30 store leases will come up for renewal during fiscal 2008, 2009 and 2010, respectively.
We are also in the process of negotiating lease terms for appr0x1mately 110 stores, which are currently operating under
month-to-month terms, There can be no assurance that we will be able to achieve our store expansion goals, effectively
manage our growth, successfully integrate the planned new stores into our operations, or profitably operate our new
and remodeled stores. Failure to obtain and renew leases for a sufficient number of stores on acceptable terms would
have a material adverse effect on our revenues and results of operations. ‘
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Our growth will be hampered if we are unable to successfully open new stores.

We plan to open approximately 100 new stores in fiscal 2008. Our growth depends in large part on our
ability to successfully open new stores, which in turn is dependent on a number of factors, including our ability
to hire and train skilled store operating and management teams and our ability to complete consiruction within
planned timelines and budgets. There can be no assurance that we will successfully open the number of stores
planned for fiscal 2008, and the resulting impact on our growth rate could materially affect the market price for
our common stock.

Oui comparable store sales fluctuate over time, which may cause the market price of our common stock to
decline.

Our comparable store sales have fluctuated significantly in the past and are expected to fluctuate in the
future. Qur comparable store sales are affected by a number of factors including our merchandise assortment,
economic conditions, weather conditions, timing of our promotional offerings, competition, and the overall retail
environment. The investment community often tracks comparable store sales, so a decline or significant
fluctuation in comparable store sales, or a failure to meet investor expectations of comparable store sales, could
malerially affect the market price of our common stock.

Qur operating and financial performance in any given period might not meet the guidance that we have provided
1o tie public.

We provide public guidance on our expected operating and financial results for future periods. Although we
believe that this guidance gives investors and analysts a better understanding of management’s expectations for
the future, and is useful to our shareholders and potential shareholders, such guidance is comprised of forward-
looliing statements that are subject to the risks and uncertainties described in this repert and in our other public
filirgs and public statements. Qur guidance may not always be accurate. If in the future our cperating or financial
restlts for a particular period do not meet our guidance or the expectations of investment analysts, or if we
reduce cur guidance for future periods, the market price of our common stock could significantly decline.
Further, frequent changes in guidance could increase the volatility of our stock price.

We may experience fluctuations in our tax obligations and effective tax rate.

We are subject to income taxes in many United States, Canadian and Puerto Rican jurisdictions. We record
tax -2xpense based on our estimates of future payments, which include reserves for estimates of uncertain tax
positions. At any one time, many tax years are subject to audit by various taxing jurisdictions. The results of
these audits and negotiations with taxing authorities may impact the ultimate settlement of these tax positions. As
a result, we expect that there could be ongoing variability in our quarterly tax rates as taxable events occur and
exposures are re-evaluated. Further, our effective tax rate in a given financial statement period may be materially
impacted by changes in the mix and level of earnings.

We are also subject to sales and use taxes in many United States, Canadian and Puerto Rican jurisdictions.
At any one time, many tax years are subject to audit by various taxing jurisdictions. The resuits of these audits
and negotiations with taxing authorities may adversely impact the ultimate settlement of these tax positions and
our financial results.

We may be a party to legal proceedings that could result in unexpected outcomes.

From time to time, we are a party to legal proceedings, including maiters involving personnel and
emgloyment issues, personal injury, and other proceedings arising in the ordinary course of business. In addition,
therz are an increasing number of cases being filed against companies generally that contain class action
allegations under federal and state wage and hour laws. We evaluate our exposure to these legal proceedings and
estaslish reserves for the estimated liabilities in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
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Assessing and predicting the outcome of these matters involve substantial uncertainties. Although not currently
anticipated by management, unexpected outcomes in these legal proceedings, or changes in management’s
evaluations or predictions, could have a material adverse impact on our financial results.

Any terrorist act that impacts consumer shopping could have a material adverse effect on our business.

We are dependent upon the continued popularity of malls as shopping destinations and the ability of mall anchor
tenants and other attractions to generate customer traffic in the malls where our stores are located. Any terrorist act that
decreases the level of mall traffic or other shopping traffic could have a material adverse effect on our business.

Our performance is dependent on attracting and retaining a large and growing number of quality team members.

Many of those team members are in entry-level or part-time positions with historically high rates of
turnover. Qur ability to meet our labor needs while controlling our costs is subject to external factors such as
unemployment levels, minimum wage legislation, health care legislation and changing demographics. In
addition, our labor costs are influenced by health care and workers’ compensation costs, both of which have been
rising in recent years. If we cannot hire enough qualified employees, or if there is a distuption in the supply of
personnel we hire from third-party providers, especially during our peak season or certain high-volume events,
our customer service levels and our operations could be negatively impacted.

We may be unable to protect our trademarks and other intellectual property rights.

We believe that our trademarks and service marks are important to our success and our competitive position
due to their name recognition with our customers. We devote substantial resources to the establishment and
protection of our trademarks and service marks on a worldwide basis. In order to more effectively protect them
from infringement and to defend against claims of infringement, the marks are owned by a separate subsidiary
whose purpose is to maintain and manage existing and future marks, thereby increasing their value to us. We are
not aware of any material claims of infringement or material challenges to our right to use any of our trademarks
and service marks in the United States. Nevertheless, there can be no assurance that the actions we have taken to
establish and protect our trademarks and service marks will be adequate to prevent imitation of our products by
others or to prevent others from seeking to block sales of our products as a violation of the trademarks, service
marks and proprietary rights of others. Also, others may assert rights in, or ownership of, trademarks and other
proprietary rights of ours and we may not be able to successfully resolve these types of conflicts to our
satisfaction. In addition, the laws of certain foreign countries may not protect proprietary rights to the same
extent as do the laws of the United States.

We may require external funding sources for operating funds in the future.

We regularly review and evaluate our liquidity and capital needs. We currently believe that our available
cash, cash equivalents, cash flow from operations and cash available under our existing and future credit facilities
will be sufficient to finance our operations and expected capital requirements for at least the next 12 months.
However, as we continue to grow, we might experience peak periods for our cash needs during the course of our
fiscal year, and we might need additional external funding to support our operations. In addition, our current
credit facility expires in August 2008. Although we believe we will have access to debt and/or capital market
funding as needed, such funds may not be available to us on advantageous terms. If the cost of such funds is
greater than expected, it could adversely affect our expenses and our operating results.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

Noene.
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

The Company leases approximately 162,400 square feet of office space in a building in San Francisco,
California, for its corporate offices. The lease expires on April 14, 2018. See Note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Company owns a 444,000 square foot distribution center on 21 acres in Dixon, California. All products
are distributed to our United States stores from this facility. The Company utilizes a third-party owned and
operated distribution center in Burlington, Ontario, Canada for Canadian operations.

As of February 2, 2008, the Company’s 786 stores included an aggregate of approximately 1,513,000 square
feet of space. Store leases typically have 10-year terms and include a cancellation clavse if minimum revenue
leve s are not achieved during a specified 12-month period during the lease term. In most cases, leases are
structured with a minimum rent component plus a percentage rent based on the store’s net sales in excess of a
certzin threshold. Substantially all of the leases require the Company to pay insurance, utilities, real estate taxes,
and commeon area repair and maintenance expenses. Approximately 100, 50, and 30 store leases will come up for
renewal during fiscal 2008, 2009 and 2010, respectively. The Company is also in the process of negotiating lease
terms for approximately 110 stores, which are currently operating under month-to-month terms. As of
February 2, 2008, we also operated three Gymboree Play & Music corporate-owned sites in California under
leases that expire between fiscal 2008 and fiscal 2012. See Note 3 to Consolidated Financial Statements,

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Company is subject to various legal proceedings and claims arising in the ordinary course of business.
Our management does not expect that the results of any of these legal proceedings, either individually or in the
aggrzgate, would have a material adverse effect on our financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A YOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

None.

PARTII

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

The Gymboree Corporation’s common stock is traded on The Nasdag Stock Market LLC under the symbol
“GYMB.” The following table sets forth the quarterly high and low sale prices per share of our commeon stock
over the last two fiscal years, as reported on The Nasdaq Stock Market LL.C.

Fiscal 2007 Fiscal 2006
High Low High Low
First QUarter ... ...ttt e $45.29 $34.66 $31.10 $20.78
Second QUarter ... ... e e e 45.55 3591 3822 29.90
Third Quarter . ... .. .. e e e 44.09 29.10  48.65 28.69
Fourth Quarter . .. ... .. . . . . . i i i e e 39.20 2599 49.11 36.58

As of March 1, 2008, the number of holders of record of the Company’s common stock totaled
approximately 660. The Company has never declared or paid cash dividends on its common stock and anticipates
that all future earnings will be retained for development of its business or stock repurchases. The payment of any
future dividends will be at the discretion of the Company’s Board of Directors and will depend upon, among
other things, future earnings, capital requirements, our financial position and general business conditions. In
addition, the Company is restricted from paying dividends under the terms of its existing credit facility. This
credit facility also limits stock repurchases.
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On January 23, 2007, the Board of Directors authorized the Company to utilize $50 million to purchase
shares of the Company’s outstanding common stock under a share repurchase program. In the first quarter of
fiscal 2007, the Company completed this share repurchase program, having purchased a total of 1,295,338 shares
of Company stock at an aggregate cost of $30 million, or approximately $38.57 per share. The Company retired
the repurchased shares.

On April 17, 2007, the Board of Directors authorized the Company to utilize $50 million to purchase shares
of the Company’s outstanding common stock under an additional share repurchase program. In the second
quarter of fiscal 2007, the Company completed this repurchase program, having purchased a total of 1,240,478
shares of Company stock at an aggregate cost of $50 million, or approximately $40.29 per share. The Company
retired the repurchased shares. '

On July 30, 2007, the Board of Directors authorized the Company to utilize $50 million to purchase shares
of the Company’s outstanding common stock under an additional share repurchase program. In the fourth quarter
of fiscal 2007, the Company completed this share repurchase program, having purchased a total of 1,393,166
shares of Company stock at an aggregate cost of $50 million, or approximately $35.87 per share. The Company
retired the repurchased shares.

On November 26, 2007, the Company’s Board of Directors authorized the Company to utilize $25 million
to purchase shares of the Company’s outstanding common stock under a new share repurchase program. In the
first quarter of fiscal 2008, the Company completed the share repurchase program having purchased a total of
761,755 shares at a cost of $25 million, or approximately $32.80 per share, The Company retired the repurchased
shares.

Stock repurchases for the quarter ended February 2, 2008, were as follows:

Total Number

of Shares Approximate Dollar
Purchased as Value of Shares
Total Average  Part of Publicly that May
Namber Price Announced Yet be Purchased
of Shares Paid Plans or Under the
Period Purchased per Share Programs Plans or Programs
Month #1 (November 4 - December 1) ............. 373,330  $32.65 373,330 $13,747,000
Month #2 (December 2 - January 5) ............... 400,000  $32.48 400,000 $ 747,000
Month #3 (January 6 - February 2) ................ — — — $ 747,000
Total, February 2,2008 .. ... ... ................, 773,330 $32.56 773,330 $ 747,000
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The following graph compares the cumulative five-year total return to shareholders on The Gymboree
Corporation’s common stock relative to the cumulative total returns of the NASDAQ Composite index, and a
peer group of 56 companies contained in SIC Codes 5600-5699. The graph assumes that the value of the
investment in the Company’s common stock, in the peer group, and the index (including reinvestment of
dividends) was $100 on February 1, 2003 and tracks it through February 2, 2008.

COMPARISON OF FIVE YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*
AMONG THE GYMBOREE CORPORATION, THE NASDAQ COMPOSITE INDEX
AND A PEER GROUP

$3450 -

$300 |

$240
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$50 -

!;0 1 1 1 1
2/1/03 1/31/04 1/29/05 1/28/06 2/3/107 2/2/08

The Gymboree Corporation |
— =NASDAQ Composite 1

I_ = = = = S|C Code 5600-5699 - Retail Apparel Etc. |

" $100 invested on 2/1/03 in stock or 1/31/03 in index-including reinvestment of dividends.
Index calculated on month-end basis.

2/1/03 1731704 1/29/05 1/28/06  2/3/07 2/2/08

THE GYMBOREE CORPORATION .............. 100.00 102.52  88.01 17426 316.83 272.16
NASDAQCOMPOSITE ......................h. 100.00 15640 156.66 17731 19291 18721
SIC CODE 5600-5699 - RETAIL APPAREL ETC. ... 100.00 14796 181.57 211.02 243.87 184.88

The stock price performance included in this graph is not necessarily indicative of future stock price
performance.

"The 56 companies included in the customized peer group are: Abercrombie & Fitch Company, Aeropostale
Inc., American Eagle Qutfitters, Ann Taylor Stores Corp., Bakers Footwear Group Inc., Big DOG Holdings Inc.,
Bluefly Inc., Brown Shoe Inc., Buckle Inc., Cache Inc., Carters Holdings Inc., Casual Male Retail Group Inc.,
Cato Corp., Charlotte Russe Holdings Inc., Charming Shoppes Inc., Chicos FAS Inc., Childrens Place Retail
Stores Inc., Christopher & Banks Corp., Citi Trends Inc., Collective Brands Inc., Delias Inc., Dover Saddlery
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Inc., Dress Barn Inc., DSW Inc., Eddie Bauer Holdings Inc., Finish Line Inc., Foot Locker Inc., Footstar Inc.,
Fredericks Of Hotlywood Group Inc., The Gap Inc., Genesco Inc., The Gymboree Corporation, Harolds Stores
Inc., Hartmarx Corp., Hot Topic Inc., J Crew Group Inc., Jo-Ann Stores Inc., Kuhlman Company Inc., Limited
Brands Inc., Mothers Work Inc., New York & Company Inc., Nordstrom Inc., Pacific Sunwear California Inc.,
Parent Company, Ross Stores Inc., Shoe Carnival Inc., Shoe Pavilion Inc., Stage Stores Inc., Stein Mart Inc.,
Syms Corp., Talbots Inc., The Mens Wearhouse Inc., Tween Brands Inc., Wet Seal Inc., Wilsons The Leather
Experts and Zumiez Inc.
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ITEM 5. SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

The following selected financial data has been derived from the Consolidated Financial Statements of the
Company. The Company’s United Kingdom and Ireland (collectively “Europe”) operations and its Janeville division
have been presented as discontinued operations in the accompanying financial statements for fiscal years 2003 through
2006. Results of the Europe and Janeville operations in fiscal 2007 are insignificant and are included in continuing
operations. The data set forth below should be read in conjunction with “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and our Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes thereto.

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
{In thousands, except operating data and per share amounts)
Statemert of Operations Data:
Net sales; .
Retaild () . ottt e e $ 909410 $ 781,172 % 656,546 § 578,266 $ 537,625
Play & Music . ... . e e e 11,404 10,466 10,946 10,753 11,647
Total net sales .. .. .. . . e 920,814 791,638 667,492 589,019 549,272
Cost of goods sold, including buying and occupancy expenses ... ............. 478,020y (407,180  (372,158) (3535100 (322,652)
GrOSS PrOfTt . vttt et et e e 442,794 384,458 295,334 235,509 226,620
Selling, gzneral and administrative eXpenses . . ......... ... .o, (312,549)  (278,294)  (233481) (211,986) (185,255)
Operating INCOME . ... ... . ettt e imie e iraaaanns 130,245 106,164 61,853 23,523 41,365
Interest iECOMIE .. ..ottt i e e 2,609 5314 2,221 1,022 652
INEErest eXpPense ... ... e e 179 (232) (340) (355) 411
Other income (EXPense), Net . . .. ... ...ttt 769 1,560 (75) (82) 137
Income from continuing operations, before income tax .. .. ... ... ... .... 133,444 112,806 63,659 24,108 41,743
[NCOME taX EXPLISE .. .. ..ottt e et e (53,113) (41,655) (25,460) (2,550) (15,666)
Inco e from continuing operations, net of income tax .................. 80,331 71,151 38,199 21,558 26,077
Loss from discontinued operations, net of incometax . ...................... — (10,901) 4.515) (14,120) (416)
Income before curnulative effect of change in accounting principle ............ 20,331 60,250 33,684 7.438 25,661
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net of incometax ....... .. — — — 1,206 —
NEUICOMIE L ..ottt i e e e et a e aeaanas $ 80,331 $ 60,250 § 33684 § 8644 $§ 25661
Basic income per share:
Income from continuing operations, net of incometax ...................... 3 219 % 225 % 121 $§ 070 § 088
Loss from discontinued operations, net of incometax . ...................... — (0.34) (0.14) {0.46) (0.01)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net of income tax ... ...... — — — 0.04 —
NeLINCONMIE ...t et e e $ 279 % 190 % 107 3 028 3 087
Diluted income per share:
Income from continuing operations, net of income tax ...................... $ 267 % 215 % .19 $ 06% $ 0.85
Loss fror discontinued operations, net of income tax . ....................., _ 0.33) 0.14) {0.45) (0.01)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net of income tax .. ....... — — — 0.04 —
L oo 111 A $ 267 % 1.82 % 105 $ 028 § 0.83
Basic weighted average shares outstanding ....................... ... ..... 28,797 31,647 31,485 30,747 29,656
Diluted weighted average shares outstanding ............................. 30,033 33,099 32,178 31,391 30,853
Operating Data:
Number of storesatend of period ......... ... o i 786 698 642 634 596
Net sales Jer gross square footat period-end (2) ........................... b3 595 % 592 % 549 % 498 $ 498
Net sales der average Store (3) ...t iriii e e $1,146,000 $1,111,000 31,018,000 $ 911,000 $ 902,000
Comparable store net sales increase (4) .. ... einiii i e T% 12% 9% 2% 1%
Balance Sheet Data:
Working capital ... ... e $ 58,038 % 161,710 3 179,045 $ 106,538 § 116,521
TOLAE ASSEES .« . vttt e e e 397,184 454,208 424,778 351,699 302,400

Stockholders’ equity . .. ... L e 208,295 275,727 275,077 217,406 200,214

Notes:

(1) Net retail salgs include revenues from the Company’s retail stores, online stores and the Gymboree Visa program.

(2) Equals net retail sales, excluding revenues from the Gymboree Visa program, divided by total square feet of store space as of each fiscal year-
end.

(3} Equals net retail sales, excluding revenues from the Gymboree Visa program, divided by stores open as of each fiscal year-end.

(4) A comparable store is one that has been open for a full 14 months. Stores that are relocated or expanded by more than 15% of their original square
footaze become comparable 14 months after final relocation or the completion of the expansion project. Comparable stores net sales include net sales
from the Company’s online stores. Comparable stores net sales were calculated on a 52-week basis for all periods presented.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
__ RESULTS OF OPERATIONS . . -

You should read the following discussion und analysis in conjunction with our Consolidated Financial
Statements and related Notes included elsewhere in this report, Except for historical information, the following
discussion contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform
Act of 1995. Inaccurate assumptions and known and unknown risks and uncertainties can affect the accuracy of
Jforward-looking statements, and our actual results could differ materially from results that may be anticipated by
such forward-looking statements. The principal factors that could cause or contribute to such differences
include, but are not limited to, those discussed in Item 1A, “Risk Factors” and those discussed elsewhere in this
report. We do not intend to revise any forward-looking statements in order to reflect events or circumstances that
may subsequently arise.

General

The Gymboree Corporation is a specialty retailer operating stores setling high-quality apparel and
accessories for children under the GYMBOQREE®, JANIE AND JACK®, and CRAZY 8™ brands, as well as play
programs for children under the GYMBOREE PLAY & MUSIC® brand. As of February 2, 2008, the Company
conducted its business through five primary divisions: Gymboree, Gymboree Qutlet, Janie and Jack, Crazy 8, and
Gymboree Play & Music. As of February 2, 2008, the Company had 786 stores, including 754 stores in the
United States (including 565 Gymboree stores, 93 Janie and Jack shops, 82 Gymboree Outlet stores, and 14
Crazy 8 stores), 30 Gymboree stores in Canada and 2 stores in Puerto Rico. The Company also operates three
online stores at www. gymboree.com, www. janieandjack.com, and www.crazy8.com.

The Company’s net sales for fiscal 2007 increased to $920.8 million from $791.6 million in fiscal 2006 and
$667.5 million in fiscal 2005. Net income totaled $80.3 million in fiscal 2007 compared to $60.3 million in fiscal
2006 and $33.7 million in fiscal 2005. Comparable store net sales (which include online stores), based on a
52-week period, increased 7% during fiscal 2007 versus 2006, 12% during fiscal 2006 versus 2005, and 9%
during fiscal 2005 versus 2004.

The Company expects that future increases in net sales and net income will be dependent on, among other
factors, its ability to:

»  Expand its three newer growth concepts, Janie and Jack, Gymboree Outlet, and Crazy 8;
«  Continue to reduce product costs while maintaining high-quality standards;

+  Generate more sales to existing customers in the core Gymboree division through appropriate size
expansions; growth of the Boy department business and increased Newborn product assortment; and

»  Attract new customers through strategies such as direct mail campaigns and cross-brand marketing.

The Company’s long-term growth will depend on the development and implementation of newer retail
concepts such as Janie and Jack, Gymboree Outlet, and Crazy 8, as well as continued investment in its core retail
brand, Gymboree. As such, the Company expects to continve to devote time and effort to evaluating, developing,
and testing new concepts when it perceives opportunities in the marketplace. Such efforts inevitably require
significant management attention at all phases of the process and, for those concepts that the Company
determines to launch, significant capital expenditures and losses during the early years of operation. Fiscal 2007
results include an operating loss of $0.11 per diluted share related to the Company’s new Crazy 8 concept. Such
losses are expected to continue in fiscal 2008,

During 2008, the Company plans to open approximately 100 new stores, including 20 Gymboree stores, 40
Gymboree Quilet stores, 20 Janie and Jack shops, and 20 Crazy 8 stores. The Company also plans to remodel,

relocate or expand approximately 20 Gymboree and Janie and Jack stores. *
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The Company’s year-end is on the Saturday closest to January 31. Fiscal 2007, which included 52 weeks,
ended on February 2, 2008. Fiscal 2006, which included 53 weeks, ended on February 3, 2007. Fiscal 2005,
which included 52 weeks, ended on January 28, 2006. Management estimates that the 539 week of fiscal 2006
contributed approximately $0.05 per diluted share to income from continuing operations.

Critical Accounting Policies

Critical accounting policies are those accounting policies and estimates that management believes are
important to the portrayal of the Company’s financial condition and results of operations and require
management’s most difficult, subjective or complex judgments, often as a result of the need to make estimates
about the effect of matters that are inherently uncertain.

Share-Based Compensation. In fiscal 2006, the Company adopted SFAS No. 123(R), Share-Based
Compensation (“SFAS 123(R)") using the medified prospective transition method and began accounting for
share-based compensation using a fair-valued based recognition method. Under the provisions of SFAS 123(R),
share-based compensation cost is estimated at the grant date based on the fair value of the award and expensed
over the requisite service period of the award. The Company recognizes share-based compensation expense on a
strai zht-line basis for options and awards with time-based service conditions, and on an accelerated basis for
awards with performance conditions (see Note 7). Determining the appropriate fair-value model, calculating the
fair alue of share-based awards at the grant date and amortizing the fair value over the requisite service period
requires considerable judgment, including estimating stock price volatility, expected term and forfeiture
rates. The Company develops its estimates based on historical data and market information, which can change
significantly over time,

The Company uses the Black-Scholes option valuation model to value options and shares issued under the
Company’s Employee Stock Purchase Plan. Restricted stock units and shares are valued based on the fair market
value of the Company’s common stock on the date of grant. The Company estimates stock price volatility based
on an average historical volatility of its stock. Expected term and forfeiture rate assumptions are also derived
from historical data, giving consideration to expectations of future employee behavior. Had the Company used
alteraative valuation methodologies or assumptions, the amount expensed for share-based awards could be
significantly different.

Inventory Valuation. The Company reviews its inventory levels in order to identify slow-moving
merchandise and broken assortments (items no longer in stock in a sufficient range of sizes) and reduces prices to
sell that merchandise. The Company takes a physical count of inventories in all stores once a year, and in some
stores twice a year, The Company performs cycle counts of inventory for its retail distribution center and online
stores throughout the year. The Company records an inventory shrink adjustment upon physical counts and also
provides for estimated shrink adjustments for the period between the last physical inventory count and each
balance sheet date. Qur inventory shrink estimate can be affected by changes in merchandise mix and changes in
actuil shrink trends.

Asset Impairment. The Company reviews long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable. Long-lived assets at retail
stores are reviewed for impairment once the related store has been open for a minimum of 18 to 36 months,
depending on the brand. If the undiscounted future cash flows from the long-lived assets are less than the
carrying value, the Company recognizes a loss equal to the difference between the carrying value and the fair
value of the assets. Decisions 1o close a store or facility can also result in accelerated depreciation over the
revised useful life. For locations to be closed that are under long-term leases, the Company records a charge for
lease buyout expense or the difference between its rent and the rate at which it expects to be able to sublease the
properties and related cost, as appropriate. Most closures occur upon the lease expiration. The Company’s
estimate of future cash flows is based on experience and occasionally third-party advice or market data,
However, these estimates can be affected by factors that are difficult to predict such as future store profitability,
real estate demand and economic conditions,
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Workers’ Compensation. The Company is partially self-insured for workers’ compensation insurance. The
Company records a liability based on claims filed and an actuarially determined amount of claims incurred, but
not yet reported. Any actuarial projection of losses concerning the Company’s liability is subject to a high degree
of variability due to external factors, including future inflation rates, litigation trends, legal interpretations,
benefit level changes and claim settlement patterns. If the actual amount of claims filed exceeds estimates,
reserves recorded may not be sufficient and additional accruals may be required in future periods.

Co-Branded Credit Card. The Company has co-branded credit card agreements (the “Agreements”) with a
third-party bank (the “Bank™) and Visa U.S.A. Inc. for the issuance of a Visa credit card bearing the Gymboree
brand and administration of an associated incentive program for cardholders. The program offers incentives to
cardholders, including a 5% discount on purchases from Gymboree using the Gymboree Visa card and rewards in
the form of a Gymboree gift card equal to 1% of total non-Gymboree purchases. The Bank is the sole owner of
the accounts issued under the program and absorbs all losses associated with non-payment by the cardholder and
any frandulent usage of the accounts by third parties, The Company is responsible for redeeming the incentives,
including the issuance of any gift cards. The Bank pays fees to the Company based on the number of credit card
accounts opened and card usage and makes certain guaranteed minimum annual payments. Visa U.S.A. Inc. also
pays fees to the Company based on card usage. Cardholder incentives are funded from the fees paid by the Bank
to the Company. The Company recognizes revenues related to the Agreements as follows:

+  New account fees are recognized as retail revenues on a straight-line basis over the average estimated
life of the credit card relationship, currently estimated to be three years.

»  Credit card usage fees are recognized as retail revenues as actual credit card usage occurs.

*  Minimum guaranteed annual payments, which exceed amounts earned based on the number of
accounts opened and card usage, are recognized as retail revenues on a straight-line basis over the
estimated life of the credit card relationship, currently estimated to be three years.

*  Rewards earned are recorded as gift card liabilities and recognized as retail revenues when the gift
cards are redeemed.

Revenue Recognition. Revenue is recognized at the point of sale in retail stores. Online revenue is recorded
when the Company estimates merchandise is delivered to the customer. Customers generally receive
merchandise within a few days of shipment. Shipping fees received from customers are included in net sales and
the associated shipping costs are included in cost of goods sold. The Company also sells gift cards in its retail
store locations and through its online stores. Revenue is recognized in the period that the gift card is redeemed.
The Company recognizes unredeemed gift card balances over three years old as other income. Customers may
earn Gymbucks and redeem them for merchandise at a discount during the redemption period. One-half of the
Gymbucks coupon value is earned by customers when the minimum purchase requirement is met during the
carning period, and the other half is earned when the additional purchase requirement is met during the
redemption period. A lability is recorded for all Gymbucks earned, but not redeemed, within an accounting
period. Sales are presented net of a sales return reserve, which is estimated based on historical return trends. If
actual returns or Gymbucks redemptions exceed or fall short of estimates, adjustments to sales returns and
markdowns may be recorded in the future.

Income Taxes. The Company provides for income taxes in accordance with Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes (“SFAS 109”). SFAS 109 requires the recognition
of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future tax consequences of temporary differences between
the financial statement carrying amounts and the tax bases of assets and liabitities. The Company maintains
valuation allowances when it is more likely than not that all or a portion of a deferred tax asset will not be
realized. Changes in valuation allowances from period to period are included in the tax provision in the period of
change. In determining whether a valuation allowance is warranted, the Company takes into account such factors
as prior earnings history, expected future earnings, carryback and carryforward periods, and tax strategies that
could potentially enhance the likelihood of realization of a deferred tax asset. The Company is subject to periodic
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audits by the Internal Revenue Service and other taxing authorities. These audits may challenge certain of the
Company’s tax positions, such as the timing and amount of deductions and allocation of taxable income to the
various tax jurisdictions. Income tax contingencies are accounted for in accordance with FASB Interpretation
No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes” (“FIN 487}, and may require significant management
judgrnent in estimating final outcomes. Actual results could materially differ from these estimates and could
significantly affect the effective tax rate and cash flows in future years.

Fiscal 2007 Compared to Fiscal 2006
Net Sales

“Net retail sales for fiscal 2007 increased to $909.4 million from $781.2 million in fiscal 2006, an increase of
$128 2 millien, or 16%. Comparable store sales increased 7%, primarily driven by a variety of factors including a
positive response to the Company’s direct marketing efforts and continued strength in sales from the Gymboree
boy cepartments, Janie and Jack, and Gymboree Outlet. Non-comparable store sales increased due to net store
and sguare footage growth of 88 stores and approximately 200,000 square feet, respectively. There were 786
stores open at the end of fiscal 2007 compared to 698 at the end of fiscal 2006.

Symboree Play & Music net sales for fiscal 2007 increased to $11.4 million from $10.5 million in fiscal
2006 There were 559 Gymboree Play & Music sites at the end of fiscal 2007 (including three Company-operated
sites), compared to 548 sites (including three Company-operated sites} at the end of fiscal 2006.

Gross Profit

Gross profit for fiscal 2007 increased to $442.8 million from $384.5 million in fiscal 2006. As a percentage
of ne sales, gross profit decreased (1.5 percentage points to 48.1% from 48.6% last year. This decrease was
primarily due to lower full-priced selling, as a result of a more promotional retail environment in fiscal 2007, as
well as the absence of the 531 week in fiscal 2007 and relatively lower gross margins generated in the Crazy 8
division.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Seiling, general and administrative expenses (“SG&A”) expenses, which principally consist of
non-occupancy store expenses, corporate overhead and distribution expenses, increased to $312.5 million in
fiscal 2007 from $278.3 million in fiscal 2006, an increase of $34.2 million, or 12%. SG&A as a percentage of
sales decreased 1.3 percentage points to 33.9% from 35.2% in fiscal 2006. SG&A expenses in fiscal 2006
included a charge of $3.7 million related to the retirement of the Company’s former Chairman and Chief Creative
Officer (see Note 11). Excluding this item, SG&A as a percentage of sales decreased 0.8 percentage points to
33.9% from 34.7% in fiscal 2006. SG& A decreases as a percentage of sales for fiscal 2007 were primarily due to
improved leveraging of store and corporate compensation expense (excluding share-based compensation), lower
professional services fees and travel, partially offset by increases in marketing expenses and share-based
comgensation.

Interest Income

Interest income decreased to $2.6 million in fiscal 2007 from $5.3 million in fiscal 2006 resulting from
lower average cash reserves due to the Company’s stock repurchase programs over the past year.

Other Inceme (Expense), net

Other income of $0.8 million in fiscal 2007 primarily represents revenue related to unredeemed gift cards
and amounts related to a favorable legal settlement, Other income in fiscal 2006 was primarily due to amounts
related to a favorable legal settlement.
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Income Taxes

Income tax expense for fiscal 2007 and 2006 resulted in effective tax rates of approximately 39.8% and
36.9%, respectively. The effective tax rate in fiscal 2006 benefited from reversing a valuation allowance of
approximately $3.6 million related to state net operating loss (“NOL") carryforwards and other foreign tax
attributes.

Fiscal 2006 Compared to Fiscal 2005
Net Sales

Net retail sales for fiscal 2006 increased to $781.2 million from $656.5 million in fiscal 2005, an increase of
$124.7 million, or 19%. Comparable store sales increased 12% (on a 52-week basis), primarily driven by a
variety of factors, including improved performance from the Company’s kid and baby boy divisions, a
substantial increase in direct-marketing efforts, and a more effective merchandising and promotional cadence
throughout the year. Non-comparable store sales increased due to net store and square footage growth of 56
stores and 120,000 square feet, respectively. There were 698 stores open at the end of fiscal 2006 compared to
642 at the end of fiscal 2005.

Gymboree Play & Music net sales for fiscal 2006 decreased to $10.5 million from $10.9 million in fiscal
2005. There were 548 Gymboree Play & Music sites at the end of fiscal 2006 (including three Company-operated
sites), compared to 545 sites (including four Company-operated sites) at the end of fiscal 2005,

Gross Profit

Gross profit for fiscal 2006 increased to $384.5 million from $295.3 million in fiscal 2005. As a percentage
of net sales, gross profit increased 4.4 percentage points to 48.6% from 44.2% in fiscal 2005. This increase was
primarily due to the reduction in product costs resulting from the Company’s product cost reduction strategies,
improved full price selling and the leveraging of buying and occupancy expenses.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

SG&A expenses increased to $278.3 million in fiscal 2006 from $233.5 million in fiscal 2005, an increase
of $44.8 million or 19.2%. SG& A expense for fiscal 2006 includes approximately $8.4 million in share-based
compensation expense as a result of the adoption of SFAS 123(R), $3.7 million related to the retirement of the
Company’s former Chairman and Chief Creative Officer, and a legal settlement charge of $1.3 million offset by
approximately $500,000 of benefit arising from the finalization of payments to be made under a previously
accrued lawsuit. Excluding these four items, SG&A as a percentage of sales decreased 1.5 percentage points in
fiscal 2006 to 34% compared to fiscal 2005. SG&A savings as a percentage of sales for fiscal 2006 were
generated from leveraging store compensation and depreciation, reduced professional fees and lower repair and
maintenance costs, partially offset by increases in costs related to corporate compensation and the Company’s
additional marketing initiatives.

Interest Income

Interest income increased to $5.3 million in fiscal 2006 from $2.2 million in fiscal 2005 resulting from
interest earned on higher average investment balances, as well as higher average interest rate yields compared to
the prior year.

Other Income (Expense), net

Other income of $1.6 million in fiscal 2006 primarily represents amounts related to the favorable resolution
of legal setttements.
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Incoine Taxes

(ncome tax expense for fiscal 2006 and 2005 resulted in an effective tax rate of approximately 36.9% and
40.0%, respectively. The effective rate for fiscal 2006 includes approximately $3.6 million in tax benefit from the
release of a valuation allowance related to state net operating loss carryforwards and other foreign tax attributes,
whici1 the Company expects to utilize as a result of its significant earnings improvement, In addition, the
Comypany also recorded an increase in certain state reserves of approximately $1.9 million.

Discontinued Operations

Losses from discontinued operations in fiscal 2006 and 2005 relate primarily to the Company’s Janeville
divis:on, which was closed in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006. Losses for the Janeville division, before income
tax, were approximately $17.5 million in fiscal 2006, and included operating losses as well as approximately $6.8
million for asset impairment, $4.8 million for lease disposition costs, $0.8 million for the cancellation of certain
purchase commitments, and $0.3 million for severance to employees. Losses for the Janeville division, before
incorne taxes, approximated $8.5 million in fiscal 2005. The Janeville losses were offset by income of
approximately $1.1 million, before income taxes, related to the Company’s United Kingdom and Ireland entities,
Incone generated from the United Kingdom and Ireland entities in fiscal 2005 primarily represents the favorable
resolation of lease terminations in connection with the liquidation of the entities, and is partially offset by legal
and sccounting fees, as well as foreign exchange losses primarily related to the recognition of cumulative
translation adjustments. See Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Cash and cash equivalents totaled $33.3 million and $27.5 million as of February 2, 2008 and February 3,
2007, respectively. Marketable securities totaled $129.3 million as of February 3, 2007. Working capital as of
February 2, 2008 totaled $58.0 million as compared to $161.7 million as of February 3, 2007. The decreases in
working capital and marketable securities resulted from the Company’s share repurchase programs.

Net cash provided by operating activities for fiscal 2007 was $107.9 million compared to $121.7 million in
fiscal 2006 and $97.4 mitlion in fiscal 2005. The decrease in fiscal 2007 was primarily due to an increase in
inventory purchases to support planned store and sales growth.

Net cash provided by investing activities for fiscal 2007 was $60.5 million compared to net cash used in
investing activities of $52.9 miilion in fiscal 2006 and $114.5 miltion in fiscal 2005. Net cash provided by
investing activities for fiscal 2007 consisted of $129.3 million in net marketable securities proceeds offset by
$68.8 million in capital expenditures. Capital expenditures in fiscal 2007 related to the opening of 95 new stores,
relocation, remodeling and/or expansion of 52 existing stores, store openings and relocations currently in
progress, information technology improvements, and expansion of the Company’s distribution center.

Net cash used in financing activities for fiscal 2007 was $164.3 million compared to $73.2 million in fiscal
2006 and net cash provided by financing activities of $18.8 million in fiscal 2005. The increase in fiscal 2007
was primarily due to $174.3 million in stock repurchases in fiscal 2007 discussed in more detail below.

The Company has an unsecured revolving credit facility for borrowings of up to $120 million. Borrowings
available under this credit facility may not exceed $100 million from and after April 2, 2008. The credit facility,
which expires in August 2008, may be used for the issuance of documentary and standby letters of credit,
working capital and capital expenditure needs. The interest rate for each borrowing under the facitity will be, at
the option of the Company, a base rate plus un additional marginal rate (a total of 6.0% as of February 2, 2008) or
the Eurodollar rate pius an additional marginal rate (a total of 4.65% as of February 2, 2008). This credit facility
requ.res the Company to meet financial covenants on a quarterly basis, limits annual capital expenditures,
restr.cts the payment of dividends, and limits stock repurchases. As of February 2, 2008, the Company was in
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compliance with these covenants. As of February 2, 2008, there were no outstanding borrowings and $52.9
million of documentary and standby letters of credit were outstanding. The maximum amount of documentary
and standby letters of credit outstanding during the fiscal year was $75.0 million.

During fiscal 2007, the Company repurchased 4,672,737 shares of common stock at a cost of approximately
$174.3 million, or approximately $37.28 per share. During fiscal 2006, the Company repurchased 3,277,654
shares of common stock at a cost of approximately $110.0 million, or approximately $33.55 per share.

The Company estimates capital expenditures for fiscal 2008 will approximate $60 million and will be used
to open approximately 100 new stores, including 20 Gymboree stores, 40 Gymboree Outlet stores, 20 Janie and
Jack shops, 20 Crazy 8 stores, and to remodel, relocate or expand approximately 20 Gymboree and Janie and
Jack stores, as well as to continue investment in the Company’s new retail point of sale system, online stores and
systems infrastructure upgrade and replacement. The Company’s current plans for Gymboree, Janie and Jack,
Gymboree Outlet and Crazy 8 will require increasing capital expenditures for new stores for the next several
years.

We anticipate that cash generated from operations, together with our existing cash resources and funds
available from current and future credit facilities, will be sufficient to satisfy our cash needs through fiscal 2008.

Summary Disclosures about Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments

The following table reflects a summary of our contractual obligations as of February 2, 2008:

Contractual Obligations

Less than After

($ in thousands) 1 year 1-3 years 3.5 years 5 years Total
Stand-by letters of credit ........ ... $ 4978 § — § — § — § 4978
Operating leases (1):

Minimum rental obligations . ................ 60,501 105,960 97,235 163,342 427,038

Other lease-required obligations ............. 29,031 50,234 44,969 74,068 198,302
Inventory purchase obligations (2) ................ 137,676 — — — 137,676
Other purchase obligations 3) ................... 5,830 1,879 1,511 —_ 9,220
Total contractual cash obligations ................ $238,016 $158,073 $143.715 $237410 $777.214

(1) Includes minimum rental obligations and other lease-required expenses such as utilities, real estate taxes and
common area repairs and maintenance.

(2) Inventory purchase obligations include outstanding purchase orders for merchandise inventories that are
enforceable and legally binding on the Company and that specify all significant terms (including fixed or
minimum quantities to be purchased), fixed, minimum or variable price provisions, and the approximate
timing of the transaction.

(3) Other purchase obligations include commitments for capital expenditures, information technology and
professional services.

The Company adopted FIN 48 on the first day of fiscal 2007. As of February 2, 2008, the Company had
unrecognized tax benefits of $6.9 million, accrued interest of $1.6 million, and accrued penalties of $0.5 million.
These amounts have been excluded from the contractual obligations table because a reasonably reliable estimate
of the timing of future tax settlements cannot be determined.
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Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In September 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Boards (“FASB”) issued Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. (“SFAS™) 157, Fair Value Measurements, which establishes a single authoritative
definition of fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosure of fair value
meesurements. SFAS No. 157 only applies to fair value measurements that are already required or permitted by
other accounting standards, and accordingly, will not require any new fair value measurements. The Company
will adopt SFAS 157 as of the beginning of fiscal 2008. We do not expect the adoption of SFAS No. 157 to have
a material impact on our consolidated financial position, results of operations, or cash flows.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and
Financial Liabifities—Including an amendment of FASB Statement No. 115. SFAS No. |59 permits companies to
measure many financial instruments and certain other items at fair value at specified election dates and report
unrealized gains and losses on items for which the fair value option has been elected in earnings at each
subsequent reporting date. The Company will adopt SFAS 159 as of the beginning of fiscal 2008. We do not
expect the adoption of SFAS No. 159 to have a material impact on our consolidated financial position, results of
operations, or cash flows.

Impact of Inflation

The impact of inflation on results of operations has not been significant in any of the last three fiscal years.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

The Company enters into forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge inventory purchases. The term of the
forward exchange contracts is generally less than one year. The purpose of our foreign currency hedging
activities is to protect us from the risk that the eventual dollar margins resulting from inventory purchases will be
adversely affected by changes in exchange rates.

The table below summarizes the notional amounts and fair values of our open forward foreign exchange
contracts in U.S. dollars as of February 2, 2008 and February 3, 2007.

February 2, 2008

Weighted
Notional Fair Value  Average
(In thousands except weighted-average rate data) Amount Gain Rate
Canadian dollars .. ..ot i e e e $4662 ., % © $1.01
TOta] . e $4,662 $ 6
February 3, 2007
Weighted
Notional Fair Value  Average
(In thousands except weighted-average rate data} Amount Gain Rate
Canadian dollars . . ..ottt e e e e e $3,743 $138 $0.85
Total . o e e e $3,743 $138
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
The Gymboree Corporation:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated batance sheets of The Gymboree Corporation and
subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of February 2, 2008 and February 3, 2007, and the related consolidated
statements of income, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three fiscal years in the period ended
February 2, 2008. We also have audited the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of February 2,
200%,, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrared Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. The Company’s management is responsible for these
consolidated financial statements, for maintaining effective internal control over financiai reporting, and for its
assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying
“Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting.” Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on these consolidated financial statements and an opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial
reponiing based on our andits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement and whether effective internal control
over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audits of the financial statements included
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Qur
audis also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances, We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of,
the company’s principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, and
effected by the company’s board of directors, management, and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance
rega:ding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generaily accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assuance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reascnable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
comany’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements,

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be
prevented or detecied on a timely basis. Also, projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal
cont:ol over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate,

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of The Gymboree Corporation and subsidiartes as of February 2, 2008 and February 3,
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2007, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three fiscal years in the period ended
February 2, 2008, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Also, in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial
reporting as of February 2, 2008, based on the criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

As discussed in Note 7 to the consolidated financial statements, in fiscal 2006, the Company changed its
method of accounting for share-based payment arrangements to conform to Statement of Financial Accounting

Standards No. 123(R), “Share-Based Payment.”

As discussed in Note 6 to the consolidated financial statements, in fiscal 2007, the Company adopted
Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes.”

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

San Francisco, California
March 27, 2008
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THE GYMBOREE CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except share data)

February 2, February3,
2007

2008
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents . ........... . .iiiiiiiininiiiniine i $ 33313 § 27493
Marketable SeCUrities . .. ... ... e e et — 129,325
Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $498 and $274 ....... ... .. ... .. ..., 12,640 12,988
Merchandise INVEIIOTIES & . vt e i e e e et ittt naaaaaannanns 119,523 104,293
Prepaid eXpenses . ... ... i i e e e 12,096 10,323
Deferred INCOME LAXES . . ot ottt e et e e e et et e et e 11,652 9,298
Current assets of discontinued operations . ......... ... ... .. . i, — 126
Total CUITENT ASSEES . . .t ittt ittt s e et e ae i aaaae e aeeannnns 189,224 203,846
Property and Equipment:
Landand buildings ........ .. ... e 12,476 10,615
Leasehold improvements . ... .. ... ... .. i i e e 186,777 164,546
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment .. ... ... i i s 176,900 158,104
376,153 333,265
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization .............. . .coiiiiiiia (190,796) (183,014)
185,357 150,251
Deferred InCome TaKes .. .o oi ittt e ettt e it e 21.028 8,710
Lease Rights and Other Assets .. ... ... i e 1,575 1,401
TolAl ASSEIS v v vt e e s e e e e e e e e e e e $397.184 $ 454,208
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS® EQUITY
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable .. ... ... e $ 52915 § 55.872
Accrued Habilities . .. ..o v e e et e 70,282 66,334
Incometax payable .. . ... e 7,989 8,002
Current liabilities of discontinued operations . . ........ ... ... .o i — 1,928
Total current Habilities ... ... it ettt 131,186 132,136
Long-Term Liabilities:
Deferred rent and other liabilities . . ... o oot e 51,722 46,345
Unrecognized tax benefits ... ... ... o i 5,981 —
Total Liabilities ... .. i e i e e e 188,889 178,481
Commitments and Contingencies (see Note 3) ........ ... ... .. ... i, — —
Stockholders’ Equity:
Common stock, including additional paid-in capital ($.001 par value:
100,000,000 shares authorized; 28,344,205 and 31,769,608 shares issued and
outstanding at February 2, 2008 and February 3, 2007, respectively) .......... 140,012 132,603
Retained @arnings ... ... e i e 67,340 144,097
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) . ........... ... .. .. ... 943 (973)
Total Stockholders” EQUItY .. ... v i i 208,295 275,727
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity .. ... oo iiinn $ 397,184 § 454,208

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

30




THE GYMBOREE CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
{In thousands, except per share data)

Year Ended
February 2, February3, January 28,
2008 2007 2006

Net sales:

Retail .. ... e e $909.410 § 781,172 § 656,546

Play & MUsic .. ... i e 11,404 10,466 10,946

Totalmet sales . .. ... . e 920,814 791,638 667,492
Cost of goods sold, including buying and occupancy expenses .......... (478,020) (407,180y (372,158)

Gross Profit . . ... e 442 794 384,458 295,334
Selling, general and administrative expenses . . ... .................... (312,549) (278,294) (233.481)

Operating inCOME . ........coii it i iiee e 130,245 106,164 61,853
It e s MO . . Lt e e et e 2,609 5,314 2,221
Interest EXPeNSE . . .. e e (179) (232) (340)
Other income (EXPENnse), NEL .. ..ot e e et iaanns 769 1,560 (75

Income from continuing operations, before income tax ............ 133,444 112,806 63,659
INCOmE taX EXPemSE ... i i i e (53,113) (41,655) (25.460)

Income from continuing operations, net of income tax ............. 80,331 71,151 38,199
Loss from discontinued operations, net of income tax ................. —_ (10,901) 4,515)

NetinCOmE .« . e et e e e e $ 80,331 3% 60,250 $ 33.684
Basic per share amounts:
Income from continuing operations, net of incometax .........o....... $§ 2719 % 225 % 1.21
Loss from discontinued operations, net of incometax ................. — (0.34) (0.14)
NELINCOME . ..ot e e e e et e $ 279 § 1.90 % 1.07
Diluted per share amounts:
Income from continuing operations, net of income tax ................. $ 2067 % 215 § 1.19
Loss from discontinued operations, net of incometax ................. — (0.33) (0.14)
NetINCOME & vt ittt et e e e e e e e et $ 267 % 1.82 % 1.05
Weighted average shares outstanding:

BasiC ot 28,797 31,647 31,485

Diluted ... 30,033 33,099 32,178

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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THE GYMBOREE CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In thousands}

Year Ended
February2, February3,  January 28,
2008 2007 2006 '
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
INELINCOME &+ o v ee et e e e e e e e e e e et e a e ie s $ 80,331 $§ 60250 3% 33,684
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating
activities:
Depreciation and amortization ................ ... 31,151 28,769 29,432
Provision {benefit) for deferred income taxes . ... ............... (9,771) (9,548) 6,725
Share-based cOMPensation EXPENSe .. ....c..vvnnrrnerrnnaenns 16,381 10,619 316
Loss on disposal of property and equipment and other ... ......... 687 6.818 1,514
Excess tax benefits from exercise of share-based awards .......... (3,330) (8,475) —
Tax benefit from exercise of stock options ..................... 3,841 11,577 5477
Change in assets and liabilities:
Accountsreceivable ... ... s 424 (797) 4,355
Merchandise INVENIOMES .. ... vttt ire e nns (14,874) (3,622) (2,964)
Prepaid expenses and otherassets . ...... ... oot (1,77H (6,641) 1,079
Accountspayable .. ... ... (3,343) 10,757 5,503
Incometax payable ... ... 2,577 13,286 (1,740)
Accrued liabilities ... ...t e 3,904 8,403 11,423
Deferred rent and other liabilities ............. ... ... ..., 1,606 296 2,580
Net cash provided by operating activities ........ ... ... ... ... 107,867 121,692 97,384
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from sales and maturities of marketable securities ........... 508,978 1,245,226 568,225
Purchases of marketable securities ........... ... oviiiiiiiiaan. (379,653) (1,259,551) (653,225)
Capital expenditures ............eiiiiiiiiiiii e (68,794) (38,722)  (29,583)
(10111 1<) oA O O U — 189 89
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities .............. 60,531 (52,858) (114,494)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from issuance of common stock ........ .. i, 6,577 28,301 18,822
Excess tax benefits from exercise of share-based awards ... ........... 3,330 8,475 —
Repurchases of commonstock ... ... (174,253) (109,999) —
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities .............. (164,346) (73,223) 18,822
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents . .............. 4052 (4,389) 1,712
Effect of exchange rate fluctuationsoncash . ... ............... .00 1,768 (155) 274)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS:
Beginning of YEar .. .. ... oo 27,493 32,037 30,599
End of Year oo oo ottt ettt e e $ 33313 § 27493 § 32,037
NON-CASH INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Capital expenditures incurred, but not yetpaid ..................... $ 4340 % 6,587 § 2,780
OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Cash paid during the year for income taxes ............cooviiiien-. $ 58573 % 19,636 $ 12354
Cash paid during the year forinterest ............... ... A 26 % 67 3% 119

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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THE GYMBOREE CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 2, 2008, FEBRUARY 3, 2007, AND JANUARY 28, 2006

BALANCE AT JANUARY 29,
2005
Issuance of common stock under
equity incentive and purchase
plans
Share-based compensation ..........
Tax benefit from exercise of stock
options
Translation adjustments and unrealized
net loss on cash flow hedges, net of
tax
Net income

Comprehensive income

BALANCE AT JANUARY 28,

2006 ...
Issuance of common stock under

equity incentive and purchase

plans ...... ... il
Share-based compensation
Stock repurchases . ......... ... ...
Tax benefit from exercise of stock

options and windfall tax benefits . ..
Translation adjustments and unrealized

net loss on cash flow hedges, net of

tax

BALANCE AT FEBRUARY 3,

2007 ...
Adoptionof FIN48 ...............
Issnance of common stock under

equity incentive and purchase

plans ........ ... ... ...
Share-based compensation
Stock repurchases ....... ... ..., ..
Tax benefit from exercise of stock

options and windfall tax benefits ...
Translation adjustments and unrealized

net loss on cash flow hedges, net of
tax

BALANCE AT FEBRUARY 2,
2008

(Dollars in thousands)

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Accumulated
Additional Other Total
Common Stock Paid In  Retained Comprehensive Comprehensive
Shares Amount Capital Earnings Income/(Loss)  Total Income
31,112,066 31 66,707 150,915 (247) 217,406
1,662,794 2 18,821 18,823
316 316 /7
5476 5,476
(628) (628) % (628) b
33,684 33,684 33,684 =
$33,056 ;3
- T
%
32,774,860 33 91,320 184,599 (873) 275,077
2,292,402 2 28,299 28,301 \ L
10,619 10,619
(3,277.654) (3 (9,244) (100,752) (109,999)
11,577 11,577
(98) 8 3 (98
60,250 60,250 60,250
$60,152
31,769,608 32 132,571 144,097 (973) 275,727
(2,325) (2,325)
1,247,334 1 6,576 6,577
16,381 16,381
4,672737)  (8) (19.485) (154,763) (174,253)
3,941 3941
1916 1,916 5 1916
80,331 80,331 80,331
$82,247
28,344,205 328 $139984 $§ 067,340 5 943 $ 208,295




THE GYMBOREE CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Nature of the Business

The Gymboree Corporation is a specialty retailer operating stores selling high-quality apparel, accessories
and play programs for children. As of February 2, 2008, the Company conducted its business through five
primary divisions: Gymboree, Gymboree Qutlet, Janie and Jack, Crazy 8, and Gymboree Play & Music. The
Company operates two reportable segments, retail stores and Gymboree Play & Music (see Note 9). As of
February 2, 2008, the retail segment operated a total of 786 retail stores, including 754 stores in the United Siates
(565 Gymboree stores, 82 Gymboree Outlet stores, 93 Janie and Jack shops, and 14 Crazy 8 stores), 30 stores in
Canada and 2 stores in Puerto Rico, as well as three online stores at www. gymboree.com, www.janieandjack.com,
www.crazy8.com.

Gymboree Play & Music offers children ages newborn to 5 years the opportunity to explore, learn and play
in an innovative parent-child program. Gymboree Play & Music offers an array of classes developed by early
childhood experts, as well as birthday parties and developmental toys, books and music. As of February 2, 2008,
Gymboree Play & Music programs included three Company-operated play centers in California and 556
franchisee-operated play centers, of which approximately 48% are located in the United States.

Fiscal Year

The Company’s year-end is on the Saturday closest to January 31. Fiscal 2007, which included 52 weeks,
ended on February 2, 2008. Fiscal 2006, which included 53 weeks, ended on February 3, 2007. Fiscal 2005,
which included 52 weeks, ended on January 28, 2006. . -

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements include The Gymboree Corporation and its subsidiaries, all of which
are wholly owned (the “Company”). All significant intercompany balances and transactiens have been eliminated
in consolidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates,

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents consist of highly liquid investment instruments with a maturity of three months or less at
date of purchase.

Marketable Securities

Marketable securities primarily consisted of auction rate securities, which the Company normally liquidates
no later than 49 days from purchase in an auction process. These securities were held as available-for-sale.
Unrealized gains and losses were not material as of February 3, 2007.
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Accounts Receivable

‘The majority of the Company’s accounts receivable are due from major credit card companies and are
collected within 5 days. Also included in accounts receivable are amounts due from Gymboree Play & Music
franchisees for royalties and consumer product sales, as well as amounts due from landlord construction
allowances. Royatlties are due within 30 days of each calendar quarter-end and receivables from consumer
product sales are generally due upon shipment. Construction allowance receivable due dates vary, The Company
estimates its allowance for doubtful accounts by considering a number of factors, including the length of time
accounts receivable are past due and the Company’s previous loss history. The provision for doubtful accounts
receivable is included in selling, general and administrative expenses. A summary of activity in the allowance for
doubtful accounts is as follows:

Dollars in thousands Fiscal 2007  Fiscal 2006  Fiscal 2005
Balance at beginning of year . .......... ... . . . $274 $322 5192
Provision for doubtful accounts receivable .. .. .. ... ... .. ... ... ..., 326 67 283
Accounts written off .. ... L (102) (115) (153)
Balance at end OF YEAF .. ... . ..ot i $ 498 $274 $322
Concentrations

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist of cash
and cash equivalents and marketable securities. At times, cash balances held at financial institutions are in excess
of federally insured limits.

Estimated Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents, marketable securities, receivables, and payables
approximates their estimated fair values due to the short maturities of these instruments.

Merchandise Inventories

Merchandise inventories are recorded under the lower of cost or market method, determined on a weighted-
average basis. The Company reviews its inventory levels in order to identify slow-moving merchandise and
broken assortments (items no longer in stock in a sufficient range of sizes) and reduces prices to sell that
merchandise. The Company takes a physical count of inventories in all stores once a year, and in some stores
twice a year. The Company performs cycle counts of inventory for its retail distribution center and enline stores
throughout the year. The Company records an inventory shrink adjustment upon physical counts and aiso
provides for estimated shrink adjustments for the period between the last physical inventory count and each
balance sheet date. Our inventory shrink estimate can be affected by changes in merchandise mix and changes in
actual shrink trends,

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the
estimated wseful lives of the assets, which range from approximately three to 25 years, except for the Company’s
distribution center in Dixon, California, which has a useful life of 39 years. Leasehold improvements, which
inchide internal payroll costs for employees dedicated to real estale construciion projects, are amortized over the
lesser of the applicable lease term, which range from five to 13 years, or the estimated useful life of the
improvements. Software costs are capitalized in accordance with Statement of Position 98-1, “Accounting for the
Costs of Computer Software Developed or Obtained for Internal Use,” and are amortized using the straight-line
method based on an estimated useful life of three to 7 years. Construction in progress was $9.4 million and $10.1
million as of February 2, 2008 and February 3, 2007, respectively.
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Asset Impairment

Long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable. If the undiscounted future cash flows from the long-lived
assets are less than the carrying value, a loss is recognized equal to the difference between the carrying value and
the fair value of the assets. Decisions to close a store or facility can also result in accelerated depreciation over
t1e revised useful life. For locations to be closed, which are under long-term leases, the Company records a
charge for lease buyout expense or the difference between its rent and the rate at which it expects to be able to
sublease the properties and related costs, as appropriate. Most closures occur upon the lease expiration. The
estimate of future cash flows is based on historical experience and typically third-party advice or market data.
However, these estimates can be affected by factors such as future store profitability, real estate demand and
economic conditions that can be difficull to predict.

Asset Retirement Obligations

An asset retirement obligation represents a legal obligation associated with the retirement of a tangible long-
lived asset that is incurred upon the acquisition, construction, development or normal operation of that long-lived
asset. The Company recognizes asset retirement obligations in the period in which they are incurred, if a
reasonable estimate of fair value can be made. The asset retirement obligation is subsequently adjusted for
changes in fair value. The associated estimated asset retirement costs are capitalized as part of the carrying
amount of the long-lived asset and depreciated over its useful life. The Company’s asset retirement obligations
relate to restoration provisions in leases for retail store locations and the Company’s corporate offices and are not
significant.

Income Taxes

The Company provides for income taxes in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes” (“SFAS 109”). SFAS 109 requires the recognition of deferred tax
liabitities and assets for the expected future tax consequences of temporary differences between the financial
statement carrying amounts and the tax bases of assets and liabilities. The Company maintains valuation
allowances when it is more likely than not that all or a portion of a deferred tax asset will not be realized.
Changes in valuation allowances from period to period are included in the tax provision in the period of change.
In determining whether a valuation allowance is warranted, the Company takes into account such factors as prior
earnings history, expected future earnings, carryback and carryforward periods, and tax strategies that could
potentially enhance the likelihood of realization of a deferred tax asset. The Company is subject to periodic
audits by the Internal Revenue Service and other taxing authorities. These audits may challenge certain of the
Company’s tax positions such as the timing and amount of deductions and allocation of taxable income to the
various tax jurisdictions. Income tax contingencies are accounted for in accordance with FASB Interpretation
No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes” (“FIN 487), and may require significant management
judgment in estimating final outcomes. Actual results could materially differ from these estimates and could
significantly affect the effective tax rate and cash flows in future years.

Lease Rights

Lease rights are costs incurred to acquire the right to lease a specified property and are recorded at cost and
amortized over the term of the lease, starting at the time the Company takes physical possession of the property.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets include costs incurred to register trademarks and service marks. These asscts have been
assigned an indefinite life and are reviewed for impairment on an annual basis. Intangible assets approximated
$0.8 million and $0.6 million as of February 2, 2008 and February 3, 2007, respectively.
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Rent Expense

Many of the Company’s operating leases contain free rent periods and predetermined fixed increases of the
minimum rental rate during the initial lease term. For these leases, the Company recognizes the related rental
cxpense on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease, starting at the time the Company takes physical
possession of the property.

Construction Allowance

As part of many lease agreements, the Company receives construction allowances from landlords. The
construction allowances are included in deferred rent and other liabilities and are amortized as a reduction of rent
expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease, starting at the time the Company takes physical
possession of the property. Construction allowances of $8.3 million, $6.0 million and $6.0 million were granted
in fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2003, respectively.

Workers' Compensation Liabilities

The Company is partially self-insured for workers’ compensation insurance. The Company records a
liability based on claims filed and an actuarially determined amount of claims incurred, but not yet reported. This
liability approximated $1.8 million and $2.0 million as of February 2, 2008 and February 3, 2007, respectively.
Any actuarial projection of losses is subject to a high degree of variability due to external factors, including
future inflation rates, litigation trends, legal interpretations, benefit level changes and claim settlement patterns.
If the actual amount of claims filed exceeds our estimates, reserves recorded may not be sufficient and additional
accruals may be required in future periods.

Foreign Currency Translation

Assets and liabilities of foreign subsidtaries are translated into United States dollars at the exchange rates
effective on the balance sheet date. Revenues, costs of sales, expenses and other income are translated at average
rates of exchange prevailing during the year. Translation adjustments resulting from this process are recorded as
other comprehensive income within stockholders’ equity. Foreign currency translation adjustments related to the
discontinued United Kingdom and Ireland entities have been recognized as foreign exchange losses upon
substantial liquidation of those entities in fiscal 2005, and are included in losses from discontinued operations in
the accompanying consolidated statements of income (see Note 2) for fiscal 2006 and fiscal 2005.

Store Preopening Costs

Store preopening costs are expensed as incurred.

Advertising

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising expense, including costs related to direct mail
campaigns, totaled approximately $18.2 million, $12.6 million and $6.4 million in fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005,
respectively.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized at the point of sale in retail stores, Online revenue is recorded when the Company
estimates merchandise is delivered to the customer. Customers generally receive merchandise within a few days
of shipment. Sales are presented net of a sales return reserve. Shipping fees received from customers are included
in net sales and the associated shipping costs are included in cost of goods sold. The Company also sells gift
cards in its retail store locations and through its websites. Revenue is recognized in the period that the gift card is
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redeemed. The Company recognizes unredeemed gift card balances over three years old as other income,
Customers may earn Gymbucks and redeem them for merchandise at a discount during the redemption period.
One-haif of the Gymbucks coupon value is earned by customers when the minimum purchase requirement ts met
curing the earning period, and the other half is earned when the additional purchase requirement is met during
the redemption period. A liability is recorded for all Gymbucks earned, but not redeemed within an accounting
period. Net retail sales include revenue from the Company’s co-branded credit card (see Note 10). The Company
presents taxes collected from customers and remitted to governmental authorities on a net basis {excluded from
revenues).

For the Gymboree Play & Music operations, initial franchise and transfer fees for all sites sold in a territory
are recognized as revenue when the franchisee has paid the initial franchise or transfer fee, in the form of cash
and/or a note payable, the franchisee has fully executed a franchise agreement and the Company has substantially
completed its obligations under such agreement. The Company receives royaliies based on each domestic
franchisee’s gross receipts from operations and based on fees paid by international sub-franchisees to the master
franchisee. Such royalty fees are recorded when earned. The Company also recognizes revenues from consumer
products and equipment sold to franchisees at the time the products or equipment are shipped to the franchisees.

A summary of activity in the sales return reserves is as follows:

E'oflars in thousands Fiscal 2007 Fiscal 2006 Fiscal 2005
Balance at beginningof year ........ .. .. . $ 1,754 % 1,534 § 1,503
Provision forsales tetumns . ... . oottt e e e e e 22,444 19,274 17,416
ACtual sales TBIUINS . ..ot e e (22,452)  (19,054) (17,385)
Balance atend of year . ... .. .. .. . o i $ 1,746 $ 1,754 $ 1,534

Share-Bused Compensation

Had the Company recorded compensation expense for its equity incentive plans and the Employee Stock
Furchase Plan based on the fair value method consistent with the method of SFAS 123, income from continuing
cperations and income from continuing operations per share would have been as follows for fiscal 2005:

Year Ended January 28,
2006

(In thousands, except per share data)

Iacome from continuing operations, asreported . ....... ..., ... ... . .. ... $38,199
Add: Share-based employee compensation expense, net of related tax
5§ =" £ 197

Deduct: Total share-based employee compensation expense determined under
fair value based method, for awards granted or settled, net of related tax
el eCts . e (3,351)

Pro forma income from continuing operations ... .................... $35,045

Eiasic income from continuing operations per share

ASTEPOItEd . .. i e 5 121

Proforma ... ... e 1.11
[iiluted income from continuing operations per share

ASTEPOTIEG . ...ttt e $ 119

Proforma ... ... e 1.09

Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income consists of net income, foreign currency translation adjustments and fluctuations in
the fair market value of certain derivative financial instruments and is shown in the consolidated statements of
s:ockholders’ equity.
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Derivative Instruments

SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” (“SFAS 133"), as
amended, requires that each derivative instrument be recorded on the balance sheet as either an asset or liability
and measured at its fair value. SFAS 133 also requires that changes in the derivative’s fair value be recognized in
earnings or accumulated other comprehensive income, depending on whether the derivative qualifies for hedge
accounting treatment. The Company enters into forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge certain inventory
purchases. The term of the forward exchange contracts is generally less than one year, The purpose of our foreign
currency hedging activities is to protect the Company from the risk that the eventual dollar margins resulting
from inventory purchases will be adversely affected by changes in exchange rates. Accumulated other
comprehensive income includes approximately $125,000 in unrealized losses and $112,000 in unrealized gains
related to hedging activity as of February 2, 2008 and February 3, 2007, respectively. Amounts recognized in
other comprehensive income are amortized to cost of sales over a three month period.

Income Per Share

Basic income per share is calculated by dividing net income for the year by the number of weighted-average
common shares outstanding for the year. Diluted income per share includes the effects of dilutive instruments,
such as stock options and restricted stock, and uses the average share price for the period in determining the
number of incremental shares that are to be added to the weighted-average number of shares outstanding.

The following table summarizes the incremental shares from potentially dilutive securities, calculated using
the treasury stock method:

Year Ended
February 2, Febrvary 3, Januvary 28,
2008 2007 2006
{In thousands)
Shares used to compute basic EPS ......... ... ... ... ... ..., 28,797 31,647 31.485
Add: effect of dilutive securities . .........cooenirinn .. 1,236 1,452 693
Shares used to compute diluted EPS ... ........ ... ... ... ........... 30,033 33,099 32,178

Share-based awards excluded from the computation of weighted-average shares due to their anti-dilutive
effect totaled 13,579, 29,954 and 2,058,245 in fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS 157, “Fair Value Measurements,” which establishes a single
authoritative definition of fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosure of
fair value measurements, SFAS No. 157 only applies to fair value measurements that are already required or
permitied by other accounting standards and accordingly, will not require any new fair value measurements. The
Company will adopt SFAS 157 as of the beginning of fiscal 2008. We do not expect the adoption of SFAS
No. 157 to have a material impact on our consolidated financial position, results of operations, or cash flows.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities—Including an amendment of FASB Statement No. 115.” SFAS No. 159 permits companies
to measure many financial instraments and certain other items at fair value at specified election dates and report
unrealized gains and losses on items for which the fair value option has been elected in earnings at each
subsequent reporting date. The Company will adopt SFAS 159 as of the beginning of fiscal 2008. We do not
expect the adoption of SFAS No. 159 to have a material impact on our consolidated financial position, results of
operations, or cash flows.
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2. Discontinued Operations

On QOctober 4, 2006, the Board of Directors authorized the Company to proceed with the closure of its
Taneville division (17 stores), as a result of the division’s inability to achieve the level of financial performance
expected by management and the desire to focus existing resources on other opportunities. All Janeville stores
closed in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006. The Company closed its Gymboree operations in the United Kingdom
and Ireland (collectively “Europe” operations} in fiscal 2004, The results of the Europe and Janeville operations
have been presented as discontinued operations in the accompanying financial statements for fiscal years 2006
and 2005. Results of the Europe and Janeville operations in fiscal 2007 are insignificant and are included in
continuing operations.

Results from discontinued operations, net of income tax, were as follows:

Year Ended February 3, 2007

Janeville  Europe Total
(In thousands)
Nt rtA] SALES & v vt e et et e e e e e $13069 $§ — 313,069
[ncome (loss) from discontinued operations .................. ... ... $(17,538) $ 132 $(17,406)
income tax benefit {expense} . ... ... ... .. i 6,792 (287) 6,505
Loss from discontinued operations, net of income tax ...................... $(10,746) § (155 $(10,901)

Year Ended January 28, 2006
Janeville  Europe Total

{1n thousands)
et Tetai] SAlES . . ottt e e e $10961 $§ — $ 10961
Income (loss) from discontinued Operations ................veeuireaeeeans $ (8,490) $1,130 $ (7.360)
Income tax benefit (expense) ... ... .. .. i e 3,185 (340) 2,845
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of incometax ............... $ (5,305) § 790 $ (4,515

Losses for the Janeville division in fiscal 2006 included operating losses, as well as approximately $6.8
million for asset impairment, $4.8 million for lease disposition costs, $0.8 million for the cancellation of certain
purchase commitments, and $0.3 million for employee severance. Losses from the Janeville division in fiscal
2005 represent results of operations. [ncome generated from the United Kingdom and Ireland entities in fiscal
2005 primarily represents the favorable resolution of lease terminations in connection with the liquidation of the
entities, and is partially offset by legal and accounting fees, as well as foreign exchange losses primarily related
to the recognition of cumulative translation adjustments.

3. Commitments and Contingencies’

The Company leases its retail store locations, corporate headquarters, and certain fixtures and equipment
under operating leases. The leases expire at various dates through fiscal 2019. Store leases typically have 10-year
terms and include a cancellation clause if minimum revenue levels are not achieved during a specified 12-month
period during the lease term. In most cases, leases are structured with a minimum rent component plus a
percentage rent based on the store’s net sales in excess of a certain threshold. Substantially all of the leases
require the Company to pay insurance, utilities, real estate taxes, and common area repair and maintenance
expenses.
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Future minimum lease payments under operating leases at February 2, 2008 are as follows:

Fiscal M
2008 e $ 89,532
2000 e 80,760
20 L e 75,433
200 e 73,339
20 e 68,865
Later Years ... ..ot e s 237,410

7 $625,339

Rent expense for all operating leases totaled $87.3 million, $75.5 milliont and $69.5 million in fiscal 2007,
2006 and 2003, respectively, which includes common area maintenance expenses, real estate taxes, utilities,
percentage rent expense and other lease required expenses of $31.4 million, $27.1 million and $24.6 million for
fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Percentage rent expense was approximately $0.8 million, $0.8 million
and $0.4 million in fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

The Company is subject to various other legal proceedings and claims arising in the ordinary course of
business. Management does not expect that the resuits in any of these legal proceedings, either individually or in
the aggregate, would have a material adverse effect on our financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

4. Borrowing Arrangements

The Company has an unsecured revolving credit facility for borrowings of up to $120 million. Borrowings
available under this credit facility may not exceed $100 million from and after April 2, 2008. The credit facility,
which expires in August 2008, may be used for the issuance of documentary and standby letters of credit,
working capital and capital expenditure needs. The interest rate for each borrowing under the facility will be, at
the option of the Company, a base rate plus an additional marginal rate (a total of 6.0% as of February 2, 2008) or
the Eurodollar rate plus an additional marginal rate (a total of 4.65% as of February 2, 2008). This credit facility
requires the Company to meet financial covenants on a quarterly basis, limits annual capital expenditures,
restricts the payment of dividends, and limits stock repurchases. As of February 2, 2008, the Company was in
compliance with these covenants. As of February 2, 2008, there were no outstanding borrowings and $52.9
million of documentary and standby letters of credit were outstanding. The maximum amount of documentary
and standby letters of credit outstanding during the fiscal year was $75.0 million.

Total interest expense charged to operations during fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005 was approximately $0.2
million, $0.2 million and $0.3 million, respectively.

5. Accrued Liabilities

Accrued liabilities consist of the foliowing:

February2,  February3,

2008 2007
(In thousands)
Store operating expenses and other ............. .. ... oL, $25,061 $27,167
Employee compensation . ..... ... i e 20,168 19,393
Gift card liabilities and merchandise credits .. .......... ... ... ...... 17,378 13,231
Deferred revenue related to Gymboree Visa program .................. 5,683 3,996
SalES LAXES . ...t e e e 1,992 2,547
Ot oo e e $70,282 $66,334




6.  Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes consists of the following:

Current:

Deferred;

Federal . .ot ti i e e e e e e

Total provision (benefit):

Continuing OPerations . .. ... vttt cnee i
Discontinued Operations . .......... ...l

2007 2006 2005
(In thousands)
$52,844 $41,990 $17,662

71,570 7422 2,451
2,905 1,766 126
63,319 51,178 20,239
(10,777 (3.861) 4,383
(43)  (4,935) 838
616 (727) —
(10,206) (9,523) 5,221
$ 53,113 $41,655 $25,460
$53,113 $41,655 $25,460
—_— 6,505) (2,845)
$ 53,113 $35,150 $22.,615

A reconciliation of the statutory federal income tax rate with the Company’s effective income tax rate for

continuing operations is as follows:

Statutory federal rate . ... .. .. . i e
State income taxes, net of income tax bepefit ... ........ .. ... ....
Favorable settlement of certain state tax uncertainties ...............
Increase (decrease) in valuation allowances ... ....................
Reconciliation to prior year returns andother ........... ... ... ..

Bl eCtive LAX FAIE . o ot v ottt ettt e e e e et e e et e e

2007 2006 2005
350% 35.0% 350%
4.5 42 29

(0. —_ —
0.2) 3.2) 0.5
42 09 6
BI®  69%  400%

The amount of pre-tax income attributable to foreign operations for fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005 was $12.0

miilion, $10.0 million and $4.9 million, respectively.
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Temporary differences and carryforwards, which give rise to deferred tax assets and liabilities, are as
follows:

February 2, February 3,
2008 2007

{In thousands)

Deferred tax assets;

Inventory valuation ............. i, $ 4,644 § 2,660
Defermed revenie . o i e e 10,816 5510
ACCTUCH TE8 VS o vttt ettt et e et et 12,198 6,016
Deferred rent . ..o ot e 6,850 6,571
State net operating loss carryforwards .. ..., ... ... oL 2,070 3,547
O e .o 2,520 68
39,098 24,372
Deferred tax liabilities:
Prepaid expenses .. ...ttt e (1,632 (1,353) 3
SEAE TAXES .. vveeee e e (L158)  (1,346) o
Fixed asset basis differences ... ... ..ot n .. (1,516) (2,575) 3-_2
ONET . e et (1,923) (564) 3
6229  (5.838) L@
TOAl .. e e 32,869 18,534 e
Valuation allowance . ....... .. e (189) (526)
Net deferred [ax asSels ..o oo vttt et e e e e $32.680 $18,008

Using its best estimates, the Company has recorded a valuation allowance of $189,000 at February 2, 2008
on certain of its deferred tax assets including state net operating losses as it is more likely than not that they will
not be realized. As of February 2, 2008, the Company has state net operating loss carryovers of approximately
$46.9 million for tax purposes. These net operating loss carryovers will expire between 2008 and 2024. The
utilization of such net operating losses may be subject to a substantial annual limitation due to any future
“changes in ownership” as defined by Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and
similar state and foreign provisions. Should the Company become subject to this annual limitation, it may result
in the expiration of the net operating loss carryovers before utilization.

The adoption of FIN 48 as of February 4, 2007 (the first day of fiscai 2007) resulted in the recognition of a
$2.3 million decrease to retained earnings. As of February 2, 2008 the Company had unrecognized tax benefits of
$6.9 million. A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax benefits follows ({in
thousands):

(In thousands)

Balance at February 4, 2007 .. .. ... ... . . . . . . $ 6,946
Increases based on tax positions related to the current year . .............. 1,224
Increases based on tax positions related to prioryears ................... 570
Decreases based on tax positions related toprior years .................. (241)
Tax settlements . ... .. oo e (1,752)
Lapsed statutes of limitations ................ e (138)
Increases based on currency translation adjustments .................... 265
Balance at February 2, 2008 .. ... .. ... ... . ... . .. e $ 6,874

All unrecognized tax benefits at February 2, 2008, will reduce the Company’s effective tax rate if
recognized in future periods. )
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The Company recognizes interest and penalties on income taxes in income tax expense. Income tax expense
in fiscal 2007 included a benefit of $147,000 related to interest expense on income taxes, and included a benefit
of $324,000 related to penalties on income taxes. As of February 2, 2008, the Company had a liability for interest
on income taxes of $1.6 million and a liability for penalties on income taxes of $475,000.

The Company does not anticipate that total unrecognized tax benefits will significantly change prior to the
end of fiscal 2008.

The Company and its domestic subsidiaries file income tax returns with federal, state and local tax
authorities within the United States. The Company’s foreign affiliates file income tax returns in various foreign
jurisdictions, the most significant of which is Canada. The Company's tax years for 2004, 2005 and 2006 are
subject to examination by the tax authorities. With few exceptions, the Company is no longer subject to United
States federal, state, local or foreign examinations by tax authorities for tax years before 2004.

7. Stockholders’ Equity
Stock Plans

Effective January 29, 2006, the Company adopted SFAS 123(R) using the modified prospective transition
method. Under this transition method, compensation cost for (1) all share-based payments granted prior to, but
not vested as of January 28, 2006, is based on the grant date fair value estimated in accordance with the original
pro forma footnote disclosure provisions of SFAS 123, and (2) all share-based payments granted subsequent to
January 28, 2006, is based on the grant date fair value estimated in accordance with the provisions of SFAS
123(R). The Company recognizes compensation expense on a straight-line basis for options and awards with
time-based service conditions, and on an accelerated basis for awards with performance conditions.

Share-based compensation expense is included as a component of selling, general and administrative
expenses and consists of the following:

Year Ended
February 2, February 3,
2008 2007

(in millions)
BLOCK OPUIONS . . . o ettt et e e e 326 $ 7.0%
Restricted stock awards and units ... ... ... e e 134 33
Employee stock purchase plan . ... ... ... . e 0.4 0.3
B 10 71 25 SR PO 5164 510.6

* Share-based compensation expense for fiscal 2006 included a charge of $2.2 million related to the retirement
of the Company’s former Chairman and Chief Creative Officer (see Note 11).

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007, the Company identified an error in its accounting for restricted stock
awards with performance conditions that were granted earlier in fiscal 2007. As a result, an adjustment of
approximately $3.2 million to increase seiling, general and administrative expense was recorded to correct the
amortization method the Company used to recognize compensation expense for such restricted stock
awards. Performance-based restricted stock awards are required to be amortized on an accelerated basis (treating
each vesting tranche of a performance award as a separate award with its own requisite service period) compared
to the straight-line method the Company had used during the first three quarters of fiscal 2007. The Company
recorded this adjustment in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007 as the amounts were not material to the results of any
prior quarter of fiscal 2007.




The Company recognized an income tax benefit related to share-based compensation expense of
approximately $3.8 and $3.4 million for fiscal 2007 and 2008, respectively {including approximately $0.8 million
in fiscal 2006 related to the retirement of the Company’s former Chairman and Chief Creative Officer discussed
in Note 11).

Prior to the adoption of SFAS 123(R), the Company presented all benefits of tax deductions resulting from
the exercise of share-based compensation as operating cash flows in the Statements of Cash Flows. SFAS 123(R)
requires the benefits of tax deductions in excess of the compensation cost recognized for those awards (excess
tax benefits) to be classified as financing cash flows. For fiscal 2007 and 2006, the Company reported $3.3 and
$8.5 million, respectively, in excess tax benefits as a financing cash inflow.

Equity Incentive Plan

The Company’s 2004 Equity Incentive Plan (the “2004 Plan”), provides for grants to employees of incentive
stock options within the meaning of Section 422 of the Internal Revenue Code, for grants of non-statutory stock
options to employees, consultants and non-employee directors of the Company, and for grants of other types of
equity incentive compensation, such as restricted stock and restricted stock units. There are 3,702,867 shares of
common stock currently reserved for issuance under the 2004 Plan. There were 281,136 shares available for the
grant of awards under the 2004 Plan at February 2, 2008. The Company’s policy is to issue new shares for
restricted stock awards, upon exercise of stock options, on payment of restricted stock units, and for purchases
under the 1993 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (“Purchase Plan”).

Stock Options
The following table summarizes stock option activity during fiscal 2007, 2006, and 2005:

Weighted
average
Weighted remaining Aggregate
Number of shares average exercise contractual life intrinsic value
(im thousands) price per share (in years) (in thousands)
Ouistanding at January 29,2005 ............. 5,234 $13.98
Granted ......... e 1,004 13.93
Exercised ............ .. ... .. ... (1,589) 11.69
Forfeited ............ ..o, 431) 14.86
Expired ......... .. ..o i i, ﬁ) 17.31
Outstanding at January 28,2006 ............. 3,871 $14.51
Granted . ........ . ..o 21 23.45
Exercised .........cciiiiiiii i (1,848) 14.92
Forfeited ....... ... .. ... ... .. .. .. .. ... (220) 14.17
Expired ...... ... ... . (24) 22.15
Outstanding at February 3,2007 ............. 1,800 $14.13
Exercised ......... .00, (359) 15.09
Forfeited .......... ... .. civiiiinia. (69) 14.13
Expired ... ... ... ... . (3) 10.32
QOutstanding at Febroary 2,2008 ... .. . 1,369 $13.89 6.24 $34,129
Vested and Expected to Vest at February 2,
2008 (1) . .o 1,352 $13.86 @ $33,719
Exercisable at February 2,2008 .. ............ 993 $13.94 5.91 $24,701

(1) The expected to vest options are the result of applying the pre-vesting forfeiture rate assumptions to total
unvested options outstanding.
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Options granted pursuant to the 2004 Plan have been granted at exercise prices equal to the fair market
value of common stock on the date of grani. The options have a term of ten years and generally vest over a four-
vear period.

The fair value of option grants issued under equity incentive plans and rights to purchase shares under the
Purchase Plan are estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option valuation model. For purposes of
this model, no dividends have been assumed. Expected stock price volatilities are estimated based on the
Company’s historical volatility. The risk-free interest rates are based on United States Treasury yields in effect at
the time of the grant for notes with comparable terms as the awards. The expected term of options granted is
based on analyses of historical employee termination rates and option exercises, giving consideration to
expectations of future employee behavior. The expected term of rights to purchase shares under the Purchase
Plan is based on the length of the purchase petiod. Assumptions used in the Black-Scholes valuation model are
presented below:

Year Ended

February 2, February3, January 28,

2008 2007 2806
BExpected dividendrate .......... ... ... i 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
IExpected volatility—Stock options ............. ... . .ol N/A 42.3% 45.6%
Expected volatility—Purchase Plan . .............. .. ...l 46.2% 42.3% 45.5%
Risk-free interest rate—Stock OpLONS . .. ... .o i e N/A 4.6% 3.3%
Risk-free interest rate—Purchase Plan . .. ......... ... ... ... . ... 4.0% 4.8% 3.7%

Expected lives (years)—Stockoptions . ............ . ..ol N/A 4.1 40

BExpected lives (years)—Purchase Plan . ................ ..., 0.50 0.67 0.50

The weighted-average fair value per share of options granted during fiscal 2006 and 2005 were $9.26, and
$5.53, respectively. The total intrinsic value of options exercised during fiscal 2007, 2006, and 2005 were $8.6
million, $33.0 million, and $15.1 million, respectively.

As of February 2, 2008, there was $2.0 million of total unrecognized compensation cost, before income
iaxes, related to nonvested stock options, that is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 1.
years.

—

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding at February 2, 2008:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Weighted
Average Weighted Weighted
Remaining Average Number Average
Range of Number Contractual Exercise Exercisable Exercise

Exercise Prices of Shares Term {Years) Price As of 2/2/08 Price

$ 281 $11.49 88,350 33 $ 6.66 79,684 $ 6.14
11.50 11.66 279,292 6.8 11.66 179,005 11.66
11.77 12.24 227,891 7.1 12.13 126,195 12.13
12.39 13.66 153,308 7.0 13.00 101,454 13.00
13.72 15.70 137,597 54 15.14 126,160 15.15
15.73 15.73 500 4.6 15.73 500 15.73
15.76 15.76 147,196 55 15.76 147,196 15.76
15.80 17.02 180,067 6.8 16.86 102,742 16.83
17.07 22.68 138,046 6.0 18.38 119,737 18.24
2291 27.06 17,026 4.8 25.02 10,650 25.64
5 2.81 to $27.06 1,369,273 6.2 $13.89 993,323 313.94
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Restricted Stock and Restricted Stock Units

Restricted stock has the same voting rights as other common stock and are issued and outstanding shares.
Restricted stock units do not have voting rights, and the underlying shares are not considered to be issved and
outstanding until vested. Restricted stock and restricted stock units generally vest over a four-year period. The
fair values of restricted stock and restricted stock units are based on the fair value of the Company’s common
stock on the date of grant.

In fiscal 2007, the Company granted 800,668 shares of restricted stock and 115,200 restricted stock units,
including 790,000 shares of restricted stock and 91,500 restricted stock units that are subject to performance
based vesting for fiscal 2007. Measurement of Company performance conditions will determine the total number
of restricted shares and restricted stock units that could ultimately vest over four years for these performance
awards. The satisfaction of the performance conditions will be finally determined during the first quarter of fiscal
2008 based on fiscal 2007 results. In fiscal 2006, the Company granted 590,915 shares of restricted stock and
restricted stock units, 280,000 of which were subject to performance conditions satisfied in fiscal 2006, The
Company also granted 50,000 shares of restricted stock with time-based service conditions in fiscal 2005.

D

STV

Restricted stock award activity during fiscal 2007, 2006, and 20035 is summarized as follows:

Restricted Stock Awards

Weighted average grant

Number of shares date fair value per - /
(in thousands) share LA
Nonvested at January 29,2005 ................... ... ..o 50 $12.60 |
Granted . ... 50 13.19 ‘
Nonvested at January 28,2006 ........ . ............. ... ....... 100 12.90 \ - -
Granted .. ... . e 391 22.41
Vested . .. e e 25) 12.60
Nonvested at February 3,2007 . ........... ... .. ... ... ......... 466 20.90
Granted . . ... e e e 801* 36.89
VEsted . .ot e e e e (138) 20.02
Nonvested at February 2,2008 . ................ ... .. .......... 1,129 32.35

* Restricted stock granted in fiscal 2007 included 790,000 shares subject to performance conditions for fiscal
2007, which will determine the total number of shares that could ultimately vest over four years. The Company
cancelled 329,167 of these shares in March 2008, as the related performance targets were not met.

As of February 2, 2008, there was $12.7 million of unrecognized compensation cost, before income taxes,

related to nonvested restricted stock awards, which is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period
of 1.7 years.
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The following table summarizes restricted stock unit activity during fiscal 2007 and 2006:

Restricted Stock Units

Weighted average
Number of shares grant date fair
(in thousands) value per share

INonvested at January 28,2006 ... ......... ... ... ... iiiiiiann — $} —

Granted . .. oot e e 200 24.65
Forfeited . ..ottt e e 9 27.19
Nonvested at February 3, 2007 .. .. ........ .. ... . i 191 24,53
Granted .. ..t 115% 40.16
RT3 =1 P AR 47 37.73
Borfeited ... ..ttt e s 22) 35.38
Nonvested at February 2,2008 . .................. ... ... .. ..., 237 28.49

* Restricted stock units granted in fiscal 2007 included 91,500 units subject to performance conditions for fiscal
2007, which will determine the total number of restricted stock units that could ultimately vest over four years.
The satisfaction of the performance conditions will be finally determined during the first quarter of fiscal 2008
based on fiscal 2007 results.

As of February 2, 2008, there was $4.0 million of unrecognized compensation cost, before income taxes,
related to nonvested restricted stock units, which is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of
2.0 years.

1993 Employee Stock Purchase Plan

We have reserved a total of 1,025,278 shares of common stock for issuance under the 1993 Employee Stock
Purchase Plan (the “Purchase Plan™). The price at which stock is purchased under the Purchase Plan is equal to
§5% of the fair market value of the common stock on the first day of the applicable offering period or the last day
of the applicable purchase period, whichever is lower. There were 39,636, 34,105 and 23,852 shares issued under
tae Purchase Plan in fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. As of February 2, 2008, there was approximately
$185,000 of unrecognized compensation cost, before income taxes, related to the Purchase Plan, which is
expected to be recognized in fiscal 2008,

§. 401(k) Plan

The Company maintains a voluntary defined contribution 401(k) profit-sharing plan (the “Plan") covering
employees who have met certain service and eligibility requirements. Employees may elect to contribute up to
100% of their compensation to the Plan, not to exceed the dollar limit set by law. The Company contributes
$1.00 to the Plan for each $1.00 contributed by an employee, up to 4% of the employee’s salary. The Plan
permits employees to invest in the Company’s common stock with a limitation of 20% of their total investment.
There are restrictions for certain employees trading Company stock. Matching contributions to the Plan totaled
approximately $2,315,000, $2,196,000 and $1,467,000 in fiscal 2007, 2006 and 20035, respectively.
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9. Segments

The Company has two reportable segments: retail stores and Gymboree Play & Music. The retail stores
segment includes four brands which sell high-quality apparel: Gymboree (including an online store), Gymboree
Qutlet, Janie and Jack (including an online store), and Crazy 8 (including an online store). Corporate overhead
(costs related to our distribution center and shared corporate services) is also included in the retail stores
segment. The Company attributes revenues to individual countries based on selling location. The following Lable
provides the summary financial data of each reportable segment excluding discontinued operations (in
thousands):

Year ended February 2, 2008

Retail

Stores Play & Music Total
Nt Sales ..ot e e e e $909,410  $11,404  $920,814
Depreciation and amortization .. .......... ... . . . i e, 30,704 447 31,151
Operating inCOME . ... ... .. i e ee i eiaaenens 126,743 3,502 130,245
Total 85818 ... it e e 391,642 5,542 397,184
Capital expenditures ... ... ottt it 68,681 113 68,794

Year ended February 3, 2007

Retail

Stores Play & Music Total
Nl SalES - . oottt e e e e e $781,172  $10466  $791,638
Depreciation and amortization ... .......... . . i urneeecnnecnran., 27.308 451 27,759
Operaling iNCOME . ... ..o e e 103,285 2,879 106,164
Y T 450,208 3,874 454,082
Capital expenditures .. ......... ... .. . . i 38,586 96 38,682

Year ended January 28, 2006

Retail

Stores Play & Music Total
T AT Y -1 $656,546 $10,946  $667,492
Depreciation and amortization ... .......... .. . i 27,703 493 28,196
Operating inCoOme ... ... ... . i i i 58,899 2,954 61,853
Total ASSEES ..ottt e e e 405,857 5,768 411,625
Capital expenditures ... ... .. . .. e 27,796 402 28,198

Net retail sales from our Canadian subsidiary amounted to $41.3 million, $33.0 million and $27.5 million in
fiscal 2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively. Long-lived assets held by our Canadian subsidiary amounted to $3.1
million and $2.3 million as of February 2, 2008 and February 3, 2007, respectively.
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10. Co-Branded Credit Card

The Company has co-branded credit card agreements (the “Agreements™) with a third-party bank (the
“Bank™} and Visa U.S.A. Inc. for the issuance of a Visa credit card bearing the Gymboree brand and
zdministration of an associated incentive program for cardholders. The program offers incentives to cardholders,
including a 5% discount on purchases from Gymboree using the Gymboree Visa card and rewards in the form of
¢. Gymboree gift card equal to 1% of total non-Gymboree purchases. The Bank is the sole owner of the accounts
issued under the program and absorbs all losses associated with non-payment by the cardholder and any
fraudulent usage of the accounts by third parties. The Company is responsible for redeeming the incentives,
including the issuance of any gift cards. The Bank pays fees to the Company based on the number of credit card
azccounts opened and card usage and makes certain guaranteed minimum annual payments. Visa U.5.A. Inc. also
pays fees to the Company based on card usage. Cardholder incentives are funded from the fees paid by the Bank
to the Company. The Company recognizes revenues related to the Agreements as follows:

«  New account fees are recognized as retail revenues on a straight-line basis over the estimated life of the
credit card relationship, currently estimaied to be three years.

»  Credit card usage fees are recognized as retail revenues as actual credit card usage occurs.

«  Minimum guaranteed annual payments, which exceed amounts earned based on the number of
accounts opened and card usage, are recognized as retail revenues on a straight-line basis over the
estimated life of the credit card relationship, currently estimated to be three years.

»  Rewards earned are recorded as gift card liabilities and recognized as retail revenues when the gift
cards are redeemed.

During fiscal 2007, fiscal 2006 and fiscal 2005, the Company recognized approximately $8.6 million, $5.6
million, and $2.7 million in new account and credit card usage fees, respectively. These fees are included in net
retail sales in the accompanying consolidated statements of income. As of February 2, 2008 and February 3,
2007, zero and $0.1 million in advance payments, $5.7 million and $3.9 million in current deferred revenue, and
$0.4 million and $0.7 million in gift card liabilities, respectively, are included in accrued liabilities in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Other long-term liabilities include deferred revenue of $2.9 million
and $2.5 million as of February 2, 2008 and February 3, 2007, respectively.

1. Retirement of Chairman and Chief Creative Officer

On July 20, 2006, the Company’s former Chairman and Chief Creative Officer retired from the Company.
As a result, the Company recorded a charge of approximately $3.7 million, before income taxes, in selling,
izeneral, and administrative expenses in fiscal 2006 related to cash compensation ($1.5 million) and accelerated
+esting of certain stock options ($2.2 million).

12. Common Stock Repurchases

Pursuant to authorization from the Board of Directors, the Company repurchased and retired 4,672,737
shares of Company stock at an aggregate cost of approximately $174.3 million, or approximately $37.28 per
share, in fiscal 2007 and 3,277,654 shares of Company stock at an aggregate cost of approximately $110.0
million, or approximately $33.55 per share, in fiscal 2006, :
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13. Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited)

The quarterly financial information presented below is derived from the Consolidated Statements of Income.

Fiscal 2007 Quarter Ended

May 5, August4, November 3, February2, 2007
2007 26007 2007 2008 * Total
{In thousands, except per share amounts)
Net sales
Retail ......... ... i $206,721 $179854 $247.569  $275,266 $909.410
Play & Music .......................... 2,579 2,500 3,163 3,162 11,404
Totalnetsales .......................... 209,300 182,354 250,732 278,428 920,814
Grossprofit ........... i, 103,800 80,213 124,712 134,069 442794
Operatingincome ......................cvu... 33.607 8,476 44,398 43,764 130,245 T
Income from continuing operations, net of tax . . . . . 20,855 5,802 26,895 26,779 80,331 (
Netincome .............ccoveiiiiiinnei.... 20,855 5,802 26,895 26,779 30,331 ’
Basic netincome pershare ................. ... 0.70 0.20 0.94 0.98 279 o
Diluted net income pershare .................. 0.67 0.19 0.91 0.93 2.67 1 \,
L
Fiscal 2006 Quarter Ended L
April 29, July 29,  October 28, February 3, 2006 P
2006 2006 2006 2007 Total X \j
{In thousands, except per share amounts) : 7
Net sales ;
Retail ... ... $183,036 $149,643 $209,987 $238,506 $781,172 :
Play& Music .......................... 2,767 2,481 2,708 2,510 10,466 k
Totalnetsales .......................... 185,803 152,124 212,695 241,016 791,638
Grossprofit ........ ... i, 90,309 65,251 108,658 120,240 384,458
Operating income (loss) ...................... 28,475 (183) 39.862 38,010 106,164
Income from continuing operations, net of tax . . . . . 18,612 1,160 24,602 26,777 71,151
Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax ... .. (729 616) (7,185) (2,371) (10,501
Netincome .......... ... ... .. ..cciiiiiinns 17,883 544 17,417 24,406 60,250
Basic income per share from continuing
OPETAtONS ...ttt 0.57 0.04 0.79 0.86 2.25
Basic loss per share from discontinued
OPErations . ... ...cvviirreerinnnnannnnnns (0.02) (0.02) 0.23) (0.08) (0.34)
Basic netincome pershare .................... 0.55 0.02 0.56 0.78 1.90
Diluted income per share from continuing
OPErations .......ovvvunniininniinnnnnenes 0.55 0.04 0.75 0.82 2.15
Diluted loss per share from discontinued
OPErations . .......cconitiniuneeiaianennn (0.02) (0.02) 0.22) (0.07) (0.33)
Diluted net income per share .................. 0.53 0.02 0.53 0.75 1.82

*  In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007, the Company identified an error in its accounting for restricted stock
awards with performance conditions that were granted earlier in fiscal 2007. As a result, an adjustment of
approximately $3.2 million to increase selling, general and administrative expense was recorded 1o correct
the amortization method the Company used to recognize compensation expense for such restricted stock
awards. Performance-based restricted stock awards are required to be amortized on an accelerated basis
(treating each vesting tranche of a performance award as a separate award with its own requisite service
peniod) compared to the straight-iine method the Company had used during the first three quarters of fiscal
2007. The Company recorded this adjustment in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007 as the amounts were not

material to the results of any prior quarter of fiscal 2007.
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURES

None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company conducted an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of the Company’s
management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Operating Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of
the effectiveness of the design and operation of its disclosure controls and procedures (as such term is defined in
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act™)) as
of the end of the period covered by this report. There are inherent limitations to the effectiveness of any system
of disclosure controls and procedures, including the possibility of human error and the circumvention or
overriding of the controls and procedures. Accordingly, even effective disclosure controls and procedures can
oaly provide reasonable assurance of achieving their control objectives. Based on the Company’s evaluation, the
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Operating Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that the Company’s
disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of the end of the period covered by this report to ensure that
information relating to the Company (including its consolidated subsidiaries) required to be included in the
Company’s reports filed or submitted under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported
within the time periods specified in Securities and Exchange Commission rules and forms. In addition, the
Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Operating Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded as of the
period covered by this report that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures are also effective to ensure
tkat information required to be disclosed in the Company’s reports filed or submitted under the Exchange Act is
accumulated and communicated to the Company’s management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Operating Officer and Chief Financial Officer, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

The management of The Gymboree Corporation is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate
internal control over financial reporting as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f} under the Exchange Act, The
Company’s internal control system is designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles.

Because of inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prévent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Management has assessed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of
February 2, 2008. In making this assessment, management used the criteria established in Internal Control—
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.
Management believes that, as of February 2, 2008, the Company maintained effective internal control over
financial reporting based on the criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

The Company’s independent registered public accounting firm has issued a report on the Company’s
in:ernal control over financial reporting. That report appears herein on page 28.
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Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

During the Company’s fourth fiscal quarter, there was no change in the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting that materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.

PART I11

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference to the sections entitled “Proposal
One: Election of Directors,” “Board Meetings and Board Committees,” “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership
Reporting Compliance” and “Other Information™ in our 2008 Proxy Statement. See also ltem 1, “Business—
Executive Officers of the Registrant.”

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference (o the sections entitled #2007
Director Compensation Table,” “Compensation Committee Repon,” “Compensation Discussion and Analysis,”
“Executive Compensation™ and “Termination of Employment and Change-of-Control Arrangements and
Employment Contracts” in our 2008 Proxy Statement.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference to the sections entitled “Security
Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Directors and Management” and “Equity Compensation Plan
Information” in our 2008 Proxy Statement.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference to the section entitled “Board
Membership and Director Independence™ and “Certain Relationships and Related Person Transactions” in our
2008 Proxy Statement.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference to the section entitled
“Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm Fees and Services” in our 2008 Proxy Statement.
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PART IV

I'TEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
(A)(1) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following documents are filed as a part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm . ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... 28
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of February 2, 2008 and February 3,2007 _........... ... ... ... .00 30
Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended February 2, 2008, February 3, 2007, and January 28,

2000 e e e e 31
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended February 2, 2008, February 3, 2007, and

January 28, 2006 .. .. e e e e e 32
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders® Equity for the years ended February 2, 2008, February 3, 2007,

and January 28, 2006 . . . ... e 33
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements .. ... . oottt i e e e e 34

(AX2) FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

Financial statement schedules have been omitted because they are not required or are not applicable.

(A)(3) EXHIBITS

Exhibit
Number Description
31 Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Registrant. (1)
32 Amended and Restated Bylaws of Registrant. (12)
4.1 Article Il of Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Registrant {See Exhibit 3.1). (1)
4.2 Form of Certificate for Common Stock. (1)
10.8 California Uniform Franchise Offering Circular, including form of Franchise Agreement. (1)

10.31* Amended and Restated 1993 Stock Option Plan, with form of Stock Option Agreement, amended
and restated as of November 11, 1998. (2)

10.50* 2002 Stock Incentive Plan. (3)

10.51* 1993 Amended and Restatied Employee Stock Purchase Plan. (18)
10.52* Management Severance Plan. (4)

10.53* Management Severance Plan (Lump Sum Payment). (4)

10.54* Management Change of Control Plan. (4)

10.55 Credit Agreement with Bank of America dated August 11, 2003, (5)
10.57 Sublease Agreement for 500 Howard Street, San Francisco, CA. (6)
10.58* 2004 Equity Incentive Plan. (10)

10.59* Form of Stock Option Grant for 2004 Equity Incentive Plan. (7)

10.60 Waiver and First Amendment to Credit Agreement. (7)
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Exhibit
Number

Description

10.61*
10.62*
10.63*
10.67*
10.68*
10.70
10.71
10.73
10.74
10.76*
10.77

10.78
10.79*
10.80*
10.81%
10.82
10.83
10.84
10.85
10.86*
21.1
23.1
311
31.2
32.1

322

Terms of Compensation Arrangement for Blair W. Lambert. (25)

Restricted Stock Award Notice and Agreement for Blair W. Lambert dated January 10, 2005. (8)
Stock Option Grant Notice and Agreement for Blair W. Lambert dated January 10, 2005. (8)
Key Terms of Compensation Agreement for Matthew K. McCauley. (25)

Key Terms of Compensation Agreement for Kip M. Garcia. (25)

Second Amendment to Credit Agreement dated July 27, 2005. (%)

Third Amendment to Credit Agreement dated March 30, 2006. (11)

Form of Indemnification Agreement. (17)

Fourth Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated July 5, 2006. (13)

Summary of Non-Employee Director Compensation. (14)

Standard Form of Agreement between Owner, The Gymboree Corporation, and Design/Builder,
Panattoni Construction, Inc., dated September 11, 2006. (15)

Fifth Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated February 7, 2007. (16)

Form of Restricted Stock Award Notice and Agreement. (19)-

Key Terms of Compensation Agreement for Marina Armstrong. (25)

Amended Key Terms of Compensation Agreement for Lynda Gustafson,

Sixth Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated April 24, 2007. (20)

Seventh Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated June 12, 2007. (21)

Eighth Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated July 31, 2007. (22)

Ninth Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated November 21, 2007. (23)

Bonus Plan for Fiscal 2007. (24)

Subsidiaries of the Registrant,

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm,

Certification of Matthew K. McCauley Pursuant 1o §302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
Certification of Blair W, Lambert Pursuant 1o §302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of Matthew K. McCauley Pursuant to 18 U.S.C.§1350, as Adopted Pursuant to §906 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley of 2002,

Certification of Blair W, Lambert Pursuvant to 18 U.8.C.§1350, as Adopted Pursuant to §906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley of 2002.

(1) Incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed with the Commission
on February 18, 1993 (File No. 33-58322), as amended.

(2) Incorporated by reference to the corresponding exhibits to the Registrant’s 2000 Annual Report on Form

- 10-K filed with the Commission on May 4, 2001.

(3) Incorporated by reference to the corresponding exhibits to the Registrant’s August 3, 2002 Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q filed with the Commission on September 17, 2002.
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(4) Incorporated by reference to the corresponding exhibits to the Registrant’s May 3, 2003 Quarterly Report on
Form §0-Q filed with the Commission en June 16, 2003.

(¢) Incorporated by reference to the corresponding exhibits to the Registrant’s August 2, 2003 Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q filed with the Commission on September 11, 2003.

(¢) Incorporated by reference to the corresponding exhibits to the Registrant’s May 1, 2004 Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q} filed with the Commission on June 9, 2004.

(7) Incorporated by reference to the corresponding exhibits to the Registrant’s October 30, 2004 Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q filed with the Commission on December 8, 2004,

(&) Incorporated by reference to the corresponding exhibits to the Registrant’s January 10, 2005 Current Report
on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on January 13, 2005.

(9 Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on August 1, 2005,

(10) Incorporated by reference to the corresponding exhibit to the Registrant’s October 28, 2006 Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q filed with the Commission on December 5, 2006.

(11) Incorporated by reference to the corresponding exhibit to the Registrant’s January 28, 2006 Annual Report
on Form 10-K filed with the Commission on April 2, 2006,

(12) Incorporated by reference to the corresponding exhibit to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on April 23, 2007.

(1.3) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.73 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on July 14, 2006.

(:.4) Incorporated by reference to the corresponding exhibit to the Registrant’s July 29, 2006 Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q filed with the Commission on September 5, 2006.

(..5) Incorporated by reference to the corresponding exhibit to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 11, 2006.

(.6) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.74 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on February 8, 2007.

(17) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.72 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on June 19, 2006.

(18) Incorporated by reference to Appendix C to the Registrant’s definitive proxy statement on Schedule 14A
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on May 2, 2006.

(19) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on June 15, 2005.

(20) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.82 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on April 26, 2007.

(1) Incorporated by reference to the corresponding exhibit to the Registrant’s May 5, 2007 Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q filed with the Commission on June 12, 2007.

(22) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.84 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on August 2, 2007,

(23) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.85 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on November 29, 2007,

(24) Incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form 8-K filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on February 15, 2007.

(25) Incorporated by reference to the corresponding exhibit to the Registrant’s February 3, 2007 Annual Report
on Form 10-K fited with the Commission on Apni 2, 2007.

*  Indicates management contracts or compensatory plans or arrangements required to be filed as exhibits to
this report on Form 10-K.
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THE GYMBOREE CORPORATION
SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant
has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

THE GYMBOREE CORPORATION

March 27, 2008 By: /s/ MATTHEW K. MCCAULEY

(Date) Matthew K. McCauley
Chief Executive Officer and
Chairman of the Board

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this Report has been signed below by
the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

NAME

/s/ MATTHEW K. McCAULEY

Matthew K. McCauley

/s BLAIR W, LAMBERT

Blair W. Lambert

/8! LyNDA G. GUSTAFSON

Lynda G. Gustafson

Is/ GarRY M. HeIL

Gary M. Heil

fs/  WiLLIAM U. WESTERFIELD

William U. Westerfield

/s/ DANIEL R. LYLE

Daniel R. Lyle

/s! Jonun C. POUND

John C. Pound

“TITLE

Chief Executive Officer and Chairman

of the Board
(Principal Executive Officer)

Chief Operating Officer and Chief
Financial Officer
{Principal Financial Officer)

Vice President, Corporate Controller
(Principal Accounting Officer)
Director
Director

Director

Director
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March 27, 2008

March 27, 2008

March 27, 2008

March 27, 2008

March 27, 2008

March 27, 2008

March 27, 2008
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Exhibit
Mumber

THE GYMBOREE CORPORATION
EXHIBIT INDEX

Description

3.1
32
4.1
4.2
10.8
10.31*

10.50%
2051+
L0.52+*
10.53*
10.54*
10.55
10.57
10.58*
10.59*
10.60
10.61*
10.62*
10.63*
10.67*
10.68*
10.70
10.71
10.73
10.74
10.76*
10.77

10.78

Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Registrant. (1)
Amended and Restated Bylaws of Registrant. (12)

Articie 111 of Restated Cenrtificate of Incorporation of Registrant (See Exhibit 3.1). (1)

Form of Centificate for Common Stock. (1)
California Uniform Franchise Offering Circular, including form of Franchise Agreement. (1)

Amended and Restated 1993 Stock Option Plan, with form of Stock Option Agreement, amended ‘
and restated as of November 11, 1998. (2)

2002 Stock Incentive Plan. (3}
1993 Amended and Restated Employee Stock Purchase Plan. (18)
Management Severance Plan. (4)

Management Severance Plan (Lump Sum Payment). (4)

Management Change of Control Plan. (4}

Credit Agreement with Bank of America dated August 11, 2003. (5}

Sublease Agreement for 500 Howard Street, San Francisco, CA. (6)

2004 Equity Incentive Plan. (10)

Form of Stock Option Grant for 2004 Equity Incentive Plan. (7)

Waiver and First Amendment to Credit Agreement. (7)

Terms of Compensation Arrangement for Blair W. Lambert. (25)

Restricted Stock Award Notice and Agreement for Blair W. Lambert dated January 10, 2005. (8)
Stock Option Grant Notice and Agreement for Blair W. Lambert dated January 10, 2005. (8)
Key Terms of Compensation Agreement for Matthew K. McCauley. (25)

Key Terms of Compensation Agreement for Kip M. Garcia. (25)

Second Amendment to Credit Agreemeﬁt dated July 27, 2005. (%)

Third Amendment to Credit Agreement dated March 30, 2006. (11)

Form of Indemnification Agreement. (17)

Fourth Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated July 5, 2006. (13)

Summary of Non-Employee Director Compensation. (14)

Standard Form of Agreement between Owner, The Gymboree Corporation, and Design/Builder,
Panattoni Construction, Inc., dated September 11, 2006. (15)

Fifth Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated February 7, 2007. (16)
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Exhibit
Number Description

10.79* Form of Restricted Stopk Award Notice and'Agreemem. (19)

10.80* Key Terms of Compensation Agreement for Marina Armstrong, (25)

10.81* Amended Key Terms of Compensation Agreement for Lynda Gustafson.
10.82 Sixth Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated April 24, 2007. (20)

10.83 Seventh Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated June 12, 2007. (21)
10.84 Eighth Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated July 31, 2007. (22)
10.85 Ninth Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated November 21, 2007. (23)
10.86* Bonus Plan for Fiscal 2007. (24)

21.1
23.1
31.]
31.2
32.1

322

(M
2
)
(4)
(3
(6
(7}
8
€)
(10)
(1m
(12)
(13)

(14)

Subsidiaries of the Registrant,

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.

Certification of Matthew K. McCauley Pursuant to §302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
Certification of Blair W. Lambert Pursuant to §302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of Matthew K. McCauley Pursuant to 18 U.S.C.§1350, as Adopted Pursuant 1o §906 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley of 2002.

Certification of Blair W. Lambert Pursuant to 18 U.S.C.§1350, as Adopted Pursuant to §906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley of 2002,

Incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed with the Commission
on February 18, 1993 (File No. 33-58322), as amended.

Incorporated by reference to the corresponding exhibits to the Registrant’s 2000 Annual Report on Form
10-K filed with the Commission on May 4, 2001,

Incorporated by reference to the corresponding exhibits to the Registrant’s August 3, 2002 Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q filed with the Commission on September 17, 2002,

Incorporated by reference to the corresponding exhibits to the Registrant’s May 3, 2003 Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q) filed with the Commission on June 16, 2003.

Incorporated by reference to the corresponding exhibits to the Registrant’s August 2, 2003 Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q filed with the Commission on September 11, 2003.

Incorporated by reference to the corresponding exhibits 1o the Registrant’s May 1, 2004 Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q filed with the Commission on June 9, 2004.

Incorporated by reference to the corresponding exhibits to the Registrant’s October 30, 2004 Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q filed with the Commission on December 8, 2004.

Incorporated by reference to the corresponding exhibits to the Registrant’s January 10, 2005 Current Report
on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on January 13, 2005.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on August 1, 2005.

Incorporated by reference to the corresponding exhibit to the Registrant’s October 28, 2006 Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q filed with the Commission on December 5, 2006.

Incorporated by reference to the corresponding exhibit to the Registrant’s January 28, 2006 Annual Report
on Form 10-K filed with the Commission on April 12, 2006.

Incorporated by reference to the corresponding exhibit to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on April 23, 2007,

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.73 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on July 14, 2006. '

Incorporated by reference to the corresponding exhibit to the Registrant’s July 29, 2006 Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q filed with the Commission on September 5. 2006.
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(15) Incorporated by reference to the corresponding exhibit to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 11, 2006,

(16) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.74 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on February 8, 2007.

(17) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.72 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on June 19, 2006.

(18) Incorporated by reference to Appendix C to the Registrant’s definitive proxy statement on Schedule 14A
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on May 2, 2006.

(19} Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on June 15, 2005.

(20} Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.82 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on Aprii 26, 2007,

{21} Incorporated by reference to the corresponding exhibit to the Registrant’s May 5, 2007 Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q filed with the Commission on June 12, 2007.

{22) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.84 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on August 2, 2007.

(23) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.85 to the Registrant’s Cuzrent Report on Form 8-K filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on November 29, 2007.

{24) Incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form 8-K filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on February 15, 2007.

(25) Incorporated by reference to the corresponding exhibit to the Registrant’s February 3, 2007 Annual Report
on Form 10-K filed with the Commission on April 2, 2007.

*  Indicates management contracts or compensatory plans or arrangements required to be filed as exhibits to
this report on Form 10-K.
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The

GYMBORCE

Corporation

NOTICE OF
2008 ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

PROXY STATEMENT

2007 ANNUAL REPORT




GYMBORCE.

May 2, 2008

Dear Stockholder:

You are cordially invited to attend The Gymboree Corporation Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held
at 9:00 a.m. on Tuesday, June 10, 2008, at our principal executive offices located at 500 Howard Street, San
Francisco, California.

At the Annual Meeting, the following matters of business will be presented:

(1) election of three directors;

(2) an amendment to The Gymboree Corporation 2004 Equity Incentive Plan to authorize the issuance of
an additional 925,000 shares of the Company’s common stock;

(3) an amendment to The Gymboree Corporation 1993 Employee Stock Purchase Plan to authorize the
issuance of an additional 150,000 shares of the Company’s common stock;

{4) advisory vote on the appointment of Deloitte & Touche LLP as The Gymboree Corporation’s
independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending January 31, 2009; and

(5) transaction of any other business properly presented at the meeting.

We will also answer any refated questions you may have at that time. Detailed information as to the
business to be transacted at the Annual Meeting is contained in the accompanying Notice of Annual Meeting of
Stockholders and Proxy Statement.

Regardless of whether you plan to attend the Annual Meeting, it is important that your shares be voted.
Accordingly, we ask that you vole by telephone or Internet, as described in the accompanying Proxy Statement,
or sign and return your proxy card as soon as possible in the envelope provided.

Sincerely,

er=sm

Maithew K. McCauley
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer




GYMBORCE.

THE GYMBOREE CORPORATION
500 Howard Street
San Francisco, California 94105

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS
To Be Held June 10, 2008

TO THE STOCKHOLDERS OF THE GYMBOREE CORPORATION:

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual Meeting of Stockholders of The Gymboree Corporation, a
Delaware corporation (the “Company”™ or “Gymboree”), will be held on Tuesday, June 10, 2008, at 9:00 a.m.,
local time, at our principal executive offices located at 500 Howard Street, San Francisco, California. At the
Annual Meeting the following business matters will be presented:
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The foregoing items of business are more fully described in the Proxy Statement accompanying this Notice.

This Proxy Statement is being issued in connection with the solicitation of a proxy on the enclosed form by

election of three directors;

an amendment to The Gymboree Corporation 2004 Equity Incentive Plan to authorize the issuance of
an additional 925,000 shares of the Company’s common stock;

an amendment to The Gymboree Corporation 1993 Employee Stock Purchase Plan to authorize the
issuance of an additional 150,000 shares of the Company’s common stock;

advisory vote on the appointment of Deloitte & Touche LLP as The Gymboree Corporation’s
independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending January 31, 2009; and

transaction of any other business properly presented at the meeting.

the Board of Directors of the Company for use at the Annual Meeting. You are entitled to vote at the Annual

Meeting if you were a stockholder of record at the close of business on April 17, 2008. We will begin distributing

this Proxy Statement, a form of proxy and our 2007 Annual Report to Stockholders on or about May 2, 2008.

All stockhelders are cordially invited to attend the Annual Meeting in person. Regardless of whether

FOR THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Marina Armstrong
Secretary

Important Notice Regarding the Availability of Proxy Materials
for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on June 10, 2008.

This Proxy Statement and the 2007 Annual Report are available at:
http://ir.gymboree.com/annual.cfm

you plan to attend the meeting, please vote by telephone or Internet, as described in the accompanying
Proxy Statement, or complete, date, sign and return the enclosed proxy card as promptly as pessible in

order to ensure your representation at the meeting. A return envelope (which is postage prepaid if mailed

in the United States) is enclosed for that purpose. You may still vote in person if you attend the meeting,
even if you have given your proxy. Please note, however, that if a broker, bank or other nominee holds

your shares of record and you wish to vote at the meeting, you must obtain from the record holder a proxy

card issued in your name.
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THE GYMBOREE CORPORATION

2008 PROXY STATEMENT

INFORMATION CONCERNING SOLICITATION AND VOTING

General

The enclosed proxy is solicited on behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board™) of The Gymboree
Corporation (the “Company” or “Gymboree™) for use at the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held June 10,
2008, at 9:00 a.m., local time, or at any adjournment or postponement thereof, for the purposes set forth herein
and in the accompanying Notice of Annual Meeting of Stockholders. The Annual Meeting will be held at
500 Howard Street, San Francisco, California.

These proxy solicitation materials and our Annual Report to Stockholders for the fiscal year ended
February 2, 2008 (fiscal 2007), including financial statements, were mailed on or about May 2, 2008, to all
stockholders entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting.

Directions to Annual Meeting

Northbound on US-101 {follow signs to Bay Bridge/I-80 E} or westbound on I-80: take the Fremont Street
exit and Fremont Street ramp; turn onto Fremont Street and turn left onto Howard Street.

Southbound on US-101; follow US-101 along Lombard Street: turn left onto Van Ness Avenue; turn right
onto Bay Street; follow Bay Street to the end and turn right onto The Embarcadero; turn right onto Howard

Street.

The Gymboree Corporation is located on the northwest corner of the intersection of First Street and Howard
Street.

Record Date and Quorum

Stockholders of record at the close of business on April 17, 2008 (the “record date™), are entitled to notice of
and to vote their shares at the Annual Meeting. At the record date, 28,611,965 shares of the Company’s common
stock, $0.001 par value per share, were issued and outstanding. The common stock is listed for trading on The
NASDAQ Stock Market LLC under the symbel GYMB. The presence in person or by proxy of the holders of
record of a majority of the outstanding shares of common stock entitled to vote is required to constitute a quorum
for the transaction of business at the Annual Meeting.

How to Vote

Registered stockholders can vote by telephone, by the Internet or by mail, as described below. If you are a
beneficial stockholder, please refer to your proxy card or the information forwarded by your broker, bank or
other holder of record to see what options are available to you.

Registered stockholders may cast their vote by:

(1) Signing, dating and promptly mailing the proxy card in the enclosed postage-paid envelope;

(2) Accessing the Internet web site www.proxyvote.com and following the instructions provided on the
Web site (you will need to reference the control number identified on your proxy card); or

(3) Calling 1-800-690-6903 and voting by following the instructions provided.
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Vote Required, Abstentions and Broker Non-Votes

Each holder of record of common stock on the record date is entitled to one vote for each share held on all
matters to be voted on at the Annual Meeting,

If a quorum is present at the Annual Meeting, the candidates for director receiving the highest number of
affirmative votes will be elected. In an election of directors by plurality vote, abstentions have no effect, since
approval by a percentage of the shares present or outstanding is not required. Stockholders are not entitled to
cumulate votes for the election of directors.

The affirmative vote of a majority of the shares of common stock present in person or represented by proxy
at the Annual Meeting and voting, and also constituting a majority of the required quorum, is required for the
approval of Proposals 2, 3 and 4.

Brokers who hold shares for the accounts of their clients may vote such shares either as directed by their
clients or, in the case of “uninstructed shares,” in their own discretion if permitted by the stock exchange or other
organization of which they are members. Certain types of proposals are “non-discretionary,” however, and
brokers who have received no instructions from their clients do not have discretion to vote such uninstructéd
shares on those items. At this year's meeting, brokers will have discretion to vote uninstructed shares on
Proposals 1 and 4, but not on Proposals 2 and 3.

When brokers vote proxies on some but not all of the proposals at a meeting, the missing votes are referred
to as “broker non-votes.” Broker non-votes are counted as present for the purpose of determining the presence of
a quorum for the transaction of business, but they are not counted as shares voting. Thus, broker non-votes can
have the effect of preventing approval of certain proposals where the number of affirmative votes, though a
majority of the votes cast, does not constitute a majority of the required quorum. Broker non-votes could affect
the outcome of the vote on Proposals 2, 3 and 4.

Votes cast by proxy or in person at the Annual Meeting will be tabulated by the inspector of election
appointed for the Annual Meeting. The inspector of election will determine whether or not a quorum is present at
the Annual Meeting. The inspector of election will treat abstentions as shares of common stock that are present
and entitled to vote for purposes of determining the presence of a quorum. Therefore, abstentions will have the
effect of a vote “against” Proposals 2, 3 and 4,

Revocability of Proxies

Any proxy given pursuant to this solicitation may be revoked by the person giving it at any time before its
use by delivering to the Secretary of the Company at its principal offices as set forth above a wrilten notice of
revocation or a duly executed proxy bearing a later date or by atiending the Annual Meeting and voting in
person.

Proxy Solicitation

The expense of preparing, printing and mailing this Proxy Statement and the proxies solicited hereby will be
borne by the Company, which has retained Georgeson Inc., 199 Water Street, 26th Floor, New York, New York
10038, to aid in the solicitation of proxies, for fees of approximately $7,000, plus costs and reasonable expenses.
Proxies will be solicited by mail and may also be solicited by the Company’s directors, officers and other
employees, without additional remuneration, in person or by telephone, electronic mail or facsimile transmission,
The Company will also request brokerage firms, banks, nominees, custodians and fiduciaries to forward proxy
materials to the beneficial owners of shares of common stock as of the record date and will reimburse such
persons for the cost of forwarding the proxy materials in accordance with customary practice. Your cooperation
in promptly voting your shares and submitting your proxy by telephone, Internet or by completing and returning
the enclosed proxy card will help to aveid additional expense.
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PROPOSAL ONE: ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The Company’s bylaws provide for a Board that consists of not less than six (6) and no more than nine
(9) members, as may be fixed from time to time by the Board. The authorized number of directors is currently set
at seven, and the Board has six directors and a vacancy. The Board has determined to fill this vacancy through
the nomination of a new director as described below. The Company’s Restated Certificate of Incorporation and
the Company’s bylaws each provide that the directors will be divided into three classes, with the classes serving
for staggered, three-year terms. Currently there are two directors in each of Class 1, Class II and Ciass III.

Three Class III directors are to be elected at the Annual Meeting. The nominees for election at the Annual
Meeting as Class III directors are John C. Pound and William U. Westerfield, both incumbent directors, and
Michael J. McCloskey, a new director nominee. Mr. McCloskey was initially identified as a candidate for
director by our director Gary M. Heil. Mr. McCloskey was interviewed by all members of the Board. Based on
his interviews and qualifications, Mr. McCloskey was recommended as a nominee for director by the Nominating
and Governance Committee, and his nomination for election at the Annual Meeting was approved by the Board.

The term of each of the Class III directors elected at the Annual Meeting will expire at the Annual Meeting
of Stockholders in 2011 or when his successor has been duly elected and qualified. The term of each continuing
Class [ director will expire at the Annual Meeting of Stockholders in 2009. The term of each continuing Class II
director will expire at the Annual Meeting of Stockholders in 2010.

Unless otherwise instructed, the proxy holders will vote the proxies received by them for the Company’s
nominees named in the table below. Each nominee has consented to serve as a director of the Company if
elected, and management has no reason to believe the nominees will be unable to serve as directors. In the event
that a nominee of the Company becomes unable or declines to serve as a director at the time of the Annual
Meeting, the proxy holders wili vote the proxies for any substitute nominee who is designated by the current
Board to fill the vacancy.

THE COMPANY’S BOARD OF DIRECTORS UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS YOTING “FOR”
THE NOMINEES.

Nominees for Class I11 Directors Whose Terms Expire in 2011

Principal Occupation or Employment/Other Business Director
Name Affiliations Age Since
Michael J. McCloskey Director and Chief Executive Officer, FrontRange Solutions 49

Inc. Michael J. McCloskey has served as Chief Executive
Officer and a director of FrontRange Solutions Inc., a provider
of software solutions designed for medium enterprises, since
June 2003. Mr. McCloskey served as Chief Executive Officer of
Kana Software, Inc. {formerly Kana Communications, Inc.), a
company that develops, markets and supports customer
communication software products and services for e-businesses,
from June 1999 through January 2001.

John C. Pound President, Integrity Brands, Inc. John C. Pound has served as 53 2000
President and a director of Integrity Brands, Inc., a firm that
originates and oversees investments in specialty retail and
branded consumer products companies. He has held that
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Principal Occupation or Employment/Qther Business
Name Affiliations Age

Director
Since

position since July 1999. Mr. Pound manages The Integrity
Brands Fund L.P., a fund that makes investments in retail
companies. He served as Executive Chairman of RedEnvelope,
Inc., an online and cataiog gift retailer, from May 2007 to
March 2008 and as its Chief Executive Officer from November
2007 to March 2008. RedEnvelope filed for bankruptcy
protection on April 17, 2008, in connection with an asset
purchase agreement to sell substantially all of its assets and a
debtor-in-possession credit facility and toan agreement. Mr.
Pound has also served as Co-Chairman of Orange 21, a producer
of branded eyewear under the Spy Optic brand, since

QOctober 2006.

William U. Westerfield  Refired Partner, Price Waterhouse LLP. William U. 76
Westerfield retired as an audit partner of Price Waterhouse LLP
{now PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP), an accounting firm, in
1992, a firm he joined in 1956, becoming a partner in 1965,
Mr. Westerfield has served as a director and member of the
audit committee of West Marine, Inc., a boating supplies
retailer, since 2000, and as a director and chair of the audit
committee of Lifetime Brands, Inc., a designer, marketer and
distributor of houseware products, since 2003,

1994

Continuing Class Il Directors Whose Terms Expire in 2010

Principal Occupation or Employment/Other Business
Name Affiliations Age

Director
Since

Blair W. Lambert Chief Operating Officer and Chief Financial Officer, The 50
Gymboree Corporation. Blair W. Lambert has served as our
Chief Operating Officer and Chief Financial Officer since
January 2005. In August 2003, Mr. Lambert joined
[luminations.com, Inc., a candle and home decorating retailer,
as the Chief Financial Officer. He was named to the
IHuminations.com, Inc. Board of Directors in October 2003.
[luminations.com, Inc. filed for bankruptcy protection on
January 9, 2004. Mr. Lambert has been a vineyard owner since
October 2001 and, prior to becoming an officer of
Illuminations.com, was a private consultant for specialty retail
companies. Mr. Lambert served as the Chief Financial Officer
of Bebe Stores, Inc., a clothing retailer, from June 1996 through
October 2001. From 1988 to 1996, Mr. Lambert was employed
by Esprit de Corp., a wholesaler and retailer of junior and
children’s apparel, footwear and accessories, most recently
serving as Corporate Vice President of Finance. Mr. Lambert is
a Certified Public Accountant.

2003




Name

Principal Occupation or Employment/Other Business
Affiliations

Director
Agpe Since

Daniel R. Lyle

Retired Partner, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP. Daniel R. Lyle
retired as a partner of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an
accounting firm, in June 2003, a firm he joined in 1970.

Mr. Lyle has served as a director of Captaris, Inc., a provider of
business information delivery solutions, since May 2005.

62 2005

Continuing Class I Directors Whose Terms Expire in 2009

Name

Principal Occupation or Employment/Other Business
Affiliations

Director
Age Since

Matthew K. McCauley |

Chairman and Chief Executive Qfficer, The Gymboree
Corporation. Marthew K. McCauley has served as our Chief
Executive Officer since January 2006 and as Chairman of our
Board since July 2006. He joined the Company in July 2001 as
Director of Allocation and was named Vice President of
Planning and Allocation in 2003, Senior Vice President and
General Manager in February 2005, and President in June 2005.
Prior to joining the Company, Mr. McCauley served in a variety
of positions at The Gap, Inc., a clothing retailer, including
Planning Manager from 2000 to 2001 and Manager of Business
Solutions in 2001,

35 2005

Gary M. Heil

Business Advisor, Founder CFIL. Gary M. Heil has been a
business advisor for retailers and other service sector companies
on topics primarily related to customer loyalty and leadership
development since 1987. Mr. Heil served as Chief Marketing
and Strategy Officer of Safe Life Corporation, a manufacturer of
anti-microbial products, from December 2006 to January 2008.
In 2002, Mr. Heil co-founded the National Pitching Association,
an organization dedicated to helping young pitchers make better
choices in baseball and in life. In 1987, he co-founded the
Center for Innovative Leadership (“CFIL"), for which he
currently consults and lectures on topics including leadership,
customer loyalty, quality management and effective
organizational change processes. Mr. Heil is the author of many
business-related books, including Leadership and the Customer
Revolution, One Size Fits One and The Leader's New Clothes.

57 2003
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BOARD MEMBERSHIP AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The Company’s business affairs are managed under the direction of the Board. Directors meet their
responsibilities by participating in meetings of the Board and Board committees, through communications with
our Chief Executive Officer and other officers, by reviewing materials provided to them, and by visiting the
Company’s offices and other facilities.

During fiscal 2007, the Board held seven meetings. The committees of the Board held a total of 19
meetings. Each director attended at least 90% of the aggregate number of meetings of the Board and Board
committees on which he or she served, except for Mr. Pound, who attended 67% of such meetings. Mr. Pound’s
absences were primarily due to a family health situation. The directors nominated for re-election and each
director whose term will continue (as well as our new director nominee, if elected) are expected to attend the
Annual Meeting, absent unavoidable conflicts or extenuating circumstances. Last year, with the exception of
Mr. Pound. all directors serving at the time who were continuing or nominated for election attended the Annual
Meeting of Stockholders.

The Board annually determines the independence of directors, as well as that of any director nominees,
based on a review by the Board and the Nominating and Governance Committee, No director or director nominee
is determined to be independent unless the Board has determined that neither the director or director nominee,
nor an immediate family member of the director or director nominee, has had any direct or indirect material
relationship with the Company within the last three years. The Board has adopted the applicable independence
rules from the NASDAQ listing standards as our standards for independence and incorporated those into our
Corporate Governance Guidelines, which can be found on our website at www.gymboree.com by clicking on
“Our Company—Corporate Governance.”

In April 2008, the Board reviewed the responses of the directors and the new director nominee to a
questionnaire asking about their relationships with the Company (and those of their immediate family members)
and other potential conflicts of interest, as well as material provided by management related to transactions,
relationships or arrangements between the Company and the directors or the new director nominee or parties
related to the directors or the new director nominee. The Board reviewed whether any transactions or
relationships exist currently, or existed during the past three years, between each director or the new director
nominee, or certain family members of each director or the new director nominee, and the Company or its
subsidiaries and affiliates, senior management or their affiliates, equity investors or our independent registered
public accounting firm. As a result of this review, the Board has determined that the new director nominee and
all directors serving in fiscal 2007, except Mr. McCauley, who is the Company’s Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer, and Mr. Lambert, who is the Company’s Chief Operating Officer and Chief Financial
Officer, are independent (or, in the case of former director Barbara Rambo (who retired as a director effective
June 12, 2007), was independent) under the applicable standards described above. The Board also determined
that members of the Audit Committee, Compensation Committee and Nominating and Governance Commitiee
meet all applicable independence tests of the NASDAQ listing standards, Securities and Exchange Commission
(the “SEC™} and Internal Revenue Service.

The independent directors meet at least twice a year in executive sessions in conjunction with regularly
scheduled meetings of the Board.

BOARD MEETINGS AND BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has an Audit Committee, a Nominating and Governance Committee and a Compensation
Committee. Each committee operates pursuant to a written charter that is publicly available on the Company’s
website at www.gymboree.com by clicking on “Our Company—Corporate Governance.”
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The Audit Committee consists of Directors Lyle, as Chairman, Heil and Westerfield. Al members of the
Audit Committee possess the applicable financial literacy requirements of the Securities and Exchange
Commission and the listing standards for The NASDAQ Stock Market. The Board has determined that each of
Mr. Lyle and Mr, Westerfield is an “audit committee financial expert,” as that term is defined by the SEC. The
Audit Committee assists the Board in the oversight of the integrity of the Company’s financial statements, its
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements that relate to financial reporting matters, the independent
registered public accounting firm’s qualifications and independence, the performance of the Company’s internal
audit function and independent registered public accounting firm, compliance with the Company’s Code of
Ethics for its Chief Executive Officer and senior financial officers, and compliance with the Company’s Business
and Ethics Code of Conduct for all personnel. The Audit Committee also reviews and approves ail related-person
transactions—see “Certain Relationships and Related-Person Transactions” below. The Audit Committee held 11
meetings during fiscal 2007.

The Nominating and Governance Committee consists of Directors Pound, as Chairman, Heil and
Westerfield. The Nominating and Governance Committee is responsible for monitoring the composition of the
Board and, when appropriate, seeking, screening and recommending for nomination candidates for election to the
Board, including candidates for the Board submitted by stockholders in accordance with the procedures described
in *Other Information—Company Consideration of Stockholder-Recommended Director Nominees™ below. In so
doing, the Nominating and Governance Committee may evaluate a candidate’s decision-making abilities,
professicnal experience, relevant expertise, leadership qualities, industry knowledge, diversity, personal integrity
and reputation, among other qualifications. The Nominating and Governance Committee is also responsible for
evaluating the structure and practices of, and when appropriate, recommending new policies to, the Board,
including the Company’s Corporate Governance Guidelines. The Nominating and Governance Committee held
three meetings during fiscal 2007,

The Compensation Committee consists of Directors Heil, as Chairman, Pound and Westerfield. The
Compensation Committee generally oversees our compensation programs and policies. The Compensation
Committee is responsible for:

*  Determining the compensation of our Chief Executive Officer; /

*  Approving all other executive officers’ compensation, including salary and payments under the
Company’s bonus and incentive compensation programs; and

*  Administering all of the Company’s incentive compensation and other stock or stock-based plans.

In approving compensation for the Company’s executive officers, the Compensation Committee takes into
account the recommendations of the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and compensation consultants, as
described further in “Compensation Discussion and Analysis” below. The Compensation Committee held five
meetings during fiscal 2007.

S

Pursuant to its written charter. the Compensation Committee may delegate certain of its responsibilities, as k
it deems appropriate, to other committees of the Board or to Company officers. The Compensation Committee

has delegated authority to Matthew K. McCauley, the Company’s Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive

Officer, and Marina Armstrong, the Company’s Senior Vice President, Stores, Human Resources and Play &

Music and Secretary, the authority to make grants of stock options and restricted stock unit awards to Company

employees other than executive officers, within individual and aggregate share limits specified by the

Commitiee.



2007 DIRECTOR COMPENSATION TABLE

The following table sets forth information regarding compensation of the Company’s non-employee
directors for fiscal 2007, which consisted of the following components: cash compensation, consisting of annual
retainer fees, and equity compensation, consisting of annual restricted stock awards. Each of these components is
described in more detail below.

Fees Earned or Stock  Option
Paid in Cash Awards Awards

Name ($)(1) ($)2) (3} Total ($)
Gary M. Heil ..o $50,000 $46,772  $1,937 $ 98,709
Daniel R Lyle . ... 60,000 46,772 — 106,772
JohnC.Pound ............ccoiiiiiiiii 50,000 46,772 2,114 98,886
Barbara L. Rambo (4) .. .........oooiiiiiiiiia, 25,000 42,342 47216 71,558
William U. Westerfield .............................. 50,000 46,772 2,140 98,912

(1} This column reports the amount of cash compensation earned in fiscal 2007 for Board and committee
service.

(2) This column reports the dollar amount recognized for financial statement reporting purposes in accordance
with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123(R), which is referred to as SFAS 123R, with
respect to fiscal 2007 for the fair value of restricted stock awarded in fiscal 2007 and fiscal 2006. The
assumptions the Company used to calculate the fair value in accordance with SFAS 123R are set forth in
Note 7 to the Company’s consolidated financial statements included in the Company's Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended February 2, 2008; for fiscal 2006 awards, such assumptions are
included in the comparable footnote to the financial statements included in the annual report for fiscal 2006.
As required by SEC rules, the amounts reported have been adjusted to exclude the estimated effect of
service-based forfeiture assumptions used for financial reporting purposes. Each of the non-employee
directors (other than Ms. Rambo, who retired as a director effective June 12, 2007) was granted 2,667 shares
of restricted stock on June 12, 2007, with a grant date fair value of $109,960 calculated in accordance with
SFAS 123R. Each of Messrs. Heil, Lyle, Pound and Westerfield had 4,082 shares of unvested restricted
stock at fiscal 2007 year end. Ms. Rambo’s restricted stock is fully vested.

{3) This column reports the dollar amount recognized for financial statement reporting purposes in accordance
with SFAS 123R with respect to fiscal 2007 for the fair value of stock options previously granted to the
directors. The assumptions the Company used to calculate the fair value in accordance with SFAS 123R are
set forth in Note 7 to the Company’s consolidated financial statements included in the Company’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended February 2, 2008; for prior-year grants, such assumptions are
included in the comparable footnote to the financial statements included in the applicable fiscal year’s
annual report. As required by SEC rules, the amounts reported have been adjusted to exclude the estimated
effect of service-based forfeiture assumptions used for financial reporting purposes. The Company did not
grant any stock options to non-employee directors in fiscal 2007. The non-employee directors had the
following cutstanding option awards at February 2, 2008: Mr. Heil—15,937 shares, Mr. Lyle—15,000
shares, Mr. Pound--15,978 shares and Mr. Westerfield—479 shares. Ms. Rambo had no outstanding
options at February 2, 2008.

(4) Ms. Rambo retired from the Board effective June 12, 2007.

The Company uses a combination of cash and stock-based incentive compensation to attract and retain
qualified candidates to serve on the Board. In setting director compensation, the Company considers the
significant amount of time that directors expend in fulfilling their duties to the Company, as well as the skill level
required by the Company for members of the Board.
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{2}

The components of non-employee director compensation are set forth below. Directors who are employees
of the Company do not receive any compensation for their services as directors.

Effective as of
June 12, 2007

Annual Board retainer fee (except for the Chairman of the Audit Committee) .... $ 50,000(1)
Annual retainer fee for the Chairman of the Audit Committee .. ... ... .. ...... $ 60,000(0)
Annual automatic grant of shares of restricted stock of the Company ........... $110,000(2)

The annual retainer fee is paid on a quarterly basis on the first day of the fiscal quarter. In addition, the
Company reimburses non-employee directors for actual travel and out-of-pocket expenses incurred in
connection with their services. There are no additional fees for meeting attendance.

The annual automatic grant of Company restricted stock is granted upon such director’s initial election to
the Board and annually on the date of each annual meeting of stockholders thereafter. All shares of
restricted stock are granted under the Company’s 2004 Equity Incentive Plan, and the number of shares to
be granted is determined by dividing the cash value of the grant of shares of restricted stock by the closing
price for the Company’s common stock on that date as reported on The NASDAQ Stock Market LLC.
Shares subject to the restricted stock awards are subject to a forfeiture restriction that lapses with respect to
one-third of the shares per year. The forfeiture restriction will lapse on an accelerated basis upon retirement.

In addition to the foregoing, all directors receive discounts on Company merchandise and on participation in

Gymboree Play & Music programs.

SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT

The following tables set forth certain information known to the Company with respect to beneficial

ownership of the Company’s common stock as of April 7, 2008, by (i) each beneficial owner of more than 5% of
the common stock, (ii) each director and director-nominee, (iii) the Company’s Chief Executive Officer, Chief
Operating Officer and Chief Financial Officer, the three other most highly compensated executive officers
serving as executive officers at the end of fiscal 2007 with respect to whom compensation information is
disclosed in “Executive Compensation” below, and (iv} all current directors and executive officers as a group.
Except as otherwise indicated, each person has sole voting and investment power with respect to all shares shown
as beneficially owned, subject to community property laws where applicable. The number of shares outstanding
used in calculating the percentages for a person in the table below includes the shares underlying options held by
such person to the extent exercisable within 60 days of April 7, 2008, but excludes other shares underlying
options , Percentage of beneficial ownership is based on 28,609,533 shares outstanding as of April 7, 2008.

More than 5% Beneficial Stockholders

Amount and Nature

of Beneficial Percent of
Name and Address Ownership Class

Wellington Management Company, LLP 2,886,385 10.1%
75 State Street Boston, MA 02109 (1)

Buckingham Research Group Incorporated 1,716,435 6.0%
750 Third Avenue, Sixth Floor New York, New York 10017 (2)

Barclays Global Investors, N.A. 1,502,252 5.3%
45 Fremont Street San Francisco, California 94105 (3)

FMR LLC 1,472,069 5.2%
82 Devonshire Street Boston, Massachusetts 02109 (4)

The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation 1,456,473 5.1%

One Wall Street, 31st Floor New York, New York 10286 (5)

9.




Independent Directors and Director Nominees

Amount and Nature

of Beneficial Percent of
Name Ownership Class
Gary M. Heil{(6) ... .. .. .. .. . 15,727 *
Daniel R.Lyle (7) ... oo et 19,790 *
Michael J. McCloskey (8) .. ... .o it — —
John C.Pound (9) .. .o 20,768 *
William U, Westerfield (10} . ........ .. . ... ... ... .. ... 4,561 *
Named Executive Officers
Amount and Nature
of Beneficial Percent of
Name Ownership Class
Matthew K. McCauley (11) ... ... ... .. oot 633,261 2.2%
Blair W. Lambert (12) . . ... ... i 308,758 1.1%
KipM. Garcia(13) ... ... . i e 307,716 1.1%
Marina Armstrong (14) ...... .. .. . i i 390,121 1.4%
Lynda G.Gustafson {15) . ..... ... 11,278 *
All current directors and executive officers as a group
(10persons) (16} . ... . .. . . . e 1,728,655 5.9%

8]
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{4)

(5)

Less than 1%.

This information is derived from this stockholder’s Schedule 13G filed with the SEC on January 10, 2008,
Wellington Management Company, LLP filed the Schedule 13G and reported that, as of December 31,
2007, Wellington Management Company, LLP had shared voting power over 2,058,940 shares and shared
dispositive power over 2,886,385 shares.

This information is derived from this stockholder’s Schedule 13G filed with the SEC on February 12,
2008. Buckingham Research Group Incorporated filed the Schedule 13G with affiliated persons and
reported that, as of December 31, 2007, Buckingham Research Group Incorporated and the affiliated
persons had sole voting and dispositive power over 1,716,435 shares. Buckingham Research Group
Incorporated and the affiliated persons filed Amendment No. 1 to Schedule 13G with the SEC on
March 10, 2008, reporting that they beneficially owned 1,393,335 shares, which is less than 5% of our
outstanding common stock as of April 7, 2008.

This information is derived from this stockholder’s Schedule 13G filed with the SEC on February 5, 2008.
Barclays Giobal Investors, N.A. filed the Schedule 13G with affiliated persons and reported that, as of
December 31, 2007, Barclays Global Investors, N.A. and the affiliated persons had sole voting power over
1,142,615 shares and sole dispositive power over 1,502,252 shares.

This information is derived from this stockholder’s Schedule 13G filed with the SEC on February 14,
2008. FMR LLC filed the Schedule 13G with apparently affiliated persons and reported that, as of
December 31, 2007, FMR LLC and the affiliated persons had sole voting power over 250,200 shares and
sole dispositive power over 1,472,069 shares.

This information is derived from this stockholder’s Schedule 13G filed with the SEC on February 14,
2008. The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation filed the Schedule 13G and reported that, as of
December 31, 2007, The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation had sole voting power over 1,408,921
shares and sole dispositive power over 1,455,173 shares.

-10-




(6)

)

(8
&)

(1o

(1)
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(13)

(14)

(15}
(16)

Includes 10,937 shares underlying options that are exercisable within 60 days of April 7, 2008, and 4,082
unvested shares of restricted stock.

Includes 15,000 shares underlying options that are exercisable within 60 days of April 7, 2008, and 4,082
unvested shares of restricted stock.

Mr. McCloskey is a nominee for director, and did not beneficially own Company stock as of April 7, 2008.

Includes 15,978 shares underlying options that are exercisable within 60 days of April 7, 2008, and 4,082
unvested shares of restricted stock.

Includes 479 shares underlying options that are exercisable within 60 days of April 7, 2008, and 4,082
unvested shares of restricted stock. Excludes 708 shares held in a trust for which Mr. Westerfield’s wife is
the trustee and as to which Mr. Westerfield disclaims beneficial ownership.

Includes 158,854 shares underlying options that are exercisable within 60 days of April 7, 2008, and
410,833 unvested shares of restricted stock.

Includes 77,999 shares underlying options that are exercisable within 60 days of April 7, 2008, and
195,417 unvested shares of restricted stock.

Includes 30,208 shares underlying options that are exercisable within 60 days of April 7, 2008, and
250,000 unvested shares of restricted stock.

Includes 142,397 shares underlying options that are exercisable within 60 days of April 7, 2008, and
210,000 unvested shares of restricted stock.

Includes 8,239 shares underlying options that are exercisable within 60 days of April 7, 2008.

Includes 471,112 shares underlying options that are exercisable within 60 days of April 7, 2008 and
1,082,578 unvested shares of restricted stock.

QS
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SECTION 16(a) BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPLIANCE

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, requires the Company’s executive
officers, directors and persons who gwn more than 10% of a registered class of the Company’s equity securities
to file an initial report of ownership on Form 3 and changes in ownership on Form 4 or 5 with the SEC.
Executive officers, directors and greater than 10% stockholders are also required by SEC rules to furnish the
Company with copies of all Section 16(a) forms they file.

Based solely on the Company’s review of the copies of such forms received by the Company and written
representations from cerlain reporting persons, the Company believes that all such reports were filed on a timely
basis during fiscal 2007.

COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Compensation Committee of the Board is responsible for determining the compensation of our Chief
Executive Officer and approves all other executive officers’ compensation, including base salary and payments
under our bonus programs.

General Philosophy and Objectives

It is the philosophy of the Compensation Committee that executive compensation should be performance
based. Specifically, executive compensation should be directly linked to financial and business performance,
including increases in net income per diluted share and shareholder value. Consistent with our philosophy, we tie
a significant portion of senior executive compensation to our financial and business performance. We designed
our compensation policies to:

+  Align the interests of our executive officers with those of our stockholders;

+  Support a performance-oriented environment that recognizes individual performance as well as the
achievement of specific Company-wide goals; and

= Afttract, reward and retain highly qualified executives for long-term strategic management and the
enhancement of stockholder value.

We compensate our senior management, including the executive officers named in the compensation tables
below, principally through a mix of base salary, cash bonus and equity compensation designed to provide total
compensation at levels competitive with comparable companies with which we compete for executive talent.
Retirement plans and perquisites historically have not been significant components of our compensation
packages.

Targeted Total Compensation

Our compensation-setting process consists of targeting our Chief Executive Officer’s guaranteed
compensation at less than the fiftieth (50¢) percentile in comparison to the base compensation offered by
comparable companies, while providing the opportunity to earn total compensation commensurate with the
Company’s performance.

As a starting point for establishing targeted total compensation for our Chief Executive Officer for fiscal
2007, we benchmarked overall compensation levels using a peer group of companies selected by us in
consultation with our compensation consultant Radford Surveys and Consulting (Radford), a business unit of
Aon Corporation, which was retained primarily by the Compensation Committee. Radford’s engagement by the
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Compensation Committee was limited to providing this peer group information and related general compensation
level recommendations to the Committee in QOctober 2007. Radford also provided information regarding peer
group financial performance to the Company in November 2007. It did not otherwise provide services to the
Company or the Committee in fiscal 2007.

The peer group of comparable companies includes a cross-section of public companies in the retai! apparel
sector with annual sales, market capitalizations and/or ownership profiles comparable to ours. We review the
composition of the peer group on an annual basis. The companies in our primary peer group for fiscal 2007 were
Buckle, Chico’s, Coldwater Creek, Guess, Hot Topic, Pac Sun, Talbot’s, Tween Brands, Wet Seal, Limited
Brands, Men’s Wearhouse and Urban Outfitters. We also considered a secondary peer group consisting of Ann
Taylor, Casual Male, Charlotte Russe, J.Crew, Mother’s Work and United Retail Group.

In addition to the information provided by Radford, our annual review of compensation generally relies on
both quantitative and qualitative indicators of individual and company performance in determining total
compensation. These factors include the achievement of pre-established earnings targets (discussed in detail
below). expense ratios, store openings, performance relative to certain competitors, the achievement of business
objectives and strategic initiatives (particularly with respect to our more recently established operating divisions
such as Janie and Jack, Gymboree Qutlet and Crazy 8), the leadership exhibited by our key executive officers,
succession planning and the retention of our senior management team.

We followed a similar process with respect to establishing targeted total compensation for our other
executive officers, including our other named executive officers. The Compensation Committee determines the
compensation of the other executive officers in consultation with our Chief Executive Officer, who provides
recommendations to the Committee, OQur Chief Operating Officer and Chief Financial Officer also assists the
Compensation Committee in reviewing the impact of executive compensation programs and awards on our
financial performance.

Timing of Compensation Decisions

With the exception of significant promotions and new hires, we generally begin reviewing executive
compensation for each fiscal year in the fourth quarter of the prior fiscal year, with the goal of finalizing our
compensation early in the first quarter of the new fiscal year. The Compensation Committee approved final
compensation decisions and related equity grants for fiscal 2007 on February 10, 2007 for Messrs. McCauley,
Lambert and Garcia and Ms. Armstrong. The Compensation Committee approved final compensation decisions
and related equity grants for fiscal 2007 on April 5, 2007 for Ms. Gustafson in connection with the annuat
performance reviews of officers at or above the level of vice president. This timing enables us to consider our
prior-year performance and that of our executives, as well as our expectations for the current year. We prefer that
incentive awards are made as early as practicable in the year to ensure clarity and alignment with our strategic
goals for the year.

For fiscal 2008, the Compensation Committee approved final compensation and related equity grants for all
of our named executive officers on March 3, 2008 and April 1, 2008.

Components of Executive Compensation

As previously mentioned, we compensate our executive officers principally through a combination of base
salary, cash bonus and equity compensation. We believe that offering executive officers a total compensation
package that includes a significant portion of at-risk, performance-based awards aligns the interests of the
officers with those of our stockholders. Each of the components of executive compensation is discussed below,
but in general:

* Base salaries are set at less than the fiftieth {(50") percentile in comparison to our peer group;
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+  Annual cash bonuses are based on the achievement of pre-established earnings goals;

+ Long-term equity incentives are determined based on our assessment of the prior year’s performance of
our executives and the Company, as well as the achievement of pre-established earnings goals in the
current year, and vest over a period of years to encourage retention of our executive officers.

If the Company achieves what we believe to be aggressive but attainable “stretch” performance goals, the
combination of the annual cash bonuses and the long term equity incentives would place the total compensation
for each of our senior executives at approximately the seventy-fifth (75th) percentile.

Base Salaries

The first key component of executive compensation is base salary. We seek 1o provide our executive
officers with base salaries at less than the fiftieth (50') percentile of our peer group, We did not change base
salaries for fiscal 2007, other than modest increases for Ms. Armstrong and Ms. Gustafson.

We elected Mr. McCauley as our Chief Executive Officer on January 17, 2006. Mr. McCauley’s salary
remained $645,000 for fiscal 2007. We determined the base salaries for our next three most senior executive
positions in consultation with the Chief Executive Officer. We maintained fiscal 2007 base salaries of
Mr. Lambert, our Chief Operating Officer and Chief Financial Officer, and Mr. Garcia, our President, at
$385,000, the same salary level that was in effect for fiscal 2006. On February 10, 2007, we increased the base
salary of Ms. Armstrong, our Senior Vice President, Stores, Human Resources and Play & Music and Secretary
from $350,000 to $385,000 in recognition of her increasingly critical role and responsibilities. We increased the
base salary of our Vice President, Corporate Controller, Lynda G. Gustafson, for fiscal 2007 from $207,000 to
$220,000 in connection with the annual performance reviews of ali vice presidents, on Aprii 5, 2007.

On Apnil 1, 2008, we increased Mr. McCauley’s salary to $750,000 in recognition of his performance in
fiscal 2007 and to bring his base salary more in line with salaries at peer companies. The salaries of Mr. Lambert
and Ms. Armstrong will remain at $385,000 for fiscal 2008. On March 3, 2008, we increased Mr. Garcia's salary
to $425,000 in light of his performance. On April 1, 2008, we increased Ms. Gustafson’s salary to $230,000 for
fiscal 2008.

Cash Bonuses

The second key component of executive compensation is annual cash bonuses. We establish cash bonus
programs with awards based on specific earnings goals to encourage alignment with our stockholders’ interests.
The amount of the cash bonuses increase as higher earnings thresholds are achieved. We may also, on occasion,
provide discretionary cash bonuses in recognition of outstanding performance by an executive or group of
executives though we did not do so in fiscal 2007.

2007 Bonus Plan

On February 10, 2007, we adopted a cash incentive bonus plan for fiscal 2007 that provided ail full-time
employees in the home office, including our executive officers, all regional directors and the imanagement team
at our Dixon, California, distribution center, the opportunity to earn cash bonuses based on our quarterly and
annual financial performance. The broad participation in the bonus plan is one of the foundations of our
performance-based culture. The 2007 Bonus Plan provided as follows:

We established a target payout percentage for each participant at the beginning of the fiscal year. The target
payout percentage for a participant increases as the participant’s level of responsibility increases. The
participant’s annual base salary is multiplied by that target payout percentage to arrive at the participant’s annual
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target payout amounts. Target percentages and target payout amounts for the named executive officers are set
forth below (quarterly target payout amounts are cne-fourth of the annual target payout amount):

2007 Annual 2007 Annual
Target Target Payout

Name Title Percentage Amount

Matthew K. McCauley ........... Chief Executive Officer 100% $645,000
KipM.Garcia .................. President 85% $327.250
Blair W, Lambert ............... Chief Operating Officer and Chief

Financial Officer 85% $327,250
Marina Armstrong . .............. Senior Vice President, Stores, Human

Resources and Play & Music and

Secretary 85% $326,760
Lynda G. Gustafson ............. Vice President, Corporate Controller 40% $ 87,400

The Compensation Committee then reviewed management’s business plan for fiscal 2007, including
specific programs for increasing revenues and decreasing expenses, as well as management’s financial
projections and the underlying assumptions. Based on this review, we developed a range of quarterly and annual
earnings per diluted share targets and a bonus percent was assigned to each target level. The following annual
performance targets and related bonus percents were applicable for all participants, including the named
executive officers, for fiscal 2007:

Earnings Per
Share Target(1) Bonus
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Fiscal 2007 Percent
$0.55 $0.12  $0.79 $0.73 $2.19 25%
$0.57 $0.13 $0.83 $0.77 $2.30 50%
$0.60 30.14 3087 0.8l $2.40 75%
$0.62  $0.15 $090 $0.84 $2.51 100%
3065 $0.16 $093 $0.87 $2.61 125%
5068 3%0.17 3096 3091 $2.72 150%

(1) Earnings per diluted share targets are adjusted quarterly and annually to reflect any differences between
actual amounts and estimates for workers compensation expense and for charges for theft and
inventory shrinkage.

The lowest earnings threshold represented a 5% increase in earnings per diluted share over fiscal 2006 and
is the lowest level at which we felt a participant should receive a bonus (at 25% of the Target Payout Amount). If
the Company did not achieve this earnings threshold, no bonuses would be payable to any participant in the plan.
We established the highest threshold at the level which represented our “stretch” goal for fiscal 2007, namely, a
30% earnings per diluted share increase over fiscal 2006. At this level, a bonus would be payable at 150% of the
Target Payout Amount. We established intermediate thresholds at increases in earnings per diluted share of 5%
1o award participants in the plan if the Company exceeded our minimum goal but did not achieve the “stretch”
goal.

At the end of each fiscal quarter and the fiscal year, we calculate each participant’s bonus by multiplying the
participant’s target payout amount {annual or quarterly) by the bonus percent associated with the actual earnings
per diluted share reported by the Company for the applicable period. We pay bonuses quarterly of up to 100% of
the quarterly target payout amount. We pay bonuses above 100% of the quarterly target payout amount after the
end of the fiscal year. Participants must be employed at the end of the applicable quarter to receive a quarterly
bonus payment and must be employed at the end of the fiscal year to receive payment of bonus amounts above
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100% of the quarterly target payment amounts. If we fail to meet one or more quarterly performance targets, but
meet the annual performance targets, participants are eligible to receive a “catch-up” bonus, which allows the
total bonus paid for the year to equal up to the maximum {150%) of the annual target payout amount,

For fiscal 2007, the named executive officers earned bonuses at 150% of the target payout amount for the
first and third fiscal quarters and at 125% of the target payout amount for the second and fourth fiscal quarters.

On April 1, 2008, we increased Mr. McCauley’s target payout percentage for fiscal 2008 to 150% of base
salary, and on March 3, 2008, we increased Mr. Garcia’s target payout percentage for fiscal 2008 to 100% of
base salary, in each case in recognition of fiscal 2007 performance.

Equity Compensation

The third key component of executive compensation is equity compensation. Beginning in fiscal 2005, we
concluded that restricted stock and restricted stock units would provide a more effective form of incentive
compensation for senior management than stock options. For our senior executives in fiscal 2007, we granted
restricted stock awards that vest based on both the achievement of specified performance goals and continued
service. We believe that performance-based restricted stock provides a better vehicle for retention and a more
effective long-term incentive as compared to stock options or restricted stock that vests based solely on continued
service. All restricted stock awards to our named executive officers in fiscal 2007 were performance-based
awards. However, we may use restricted stock awards with only time-based vesting on a limited basis as
appropriate when retention or recruitment is our primary and immediate objective. We have not awarded any
stock options to our executive officers since March 2006.

In determining the maximum size and type of an equity incentive award for an executive officer, we
generally consider many factors, including individual performance, the Company’s performance in the prior
fiscal year, the retention value of the equity award, market data for comparable companies, the value of equity
awards currently held by the executive officer, the impact of compensation expense on our reported earnings, and
the dilutive effect of the award on our stockholders. In February 2007, we set a range of potential restricted stock
awards for each named executive officer for fiscal 2007, The size of the award that ultimately could be earned by
an executive varied depending on the Company’s achievement of earnings per diluted share thresholds for fiscal
2007. At the conclusion of that year, the number of shares was determined based on the Company’s performance
and one-fourth of the award vested. The recipient must remain continuously employed for three additional years
in order for the balance of the award to fully vest.

In February 2007, we granted Mr. McCauley an award of 250,000 shares of restricted stock and each of
Mr. Lambert, Mr. Garcia and Ms. Armstrong an award of 180,000 shares of restricted stock. The performance
goals and award levels for these awards, which totaled 790,000 shares, are as follows:

Bonus  Matthew Blair Kip Marina
Earnings Per Share Target (1) Percent McCauley Lambert Garcia Armstrong

Fiscal 2007
8219 ... 25% 0 22,500 22,500 22,500
$230 ... 50% 0 45,000 45,000 45,000
$240 ... 75% 93,750 67,500 67,500 67,500
$2.51 L. 100% 125,000 90,000 90,000 90,000
$261 e 125% 145,833 105,000 105,000 105,000
$2.72 150% 166,667 120,000 120,000 120,000
$282 . 175% 187,500 135,000 135,000 135,000
$2.93 200% 208,333 150,000 150,000 150,000
$3.03 .. 225% 229,167 165,000 165,000 165,000
$3.04 . 250% 250,000 180,000 180,000 180,000




(1) Earnings per diluted share targets are adjusted quarterly and annually to reflect any differences between

actual amounts and estimates for workers compensation expense and for charges for theft and inventory
shrinkage.

With the exception of Mr, McCauley, who declined to receive an equity award unless the Company
increased its earnings per diluted share by at least 15% over fiscal 2006, the earnings per diluted share threshoids
for the first six award levels are identical to the thresholds established under the cash bonus program. We believe
that an executive’s compensation for the achievement of the various performance thresholds beginning at our
minimum goal and continuing through our “stretch™ goals should be a combination of cash and restricted stock.
As we have previously discussed, if the Company achieves the “stretch” goal at the 150% bonus percent level,
our senior executive officers would receive total compensation that would place each of them at approximately
the seventy-fifth (75th) percentile as compared to our peer companies.

If the Company performs at levels beyond the “stretch” levels, we believe our most sentor executives should
receive additional equity compensation. To create an incentive for this, we established the four additional tiers of
earning thresholds for our four most sentor executives. These thresholds represent increases in earnings per
diluted share over the prior fiscal year of 35%, 40%, 45% and 50%.

Based on our performance at the 125% bonus level for fiscal 2007, Mr, McCauley’s award was set at
145,833 shares and the awards of Messrs, Lambert and Garcia and Ms, Armstrong were set at 105,000 shares,
Each of these restricted stock awards became 25% vested on April 17, 2008, and will vest in additional 25%
increments on February 10 in each of 2009, 2010 and 201 1, provided that the executive is employed by the
Company at that time. The Company cancelled the remaining 329,167 shares of restricted stock in March 2008
because the related performance targets were not met.

In addition to the above awards, the Compensation Committee granted 4,000 restricted stock units to
Ms. Gustafson that vest over a four-year period, commencing on April 5, 2008, subject to the following
performance criteria for fiscal 2007:

EPS Grant
B2 00 e e 1,000
230 e e 2,000
2.0 e 3,000
5220 3 4,000

Based on our performance for fiscal 2007, Ms. Gustafson’s award was set at 4,000 shares, 1,000 shares
vested on April 5, 2008 and 1,000 will vest on April 5 in each of 2009, 2010 and 2011 if Ms. Gustafson is
employed by the Company at that time.

Severance Benefits

We provide severance benefits under our Management Severance Plan for termination without “‘cause™ to
our executives at the level of vice president and above. We do not enter inte written employment agreements
with our employees, so the only severance benefits available to our executives are those under the Management
Severance Plan. If an executive is entitled to severance benefits under the Management Severance Plan and also
the Change of Control Plan described below, he or she receives the benefits under the Change of Control Plan.

In fiscal 2007, neither the terms of our stock option grants or restricted stock awards provided for the
automatic acceleration of vesting upon an employee’s termination of service, regardless of the reason for
termination {a change of control would result in the acceleration of vesting as described below).
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On April 1, 2008, we adopted an Amended and Restated Management Severance Plan that provides the
same range of benefits to participants as previously provided under two separate management severance plans
(the 2003 Management Severance Plan and 2003 Management Severance Plan (Lump Sum Payment), both of
which would have expired on May 1, 2008). We determined that each of our executive officers would receive
increased potential severance payments under the new plan equal to 1009% (from 50% under the old plans) of
base salary. We increased the severance benefits so that the benefits would be competitive with those offered by
our peer companies both for our existing executives and for potential new executive hires.

Also on April 1, 2008, we amended all outstanding stock options and restricted stock and restricted stock
unit awards granted to each executive officer under our 2004 Equity Incentive Plan so that in the event of an
involuntary termination (as defined in the Amended and Restated Managemeni Severance Plan) of an executive
officer, any such awards that are not then fully exercisable and vested, or subject to forfeiture restrictions, will
become fully vested and exercisable, and any forfeiture restrictions will lapse, in each case effective as of the
date of termination of such executive officer.

Change of Control

We provide change-of-control benefits to eliminate, or at least reduce, any reluctance on the part of our
senior management 1o pursue potential change-of-control transactions that may be in the best interests of our
stockholders by providing for payments that will protect them in the event of a change of control.

Executive officers who participate in the Management Change of Control Plan will receive lump-sum
payments equal to a multiple (either 2 or 3) of their annual compensation (current salary plus average bonus for
the prior three full fiscal years), as well as a pro-rated bonus for the year in which termination occurs, if their
employment terminates on an involuntary basis other than for cause within a specified period (either twelve or
eighteen months} following a change of control. We also continue heaith and other insurance benefits for the
applicable twelve- or eighteen-month period. To the extent that payments 1o any participant under the
Management Change of Control Pian are “parachute payments” under Internal Revenue Code Section 280G and
subject to an excise tax under Internal Revenue Code Section 4999, we will gross up the change-of-control
benefits so that the participant will receive the benefit promised net of any additional taxes imposed.

In addition, in the event of a change of control, all cutstanding unvested stock options under our 1993 Stock
Option Plan, 2002 Stock Incentive Plan and 2004 Equity Incentive Plan will become immediately vested and
exercisable on that date and the participant may elect to exchange them for cash payments calculated by a
formula under the appropriate plan. The vesting restrictions on all restricted stock and restricted stock unit
awards under the 2004 Equity Incentive Plan will lapse.

On April 1, 2008, we adopted an Amended and Restated Management Change of Control Plan that provides
the same range of benefits to participants as previously provided in our 2003 Management Change of Control
Plan {(which would have expired on May 1, 2008). We determined that our executive officers would receive the
same benefits under the new plan as had been granted to the executive officers under the prior plan. Also on
April 1, 2008, we extended “gross-up” benefits for each executive officer to the accelerated vesting of
outstanding stock options and lapse of restrictions on restricted stock and restricted stock units resulting from a
change of control, even if the executive officer’s employment is not terminated, if the accelerated vesting and
lapse of restrictions, when aggregated with any other change-of-control payments or benefits, would constitute a
“parachute payment.”

Retirement Plans

The Company maintains a 401(k) plan pursuant to which the Company matches employee contributions on
a dollar-for-dollar basis up to four percent (4%) of salary, subject to applicable legal limits. There are no other
retirement plans in place for any employees, including the named executive officers.
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Perquisites and Other Benefits

We annually review the perquisites that members of our senier management receive. The primary perquisite
for executives at the level of vice president or above consists of reimbursement of up to one percent (1%) of base
salary for tax-related and other financial planning services. We believe that good financial planning by experts
reduces the amount of time and attention senior management must spend on that topic and maximizes the net
financial reward to the employees from their compensation packages.

Executive officers may participate in our 1993 Amended and Restated Employee Stock Purchase Plan on
the same basis as other employees. We pay all medical, dental and vision insurance premiums at and above the
level of vice president. We pay life and disability insurance premiums for all eligible employees. Executive
officers may also participate in certain other benefit programs that we make available to all eligible employees,
including discounts on our products,

Tax Deductibility of Compensation

Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code generally disallows a tax deduction to a public company for
compensation in excess of $1,000,000 paid to the company's chief executive officer or any of the three other
most highly compensated executive officers (other than the chief financial officer). Certain performance-based
compensation is specifically exempt from the deduction limit,

The Compensation Committee attempts to minimize executive compensation expense that is non-deductible
for tax purposes while retaining the flexibility necessary to provide total compensation in line with our
compensation philosophy. Section 162(m) did not limit our ability to deduct the compensation we paid for fiscal
2007.

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE REPORT

The Compensation Committee has reviewed and discussed the Compensation Discussion and Analysis
required by Item 402(b) of Regulation S-K with management and, based on such review and discussions, the
Compensation Committee recommended to the Board that the Compensation Discussion and Analysis be
included in this Proxy Statement and the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended February 2,
2008.

THE COMPENSATION COMMITTEE
Gary M. Heil, Chairman

John C. Pound
William U. Westerfield
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EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

2007 SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE

The following table sets forth information regarding compensation for each of the Company’s named executive
officers for fiscal 2007 and fiscal 2006. All numbers are rounded to the nearest dotlar.

Non-Equity
Stock  Option Incentive Plan  All Other

Name and Principal Salary Bonus Awards Awards Compensation Compensation '
Position Year _ ($) $ ®AD) B2 $3) % Total ($)
Matithew K. McCauley (4) 2007 $645,000 — $3,816,168 $307,128 $ 886,875 $23.652 $5,678,823
Chairman and CEQ 2006 657,404 — 1,070,299 396,613 1,290,000 20,345 3,434,661
Blair W, Lambert (5) 2007 $385,000 — $2,169,487 $243,412 $ 449,969 $21,126 $3,268,994
COO/CFO 2006 392,404 $15,000 297,062 253,063 654,500 17,858 1,629,887
Kip M. Garcia (6) 2007 $385.000 — $2,351,542 $146,586 $ 449,969 $19,159 $3,352,256
President 2006 392,404 $15,000 454,083 149,352 654,500 17,843 1,683,182
Marina Armstroag (7) 2007 $384,327 — $2,288,153 $199,946 § 449,356 $26,958 $3,348,740
SVP, Stores, HR and 2006 356,731 $15,000 408,362 261475 595,000 20,130 1,656,698
Play & Music and
Secretary
Lynda G. Gustafson (8) 2007 $218,500 $33,000 $ 99,817 $ 40,587 $ 131,100 $21,820 $ 544,824
VP, Corporate 2006 210,039 25,700 27,120 63,732 144,335 18,501 489,427
Controller

(1) The amount reported in this column for fiscal 2007 for each officer reflects the compensation costs for financial
reporting purposes for the year under SFAS 123R, rather than an amount paid to or realized by the officer for
outstanding restricted stock and restricted stock unit awards granted in and prior to the year. Assumptions used in
the calculation of these compensation costs for 2007 are included in Note 7 to the Company’s audited financial
statements included in the 2007 Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended February 2, 2008; for prior-year
awards, such assumptions are included in the comparable footnote to the financial statements included in the
applicable fiscal year's annual report. As required by SEC rules, the amounts reported have been adjusted to
exclude the estimated effect of service-based forfeiture assumptions used for financial reporting purposes.

(2) The amount reported in this column for fiscal 2007 for each officer reflects the compensation costs for financial
reporting purposes for the year under SFAS 123R, rather than an amount paid to or realized by the officer, for
stock options granted in and prior to the year. Assumptions used in the calculation of these compensation costs for
2007 are included in Note 7 to the Company’s audited financial statements included in the 2007 Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended February 2, 2008; for prior-year grants, such assumptions are included in the
comparable footnote to the financial statements included in the applicable fiscal year’s annual report. As required
by SEC rules, the amounts reported have been adjusted to exclude the estimated effect of service-based forfeiture
assumptions used for financial reporting purposes.

(3) Represents performance-based cash compensation.

(4) The All Other Compensation column for fiscal 2007 with respect to Mr. McCauley represents $14,652 for
medical, life and disability insurance premiums paid by the Company for the benefit of the insured and $9,000 for
Company contributions to the Company’s 401{k} plan.

(5 The All Other Compensation column for fiscal 2007 with respect to Mr. Lambert represents $14,892 for medical,
life and disability insurance premiums paid by the Company for the benefit of the insured and $6,234 for
Company contributions to the Company’s 401(k) plan.
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(6) The All Other Compensation columa for fiscal 2007 with respect to Mr. Garcia represents $12,333 for
medical, life and disability insurance premiums paid by the Company for the benefit of the insured and
$6,826 for Company contributions to the Company’s 401(k) plan,

(7) The All Other Compensation column for fiscal 2007 with respect to Ms. Armstrong represents $14,820 for
medical, life and disability insurance premiums paid by the Company for the benefit of the insured, $9,162

for Company contributions to the Company’s 401(k) plan and $2,976 for financial planning services paid by
the Company.

(8) The All Other Compensation column for fiscal 2007 with respect to Ms. Gustafson represents $12,760 for
medical, life and disability insurance premiums paid by the Company for the benefit of the insured and
$9,060 for Company contributions to the Company’s 401(k) plan.

i
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2007 GRANTS OF PLAN-BASED AWARDS TABLE

The following table provides information regarding grants of ptan-based awards for each of the Company’s
named executive officers for fiscal 2007.

Grant
. . Date Fair
Estimated Future Payouts  Estimated Future Payouts  vajye of

Under Non-Equity Incentive  Under Equity Incentive  Stock and

Plan Awards Plan Awards Option
Grant Threshold Target Maximum Threshold Target Maximum Awards
Name Type of Award Date (1Y) (5} $) (#) (# #) (%)
Matthew K. McCauley . ... Annual Incentive Award $161,250 $645,000 $967,500
Chairman and CEO RSA 210407 93,750 125,000 250,000 $9,207,500
B air W. Lambert ........ Annual Incentive Award $ 81,813 $327,250 $490,875
COO/CFO RSA 2010007 22,500 90,000 180,000 $6,629.400
KipM. Garcia ........... Annual Incentive Award % 81,813 $327,250 $490,875
President RSA 210/07 22,500 90,000 180,000 $6,629,400
Marina Armstrong ... ..... Annual [ncentive Award $ 81,690 $326,760 $490,139
SVP, Stores, HR RSA 2110/07 22,500 90,000 180,000 $6,629,400
and Play & Music and
Secrerary
Lynda G. Gustafston ...... Annual [ncentive Award $ 21,850 $ 87,400 $131,100
VP, Corporate Controller RSU 445007 1,000 4000 4000 $ 167400

The following narrative discusses the material information necessary to understand the information in the
tables above.

Bonus. Amounts in the Bonus column in the Summary Compensation Table represent discretionary cash
bonus payments, except that for Ms. Gustafson, they include cash retention bonus payments. Ms. Gustafson
rzceived a retention bonus in April 2007 equal to 15% of her base salary. A retention bonus equal to 20% of her
base salary was paid in April 2008 and will be reported in the Summary Compensation Table appearing in the
Company’s 2009 Proxy Statement.

Stock Awards. Amounts in the Stock Awards column in the Summary Compensation Table relate to
rastricted stock awards (RSAs) and restricted stock unit awards (RSUs) granted under our 2004 Equity Incentive
Fian. Additional information about the restricted stock and restricted stock unit awards, including the vesting
schedule for the awards granted to the named executive officers and included in the 2007 Grants of Plan-Based
Awards Table, is included in “Compensation Discussion and Analysis™ above.

Option Awards. Amounts reported in the Option Awards column in the Summary Compensation Table
relate to stock options granted under our 2004 Equity Incentive Plan, 2002 Stock Incentive Plan or 1993 Stock
Option Plan.

Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation. Amounts reported in the Non-Equity Incentive Plan
Compensation column in the Summary Compensation Table represent payments made under the Company's
2007 Bonus Plan. Additional information about the 2007 Bonus Plan 1s included in “Compensation Discussion
and Analysis” above.
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2007 OUTSTANDING EQUITY AWARDS AT FISCAL YEAR END TABLE

The following table provides information regarding the number and estimated value of outstanding stock options
and unvested stock awards held by each of the Company’s named executive officers at fiscal 2007 year end. Market
values for restricted stock and restricted stock units are presented as of the end of fiscal 2007 (based on the closing
stock price of the Company’s common stock on February 1, 2008, the last trading day of the year, of $38.81) for

outstanding stock awards.

Option Awards(l)

Number of Securities
Underlying Unexercised
Options (#)

Number of Market

Stock Award
Service-Based Equity Equity Incentive Plan
Awards Awards
Market or

Payout Value
Number of of Unearned

Sharesor Valueof  Unearned Shares, Units
Units of Shares or Shares, Units  or Other
Stock Units of or Other  Rights That
Option  Option  That Have Stock That Rights That Have
Grant Exercise Expiration Not Have Not  Have Not Not
Name Date Exercisable Unexercisable Price ()  Date Vested (#) Vested ($) Vested (#)  Vested ($)
Matthew K. McCauley,
Chairman and CEQ
Equity Awards (RSAY(2) ..... 2/10/07 250,000 $9,702,500
Equity Awards (RSA)(3) ..... 2/10/06 135,000 5,239,350
Equity Awards (RSAY(4) ..... 6/13/05 25,000 § 970,250
Stock Options . .............. 3/21/05 27,084 14,583 $12.24  3/2172015
Stock Options .. ............. 217105 27,084 13,541 $12.00  2/772015
Stock Options ............... 11/18/04 40,625 15,624 $t1.66 11/18/2014
Stock Options ............... 3/30/04 13,542 1,041 $17.02  3/30/2014
Stock Options . .............. 2/6/04 13,542 521 $14.33  2/6/2014
StockOptions ............... 9/18/03 11,458 0 $15.76  9/18/2013
Swck Options . .............. 1802 9,375 V] $18.50 9/18/2012
Blair W. Lambert,
CO0/CFO
Equity Awards (RSAY(5) ..... 2410407 180,000 $6,985,800
Equity Awards (RSAY(6) ..... 2/10/06 22,500 873,225
Equity Awards (RSAY(T) ..... 1/10/05 12,500 § 485,125
SwckOptions . .............. 321105 27,083 29,167 $12.24 372112015
SwckOptions ............... 1/10/05 33,936 25,000 $12.60 1/10/2015
Stock Options .. ............. 6/25/03 312 0 $17.19  6/25/2013
Kip M. Garcia,
President
Equity Awards (RSA)(5) ..... 2010/07 180,000 $6,985,800
Equity Awards (RSAY(®R) ... .. 21006 30,000 1,164,300
Equity Awards (RSA)(9) ..... 2/10/06 37,500 $1,455.375
Stock Options (10y ... ........ 11718/04 22,917 10,417 $11.66 11/18/2014
Stock Options (11} ........... 4/26/04 23,958 3,125 $17.33  4/26/2014
Marina Armstrong,
SVP, Stores, HR and P&M and
Secretary
Equity Awards (RSA)} (5) ..... 2/10/07 180,000 $6,985,800
Equity Awards (RSA) (6) ... .. 2/10/06 22,500 873,225
Equity Awards (RSA) (9) ..... 2110406 37,500 $1,455,375
Stock Options . .............. 3121405 4,688 7,291 $12.24  3/21/2015
Swock Options . .............. 11/18/04 9,374 10,417 $11.66 11/18/2014
Stack Options . ............ .. 330/04 38333 1,667 $17.02  3/30/2014
Stock Options .. .. ... ....... 2/6/04 1,877 208 $14.33  2/6/2014
Stock Options ............... 9/18/03 30,000 0 $15.76 97182013
Stock Options . .............. 6/25/02 50,000 0 $15.70  6/25/2012
Stock Options . .............. 2125198 2,179 0 $27.06  2/25/2008
Lynda G. Gustafson,
VP, Corporate Controller
Eguity Awards (RSU) (12) .... 4/5/07 4,000 $ 155240
Equity Awards (RSU)Y (13) .... 2/10/06 3,750 § 145,538
Stock Options . ............ .. 27R05 6,250 5416 $12.00 27772015
Stock Options . ............ .. 11/18/04 2,334 1,458 $11.66 11/18/2014
Stock Options ... ............ 9/18/03 2,500 0 $15.76  9/18/2013
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Except as otherwise noted, stock options vest 1/48th per month of continuous service completed from the
Grant Date shown above.

As described in more detail in “Compensation Discussion and Analysis” above, Mr. McCauley received a
performance-based award of 250,000 shares of restricted stock. The total number of shares of

Mr. McCauley’s award that can vest over four years depends on fiscal 2007 earnings per diluted share. In
each case, 25% of the shares would vest on April 17, 2008, and 25% of the shares would vest on each of
February 10, 2009, 2010 and 201 1. The Company’s fiscal 2007 earnings per diluted share were $2.67;
accordingly, 145,833 shares of the total of 250,000 shares awarded to Mr. McCauley may vest depending
on his continued service to the Company, with 36,459 shares to vest on each of April 17, 2008 and
February 10, 2009, 2010 and 2011.

Mr. McCauley received a performance-based award of 180,000 shares of restricted stock in 2006. Based
on the Company’s fiscal 2006 earnings per diluted share, 180,000 shares of the total of 180,000 shares
awarded to Mr. McCauley may vest depending on his continued service to the Company, with 45,000
shares to vest on each of April 19, 2007 and February 10, 2008, 2009 and 2010.

25,000 shares to vest on June 13, 2009.

As described in more detail in “Compensation Discussion and Analysis” above, Mr. Lambert, Mr. Garcia
and Ms. Armstrong each received a performance-based award of 180,000 shares of restricted stock. The
total number of shares of each of those awards that can vest over four years depends on fiscal 2007
earnings per diluted share. In each case, 25% of the shares would vest on April 17, 2008, and 25% of the
shares would vest on each of February 10, 2009, 2010 and 2011. The Company’s fiscal 2007 earnings per
diluted share were $2.67; accordingly, 105,000 shares of the total of 180,000 shares awarded to each of
Mr. Lambert, Mr. Garcia and Ms. Armstrong may vest depending on their continued service to the
Company, with 26,250 shares to vest on each of April 17, 2008 and February 10, 2009, 2010 and 2011.

Mr. Lambert and Ms. Armstrong each received a performance-based award of 30,000 shares of restricted
stock in 2006. Based on the Company’s fiscal 2006 earnings per diluted share, 30,000 shares of the total of
30,000 shares awarded to each of Mr. Lambert and Ms. Armstrong may vest depending on their continued
service to the Company, with 7,500 shares to vest on each of April 19, 2007 and February 10, 2008, 2009
and 2010.

Remaining unvested shares to vest 1/12th per month commencing February 10, 2008.

Mr. Garcia received a performance-based award of 40,000 shares of restricted stock in 2006. Based on the
Company’s fiscal 2006 earnings per diluted share, 40,000 shares of the total of 40,000 shares awarded to
Mr. Garcia may vest depending on his continued service to the Company, with 10,000 shares vesting on
April 19, 2007, and 10,000 shares to vest on each of February 10, 2008, 2009 and 2010.

12,500 shares to vest on each of February 10, 2008, 2009 and 2010.
Remaining unvested shares to vest 1/10th per month commencing February 26, 2008.
Remaining unvested shares to vest 1/3rd per month commencing February 26, 2008.

As described in more detail in “Compensation Discussion and Analysis” above, Ms. Gustafson received a
performance-based award of 4,000 restricted stock units. The total number of units of Ms. Gustafon’s
award that can vest over four years depends on specific fiscal 2007 earnings per diluted share In each case,
25% of the units would vest on April 5, 2008, 2009, 2010 and 2011. The Company’s fiscal 2007 earnings
per diluted share exceeded $2.51 per share; accordingly, all 4,000 units awarded to Ms. Gustafson may
vest depending on her continued service to the Company, with 1,000 units to vest on each of April 5, 2008,
2009, 2010 and 2011.

1,250 shares to vest on each of February 10, 2008, 2009 and 2010.
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2007 OPTION EXERCISES AND STOCK VESTED TABLE

The following table provides information regarding stock option exercises and stock awards vesting for each
of the Company’s named executive officers during fiscal 2007. For stock options, the value realized is the
difference between the closing fair market value of the underlying stock at the time of exercise and the exercise
price. For stock awards, the value realized is based on the closing fair market value of the underlying stock on the
vesting date,

Option Awards Stock Awards

Number Number
of Shares Value of Shares Value
Acquired Realized Acquired Realized

on Upon on Upon
Typeof  Exercise Exercise Vesting Vesting
Name of Executive Officer Award #) ($) # ($)

Matthew K. McCauley, Chairman and CEO ... ... Stock Award 70,000 $2,826,750
Blair W. Lambert, COO/CFO . ................. Stock Award 20,000 764,967
Kip M. Garcia, President ... . .................. Stock Award 22,500 853,375
Marina Armstrong, SVP Stores, HR and P&M and

Secretary ... ... e Stock Award 20,000 755,125

Stock Option 27,520 $709,615

Lynda G. Gustafson, VP, Corporate Controller . ... Stock Award 1,250 46,038

TERMINATION OF EMPLOYMENT AND CHANGE-OF-CONTROL ARRANGEMENTS AND
EMPLOYMENT CONTRACTS

In fiscal 2007 the Company offered its executives certain benefits on termination of employment under
either its Management Severance Plan or its Management Severance Plan (Lump Sum Payment). The Company
also offers its executives certain benefits on termination of employment following a change of control under its
Management Change of Control Plan. A change of control may also accelerate the vesting of unvested stock .
options and the lapse of restrictions on stock awards under the terms of the Company’s equity compensation 4
plans.

The Company has not entered into written employment agreements with any of its executive officers, so the
only contractual benefits to an executive officer in the event of a termination of employment and/or a change of

I
l —
control are under these plans. L
Severance Benefits i =
In fiscal 2007, the Company’s Management Severance Plans provided participants with certain payments if
their employment terminated on an involuntary basis unrelated to a change of control of the Company. A '
participant’s employment generally would have been deemed to have been involuntarily terminated if terminated :
other than for cause, death or disability. k

The Management Severance Flan (Lump Sum Payment), which is referred to as the First Management
Severance Plan, provided plan participants hired prior to November 2000 with a lump-sum severance payment
equal to either 50% or 100% of the participant’s base salary if the participant’s employment terminated on an
involuntary basis unrelated to a change of control of the Company. Ms. Armstrong was the only named executive
officer who participated in the First Management Severance Plan. In fiscal 2007, she would have been eligible to
receive a lump-sum severance payment equal to 50% of her base salary, less applicable taxes, if involuntarily
terminated.

The other Management Severance Plan, which is referred to as the Second Management Severance Plan,
provided plan participants hired during or after November 2000 with severance payments equal to 50% or 100%
of the participant’s base salary, payable in equal monthly installments over a 12-month period, if the participant’s
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emnployment terminated on an involuntary basis unrelated to a change of control of the Company. However,
unlike payment under the First Management Severance Plan, payments under the Second Management Severance
Plan would have been subject to termination or reduction depending on the salary at the participant’s new place
o’ employment. In fiscal 2007, Mr. McCauley. Mr. Lambert, Mr. Garcia and Ms. Gustafson participated in the
Szcond Management Severance Plan and would have been eligible to receive a severance payment equal to 50%
of base salary, less applicable taxes, if involuntarily terminated (subject to termination or reduction as described
ahove).

Payments under the Management Severance Plans would have been conditioned on the participant’s
delivery of a waiver and release of claims in a form provided by the Company. Payments under the Management
Severance Plans would not have been payable if a participant were also entitled to benefits under the
Management Change of Control Plan.

As discussed above in “Compensation Discussion and Analysis,” the Management Severance Plans were
replaced by a single Amended and Restated Management Severance Plan in April 2008, and outstanding equity
awards were amended to provide for accelerated vesting and lapse of forfeiture restrictions following an
executive officer’s involuntary termination.

Change of Control Benefits — Management Change of Control Plan

Executive officers who participate in the Management Change of Control Plan are cligible to receive certain
lump-sum payments and continued benefits coverage if their employment terminates on an involuntary basis
other than for cause, death or disability within a specified period (either twelve or eighteen months) following a
Change of Control of the Company (as defined below). The lump-sum payment is equal 10 a specified multiple
100%, 200% or 300%) of the participant’s annual compensation (current base salary plus average annual bonus
for the three full fiscal years prior to termination) plus a pro-rated bonus for the year of termination, less
applicable taxes. The benefits coverage continues the terminated executive’s employee benefits for a period of 12
or 18 months; however, each individual benefit is subject to earlier termination if a participant receives
comparable coverage for that benefit under another employer’s plan.

An employee’s employment will generally be deemed to have been involuntarily terminated other than for
cause upon (i) a significant reduction in title, duties or responsibilities, (ii) a greater than 10% reduction in annual
base salary or in the annual maximum dollar amount of potential cash bonuses, (iii) a material reduction in the
kind or level of employee benefits such that the overall benefits package is significantly reduced, (iv) a relocation
to a place of employment more than 50 miles from the previous place of employment, or (v) the failure of the
Company’s successor to assume the obligations of the Company under the Management Change of Control Plan.
A “Change of Control” of the Company is generally defined as (1) an acquisition of 50% or more of the voting
power of the Company, (2) a change in the composition of the Board of the Company in a two-year period,
without the approval of the Incumbent Directors (as defined in the plan), that results in fewer than a majority of
the Incumbent Directors remaining in office, (3) the completion of a merger or consolidation where the existing
stockholders of the Company do not hold more than 50% of the voling power of the surviving entity, or (4) the
sale or disposition of all or substantially all of the assets of the Company.

Under the Management Change of Control Plan, if any of the named executive officers is terminated
involuntarily, other than for death, disability or cause, at any time within 18 months following a Change of
Control. the named executive officer, other than Lynda G. Gustafson, will be eligible to receive a payment equal
to 300% of his or her annual compensation and a pro-rated bonus, in a single lump-sum payment, less applicable
taxes, and benefits coverage for 18 months. Ms. Gustafson will be eligible to receive a payment equal to 200% of
her annual compensation and a pro-rated bonus, in a single lump-sum payment, less applicable taxes, and
benefits coverage for 18 months.

If the benefits under the Management Change of Control Pian, when aggregated with any other payments or
benefits received by a participant, or to be received by a participant, would constitute “parachute payments”
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within the meaning of Section 280G of the Internal Revenue Code and would be subject to the excise tax
imposed by Section 4999 of the Internal Revenue Code, then the participant’s plan benefits would be grossed up
so that the net amount retained by the participant would be equal to the payment described in the preceding
paragraph.

As discussed above in “Compensation Discussion and Analysis,” the Management Change of Control Plan
was amended and restated in April 2008.

Change of Control Benefits — Acceleration of Vesting of Option Awards and Lapse of Restrictions on
Stock Awards under the Equity Compensation Plans

In the event of a Change of Control, all outstanding awards under the Company’s 1993 Stock Option Plan,
2002 Stock Incentive Plan and 2004 Equity Incentive Plan will become immediately vested and exercisable on
that date and will be terminated in exchange for cash payments calculated by a formula under the appropriate
plan. The 1993 Stock Option Plan, 2002 Stock Incentive Plan and the 2004 Equity Incentive Plan each define a
“Change of Control” as the acquisition by any person other than the Company, a subsidiary of the Company or
an employee benefit plan of the Company of 50% or more of the voting power of the Company’s outstanding
securities, stockholder approval of a merger or consolidation where the existing stockholders of the Company
would not hold more than 50% of the voting power of the surviving entity, a change in the Board such that the
majority of directors are no longer Incumbent Directors (as that term is defined in each plan), or stockholder
approval of an agreement for the sale or disposition of all or substantially all the assets of the Company.

With respect to the named executive officers, all outstanding unvested stock options would fully vest and all
restrictions on all outstanding restricted stock and restricted stock unit awards would lapse.

As discussed above in “Compensation Discussion and Analysis,” in April 2008 the Company extended
“gross-up” benefits 1o executive officers in connection with the accelerated vesting and lapse of restrictions upon
a Change of Control, without regard to employment status.

2007 POTENTIAL PAYMENTS UPON TERMINATION OR CHANGE OF CONTROL TABLE (

The potential payments upon termination of employment or change of control for each of the named ,
executive officers are set forth in the table below. Amounts payable pursuant to the First Management Severance
Plan or the Second Management Severance Plan reported in the Before Change of Control Involuntary
Termination w/o Cause column assume termination of employment on February 1, 2008, the last business day of
fiscal 2007.

SR
LN

The amounts for Stock Option Vesting Acceleration and Lapse of Stock Award Restrictions under the
Change of Control column assume that the intrinsic value per share for vested stock options and shares of
restricted stock is $38.81 per share, the closing price of the Company’s common stock on February 1, 2008, and
that a change of control occurs on that date.

o

The total value reported in the After Change of Control Involuntary Termination w/o Cause column assumes
a change of control and termination of employment on February 1, 2008, and includes amounts payable under the
Management Change of Control Plan and the amounts for option acceleration and lapse of restrictions on
restricted stock that are triggered upon a change of control. The amounts for Severance Benefit in the After
Change of Control Involuntary Termination w/o Cause column reflect the amounts payable under the
Management Change of Control Plan as described above, plus the applicable “gross-up” payment for each of
Mr. McCauley, Mr. Lambert, Mr, Garcia and Ms. Armstrong since a portion of the total amount of benefits each
is entitfed to receive under the Management Change of Control Plan, together with the value of the accelerated
options and lapse of forfeiture restrictions on restricted stock, would have subjected each of them to the
“parachute” excise tax as of February 1, 2008.
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Before Change

After Change

of Control of Control
Involuntary Involuntary
Termination Change  Termination

_ Name Benefit w/o Cause  of Control  w/o Cause
Matthew K. McCauley ... Severance Benefit $322,500 N/A  $12,043,958
Benefits Continuation™ N/A N/A 21,564
Stock Option Vesting Acceleration N/A $ 1,210,134 1,210,134

Lapse of Stock Award Restrictions N/A 15,912,100 15,912,100

Total value: $322,500 $17,122.234 $29,187,756

Blair W. Lambert ....... Severance Benefit $192,500 N/A § 7,785,727
Benefits Continuation* N/A N/A 21,932

Stock Option Vesting Acceleration N/A  § 1430217 1,430,217

Lapse of Stock Award Restrictions N/A 8,344,150 8,344,150

Total value: $192,500 $ 9,774,367 $17,582,026

Kip M. Garcia .......... Severance Benefit $192,500 N/A 3 7,737,048
Benefits Continuation* N/A N/A 18,072

Stock Option Vesting Acceleration N/A $ 340,047 349947

Lapse of Stock Award Restrictions N/A 9,605,475 9,605,475

Total value: $192,500 $ 9955422 $17,710,542

Marina Armstrong ... ... Severance Benefit $192,500 N/A $ 7.494,666
Benefits Continuation*® N/A N/A 21,831

Stock Option Vesting Acceleration N/A 3 517,959 517,959

Lapse of Stock Award Restrictions N/A 9,314,400 9,314,400

Total value: $192,500 $ 9,832,359 $17,348,856
Lynda G. Gustafson ..... Severance Benefit $110,000 N/A § 650,644
Benefits Continuation* N/A N/A 18,975

Stock Option Vesting Acceleration N/A  § 184788 184,788

Lapse of Stock Award Restrictions N/A 300,778 300,778

Total value: $110,000 $ 485566 §$ 1,195,185

* Includes disability and life insurance benefits, as well as medical, dental and vision insurance benefits.
Disability and life insurance costs are estimated based on the Company’s current group plan benefit costs;
actual costs of individual non-plan benefits are not known at this time. Medical, dental and vision insurance
costs are calculated using the current post- termination continued benefit rate prescribed by the applicable

plan.

CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED-PERSON TRANSACTIONS

The Board has delegated to our Audit Committee the responsibility for reviewing related-person
transactions. The Audit Committee reviews the material facts of all related-person transactions, including
transactions between the Company and our officers or directors (or affiliates of officers or directors), that require
the Committee’s approval under the applicable rules of the SEC and NASDAQ. The Audit Committee either
approves or disapproves the entering into of each related-person transaction. If advance review or approval is not
feasible prior to the entry into of a particular related-person transaction, the Audit Committee will review that
transaction after it has been entered into and determine whether to ratify such transaction. The Audit Committee
has the authority to establish categories of related-person transactions which do not require the approval of the
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Committee as well as procedures for consummating certain types or categories of transactions without the
approval of the Commiittee.

In April 2007, the Audit Committee approved written procedures authorizing the Company's General
Counsel to review and approve or ratify related-person transactions involving the payment by the Company of
amounts of $100,000 or less (unless involving the General Counsel). These procedures require the General
Counsel to promptly report to the Audit Committee each such related-person transaction reviewed by her and her
determination.

In fiscal 2007, there were no related-person transactions under applicable SEC or NASDAQ rules.

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

The Audit Committee of the Board hereby reports as follows:

1. The Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed the audited financial statements for fiscat 2007 with
the Company’s management.

2. The Audit Committee has discussed with Deloitte & Touche LLP, the Company’s independent
registered public accounting firm during the fiscal 2007, the matters required 1o be discussed by the
Statement on Auditing Standards No. 61, Communication With Audit Committees.

3. The Audit Committee has received the written disclosures and the letter from its independent
accountants required by Independence Standards Board Standard No. 1, Independence Discussions
with Audit Committees, and has discussed with its independent accountants the independent
accountants’ independence.

4.  Based on the review and discussion referred 1o in paragraphs (1) through (3) above, the Audit
Committee recommended to the Board, and the Board approved, that the audited financial statements
be included in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period ending February 2, 2008,

for filing with the SEC. f
THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
Daniel R. Lyle, Chairman
Gary M. Heil -
William U. Westerfield =
INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM FEES AND SERVICES
The fees billed by Deloitte & Touche LLLP for the indicated services performed during the fiscal 2007 and '
fiscal 2006 were as follows: K

Fiscal 2607 Fiscal 2006

Audit Fees (1) ..o e e e $976,000  $1,094,000
Audit-Related Fees (2) ...t e e e $ 38000 % 35,000
Tax Fees (3) - oot e e e e e $290,000 $§ 307,000
AlLOhEr FEes (4) . oottt e e e e e e e — $ 28,000

(1} Audit Fees consist of fees billed for professionat services rendered for the audit of the Company’s
consolidated annual financial statements, review of the interim consolidated financial statements included in
quarterly reports and services that are normally provided by the Company’s independent registered public
accounting firm in connection with statutory and regulatory filings or engagements.

29.




(2

Audit-Related Fees consist of fees billed for assurance and related services that are reasonably related to the
performance of the audit or review of the Company’s consolidated financial statements and are not reported
under Audit Fees. In fiscal 2007 and 2006, these fees included fees for the audit of the Company’s 401(k)
plan.

Tax Fees consist of fees billed for professional services rendered for tax compliance, tax advice and tax
planning. In fiscal 2007, these fees included $140,000 for tax consultation and $150.000 for tax compliance.
In fiscal 2006, these fees included $66,000 for tax consultation and $241,000 for tax compliance.

All Other Fees consist of fees for products and services other than the services reported above. In fiscal
2006, these fees included fees for services related to the liquidation of our legal entities in the United
Kingdom and [reland.

The Audit Committee has considered, and believes that, the non-audit services provided by Deloitte &

Touche LLP as described above are compatible with maintaining Deloitte & Touche LLP’s independence as the
Company’s principal accountants,

The Audit Committee has established a policy requiring its pre-approval of the retention of the Company’s

independent registered public accounting firm for all audit, review or attest engagements and all such non-audit
cervices as the independent registered public accounting firm is permitted to provide the Company, as well as its
approval of all fees, including those listed in the table above, for such services, other than de minimis non-audit
services allowed by applicable law.
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PROPOSAL TWO: APPROVAL OF AN AMENDMENT TO THE GYMBOREE CORPORATION 2004
EQUITY INCENTIVE PLAN

The Company’s Board is seeking stockholder approval of an amendment to The Gymboree Corporation
2004 Equity Incentive Plan (including the amendment that is the subject of this Proposal Two, the “2004 Plan”)
to increase the number of shares reserved for issuance by 925,000 shares.

As of April 7, 2008, 115,610 shares were reserved and available for issuance under the 2004 Plan, in
addition to the 925,000 shares for which the Company is seeking stockholder approval. As of the same date,
2,167,638 shares under the 2004 Plan are subject to outstanding options, restricted stock units and restricted
stock awards (1,388,913 shares of which are subject to unvested restricted stock units and the unvested portions
of restricted stock awards), and 337,678 shares under The Gymboree Corporation 2002 Amended and Restated
Stock Incentive Plan (the “2002 Plan”) and 78,246 shares under The Gymboree Corporation 1993 Stock Option
Plan {the *1993 Plan™) are subject to outstanding options, for a total of 1,194,649 shares subject to options and
2,583,562 shares subject to options, restricted stock units and restricted stock awards under all three plans. No
shares were available for issuance under 2002 Plan or the 1993 Plan. As of April 7, 2008, the outstanding options
had a weighted-average exercise price of $13.7242 and a weighted-average remaining contractual life of 6.16
years. Shares subject to outstanding options or units that are not actually issued and delivered when an option or
unit is forfeited, settled for cash or otherwise terminated, or when shares are withheld by or tendered to the
Company in connection with the exercise of an option or in connection with the satisfaction of tax withholding
obligations, will become available for grant under the 2004 Plan.

The Board belteves that compensation in the form of equity incentives correlates management’s interests

with those of an owner and creates a partnership between the Company’s key employees and its stockholders that

motivates those employees to strive to improve the long-term performance of the Company and to achieve our

long-term strategic objectives. Based on estimated usage rate, the Company currently anticipates depleting the

shares currently available for issuance under the 2004 Plan by the end of fiscal 2008. The Company anticipates

that with the additional 925,000 shares for which the Company is seeking stockholder approval, the Company |

will have sufficient shares for equity compensation until the 2010 annual meeting of stockholders and e |

stockholder approval for additional shares will be sought at that time. While adding 925,000 shares to the |
|

2004 Plan will increase the potential dilution represented by the 2004 Plan, the Board believes that the potential
dilution represented by the Company’s equity compensation plans is within the norms for the Company’s
industry, In addition, the Company commits to limit the number of shares used for equity compensation awards
so that the number of shares subject to awards granted in the next three fiscal years will not exceed, as an average
over the three-year period, 2.9% of the Company’s outstanding shares per year (measured as the weighted-
average common shares outstanding, excluding treasury shares, for each fiscal year). For purposes of calculating
the number of shares granted in a year, stock awards, restricted stock awards and restricted stock units will count
as equivalent to (1) 1.5 option shares if our annual stock price volatility is 54.6% or higher, (2) two option shares
if our annual stock price volatility is between 36.1% and 54.69%, (3) 2.5 option shares if our annual stock price
volatility is between 24.9% and 36.1% and (4} four option shares if our annual stock price volatility is less than
24.9%.

The Company plans to use the additional 925,000 shares for which the Company is seeking stockholder
approval to recruit, retain, motivate and reward key contributors, including key executive officers. If the
amendment to the 2004 Plan is not approved by the Company’s stockholders, awards will continue to be made
under the 2004 Plan to the extent shares are available.

A copy of the 2004 Plan, as approved by the Board on April |, 2008, and which will be effective upon
receipt of approval from the stockholders, is attached to this proxy statement as Appendix A and is incorporated
by reference. The following description of the 2004 Plan is a summary and does not purport to be a complete
description. Sce Appendix A for more detailed information.
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Description of the 2004 Plan
Purpose

The purpose of the 2004 Plan is to attract, retain and motivate the Company’s employees, officers and
directors by providing them the opportunity to acquire a proprietary interest in the Company’s business and to
1.nk their interests and efforts to the long-term interests of the Company’s stockholders.

Administration

The 2004 Plan is administered by the Board or the Compensation Committee of the Board, The
Compensation Committee has the authority to administer the 2004 Plan, including, among other things, the
power to select individuals to whom awards are granted, to determine the types of awards and the number of
chares subject to each award, to set the terms, conditions and provisions of such awards, to cancel or suspend
swards and to establish procedures pursuant to which the payment of any such awards may be deferred. The
{Compensation Committee may delegate to one or more of the Company’s officers, to the extent permitted by
Delaware law, the right to grant awards with respect to employees who are not officers or directors. With respect
to discretionary awards to non-employee directors, the Board must delegate responsibility for administering the
2004 Plan to a committee composed of independent directors,

Eligibility
Awards may be granted under the 2004 Plan to the Company’s employees, officers, directors, consultants,

agents, advisors and independent contractors. As of April 7, 2008, approximately 1,000 individuals were
eligible to participate in the 2004 Plan.

Types of Awards

The 2004 Plan permiis the granting of any or all of the following types of awards: (1) incentive and
sonqualified stock options, (2) stock appreciation rights, (3) stock awards, restricted stock awards and stock
anits, (4) performance shares and performance units conditioned upon meeting performance criteria, and
{5) other stock- or cash-based awards.

Stock Options. Stock options entitle the holder to purchase a specified number of shares of the Company’s
zommon stock at a specified price, which is called the exercise price, subject to the terms and conditions of the
option grant. The exercise price of stock options under the 2004 Plan must be at least 100% of the fair market
value of the Company’s common stock on the date of the grant. The Compensation Committee will fix the term
of each option. Each option will be exercisable at such time or times as determined by the Compensation
Committee. Options may be exercised, in whole or in part, by payment in full of the purchase price either in cash,
delivery of shares of common stock or delivery of other consideration, or by any combination of cash, stock and
other consideration as may be determined by the Compensation Committee. Options may also be exercised by
means of a broker-assisted cashless exercise.

After termination of service, a participant will be able to exercise the vested portion of his or her option for
the period of time stated in the option agreement. If no such period of time is stated in a participant’s option
agreement, a participant will generally be able to exercise his or her option for (i) three months following his or
her termination for reasons other than cause, death or disability and (ii) one year following his or her termination
due to death or disabitity. If a participant is terminated for cause, all options generally will automatically expire.
If a participant dies after termination of service but while an option is still exercisable, the portion of the option
that was vested and exercisable as of the date of termination will generally expire on the one-year anniversary of
the participant’s death. In no event may an option be exercised later than the expiration of its term.

Stock Appreciation Rights (“SARs"). SARs may be granted alone (“freestanding”) or in addition to other
awards and may, but need not, relate to a specific option granted under the 2004 Plan. Upon exercise of an SAR,
the holder is entitled to receive the excess of the fair market value of the shares for which the right is exercised
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over the grant price of the SAR. The Compensation Committee may impose any conditions or restrictions on the
exercise of an SAR as it deems appropriate; however, under the 2004 Plan the grant price of a freestanding SAR
generally will not be less than the fair market value of a share of common stock on the date of grant, and the term
will not be more than ten years, Payment upon such exercise will be in cash, stock, other property or any
combination of cash, stock or other property as determined by the Compensation Committee. Any related option
will no longer be exercisable to the extent the SAR has been exercised, and the related SAR will generally be
canceled to the extent the option has been exercised.

Stock Awards, Restricted Stock and Stock Units, Awards of shares of stock, or awards designated in units of
stock, may be granted and may be made subject to forfeiture resirictions at the Compensation Committee’s
discretion, which the Committee may waive at any time in its sole discretion. Until the lapse of any restrictions,
recipients may not dispose of their restricted stock. Upon termination of employment during the restriction
period, all shares of restricted stock still subject to restriction will be forfeited, subject to any exceptions that may
be authorized by the Compensation Committee.

Performance Awards. Performance awards may be in the form of performance shares, which are units
valued by reference to shares of stock, or performance units, which are units valued by reference to property
other than stock, Performance shares or performance units may be payable upon the attainment of performance
criteria and other terms and conditions established by the Compensation Committee, and the amount of any
payment may be adjusted on the basis of such further consideration as the Committee determines. Performance
awards may be paid entirely or in any combination of cash, stock or other property, in the discretion of the
Compensation Committee.

Other Stock- or Cash-Based Awards. The Compensation Committee is also authorized to grant to
participants, either alone or in addition to other awards granted under the 2004 Plan, incentives payable in cash or
in shares of the Company’s common stock subject to terms and conditions determined by the Committee.

Shares Subject to the 2004 Plan

Number of Shares Reserved for Issuance. The 2004 Plan authorizes the issuance of up to 3,115,000 shares of
common stock. In addition, up to an additional 415,924 shares of common stock subject to outstanding options
under the 2002 Plan and the 1993 Plan, to the extent those options are not exercised or settled in shares, could
become available for grant under the 2004 Plan. Shares of common stock covered by an award granted under the
2004 Plan will not be counted as used unless and until they are actually issued and delivered to a participant.
Shares relating to awards granted under the 2004 Plan that are forfeited, settled for cash or otherwise terminated
and shares withheld by or tendered in connection with the exercise of an option or other award granted under the
2004 Plan or in connection with the satisfaction of tax withholding obligations relating to awards or exercises of
options or other awards are available for grant under the 2004 Plan. Awards made or adjusted to assume or
convert awards in connection with acquisition transactions will not reduce the number of shares authorized for
issuance under the 2004 Plan. The shares of stock deliverable under the 2004 Plan will consist of authorized and
unissued shares. The Compensation Committee may adjust the aggregate number of shares or the awards under
the 2004 Plan in the event of a change affecting shares of common stock, such as a stock dividend,
recapitalization, reorganization or merger.

Limitations on Use of Shares Subject to the 2004 Plan. The 2004 Plan contains limitations on the numbers
of shares of common stock that may be awarded in any one year to certain participants and on the aggregate
maximurmn number of shares of common stock that can be awarded under certain types of awards. The
Compensation Committee may not make awards under the 2004 Plan to any single participant who is a “covered
employee” for purposes of Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code™), in
any calendar year that relate to more than 400,000 shares of the Company's common stock, except that the
Committee may make a one-time award to a newly hired or promoted covered employee relating to up to
400,000 shares of common stock. In addition, the Compensation Committee may not grant performance units 1o
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any single covered employee in any one calendar year with a maximum dollar value greater than $10,000,000.
Under the 2004 Plan, the aggregate number of shares subject to awards that do not have performance goals or
that are made in lieu of the payment of performance-based cash incentive awards, other than awards of stock
options and SARs, may not exceed 50% of the maximum aggregate number of shares reserved for issuance under
the 2004 Plan. In addition, the aggregate number of shares subject to awards that do not have restrictions or that
have restrictions based solely on continuous employment or services for less than three years, other than awards
of stock options and SARs, may not exceed 50% of the maximum aggregate number of shares reserved for
issuance under the 2004 Plan. Each grant of stock, restricted stock and restricted stock units under the 2004 Plan
is subject to a minimum repurchase or forfeiture restriction for at least one calendar year after the grant date if
restrictions are based on the achievement of performance goals, and three years from the grant date if restrictions
are based on continuous service with the Company or a related company. The Compensation Commiitee may
viaive the applicable restrictions during the applicable restriction period only in connection with a transaction
that is not a related-party transaction, a change of control, or the participant’s termination of service without
cause or by reason of the participant’s death, disability, or retirement.

Neonassignability of Awards

Unless the Compensation Commitiee determines otherwise, no award granted under the 2004 Plan may be
sold, assigned, transferred, pledged or otherwise encumbered by a participant, other than by will, designation of a
teneficiary in a manner established by the Committee, or the laws of descent and distribution. Each award may
te exercisable, during the participant’s lifetime, only by the participant, or, if permissible under applicable law,
bty the participant’s guardian or legal representative.

Term, Termination and Amendment

Unless earlier terminated by the Board or the Compensation Committee, the 2004 Plan will terminate on
June 16, 2014. The Board or the Compensation Committee may generally amend, alter. suspend, discontinue or
terminate all or a portion of the 2004 Plan at any time, as long as the rights of a participant are not matenally
impaired without the participant’s consent, subject to stockholder approval to the extent necessary to comply
with applicable law, stock exchange rules or regulatory requirements or, as determined by the Committee, to
qualify with tax requirements. The Compensation Committee may amend the terms of any award granted,
prospectively or retroactively, but cannot materially impair the rights of any participant without the participant’s
consent. The Compensation Committee may not reprice options or SARs without stockholder approval. Also,
generally no change or adjustment may be made to an outstanding incentive stock option, without the consent of
the participant, that would cause the incentive stock option to fail to continue to qualify as an incentive stock
option under the Code.

Performance-Based Compensation under Section 162(m)

Under Section 162(m) of the Code, the Company is generally prohibited from deducting compensation paid
to the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and three other most highly compensated executive officers (other
than the Company’s Chief Financial Officer) in excess of $1,000,000 per person in any year. However,
compensation that qualifies as performance-based is excluded for purposes of calculating the amount of
ompensation subject to the $1,000,000 limit. In general, the Compensation Committee determines the terms and
conditions of awards. If the Compensation Committee intends to qualify an award as “performance-based
ompensation” under Section 162(m) of the Code, it may choose performance goals that include any or all of the
following or any combination: cash flows (including, but not limited to, operating cash flow, free cash flow or
ash flow return on capital); working capital; earnings per share; book value per share; operating income
‘including or excluding depreciation, amortization, extraordinary items, restructuring charges or other expenses);
revenues; operating margins; return on assets; inventory turns; return on equity; debt; debt plus equity; market or
sconomic value added; stock price appreciation; total stockholder return; cost control; strategic initiatives; store
openings; growth and development of new concepts; market share; net income {including or excluding
axtraordinary items, restructuring charges or other expenses); return on invested capital; improvements in capital
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structure; customer satisfaction, employee satisfaction, services performance, cash management or asset
management metrics; any individual performance objective measured solely in terms of quantitative targets
related to the Company or its business; or any increase or decrease of one or more of the foregoing over a
specified period. Performance goals may be stated in absolute terms or relative to comparison companies or
indices to be achieved during a period of time. Performance goals may relate to the performance of the Company,
any subsidiary, any portion of the business, product line or any combination, relative 1o a market index. a group
of companies (or their subsidiaries, business units or product lines), or a combination, all as determined by the
Compensation Committee. The Compensation Committee will have absolute discretion to reduce the amount of
the award payable to any participant for any period below the maximurm award determined based on the
attainment of performance goals. The Compensation Committee may decide not to pay any such award to a
participant for a period, based on such criteria, factors and measures as the Committee in its sole discretion may
determine, including, but not limited to, individual performance and the financial and other performance of the
Company, a subsidiary, or other business unit.

Company Transaction and Change in Control

Restrictions on awards granted under the 2004 Plan will terminate in certain circumstances that constitute a
change of control or a merger, stock or asset sale or similar Compuny transaction that does not involve a related

party.

Change in Control. Under the 2004 Plan, a change in control of the Company means the occurrence of any
of the following events:

*  Anacquisition of beneficial ownership of 50% or more of either (a) the then-outstanding shares of
common stock of the Company or (b) the combined voting power of the then-outstanding voting
securities of the Company entitled to vote generally in the election of directors (excluding any
acquisition directly from the Company, any acquisition by the Company, any acquisition by any
employee benefit plan of the Company, or a related-party transaction); or

* Achange in the composition of the Board during any two-year period such that the Incumbent Directors

cease to constitute at least a majority (not including directors whose election was approved by more than
half of the Incumbent Directors).

Under the 2004 Plan, to maintain all of the participants’ rights in the event of a change in control of the
Company (as described above), unless the Compensation Commiittee determines otherwise with respect 1o a
particular award:

* Any options and stock appreciation rights will become fully exercisable and vested to the full extent of
the original grant;

*  Any restrictions and deferral limitations applicable to any restricted stock or stock units will lapse;

*  All performance shares and performance units will be considered to be earned and payable in full at
target levels, and any deferral or other restriction will lapse and such performance stock and
performance units will be immediately settled or distributed;

¢ Any restrictions and deferral limitations and other conditions applicable to any other awards will lapse,
and such other awards will become free of all restrictions, limitations or conditions and become fully
vested and transferable to the full extent of the original grant; and

= The Compensation Committee can provide a cash-out right for awards in connection with a change in
control.

Company Transaction. Under the 2004 Plan, a Company transaction means the consummation of any of the
following:

= amerger or consolidation of the Company with or into any other company or other entity;
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« asale in one transaction or a series of transactions undertaken with a common purpose of at least 50% of
the Company’s outstanding voting securities; or

+ asale, lease, exchange or other transfer in one transaction or a series of related transactions undertaken
with a common purpose of al} or substantially all of the Company’s assets.

Under the 2004 Plan, a related-party transaction means a company transaction pursuant to which:

+  the beneficial ownership of the Company or the resulting company remains the same with respect to at
feast 50% of the voting power of the outstanding voting securities in substantially the same proportions
as immediately prior to such Company transaction;

no entity (other than the Company or an affiliate) will beneficially own 50% or more of the outstanding
shares of common stock of the resulting company or the voting power of the outstanding voting
securities; and

+ the Company’s incumbent Board will, after the Company transaction, constitute at least a majority of
the board of the company resulting from such Company transaction.

Under the 2004 Plan, to maintain all of the participants’ rights in the event of a Company transaction that is
not a change in control or a related-party transaction, unless the Compensation Committee determines otherwise
at the time of grant with respect to a particular award or elects to cash-out awards:

+  All outstanding awards (other than performance awards) become fully and immediately exercisable, and
any restrictions or forfeiture provisions lapse, immediately prior to the Company transaction, unless
such awards are converted, assumed, or replaced by the successor company; and

+  Performance awards earned and outstanding become payable in full at target levels and deferrals or
other restrictions not waived by the Compensation Committee will remain in effect.

Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences

The following briefly describes the U.S. federal income tax consequences of the 2004 Plan generally
applicable to the Company and to participants in the 2004 Plan who are United States citizens. The discussion is
general in nature and does not purport to be legal or tax advice. The discussion is based on the Code, applicable
Treasury Regulations and administrative and judicial interpretations thereof, each as in effect on the date of this
Proxy Statement and is, therefore, subject to future changes in the law, possibly with retroactive effect.
Furthermore, the discussion does not address issues relating to any U.S. gift or estate tax consequences or the
consequences of any state, local or foreign tax laws. The tax consequences of the 2004 Plan will depend on a
participant’s own particular circumstances. Accordingly, participants are strongly urged to consult with their own
tax advisors regarding the U.S, federal tax consequences of awards under the 2004 Plan in light of their own
particular circumstances, as well as the effect of any state, local or foreign tax laws.

Stock Options

Nongualified Stock Options. A participant generally will not recognize taxable income upon the grant or
vesting of a nonqualified stock option. Upon the exercise of a nonqualified stock option, a participant generally
will recognize compensation taxable as ordinary income in an amount equal to the difference between the fair
market value of the shares underlying the option on the date of exercise and the option exercise price. When a
participant sells the shares, the participant will have short-term or long-term capital gain or loss, as the case may
be, equal to the difference between the amount the participant received from the sale and the tax basis of the
shares sold. The tax basis of the shares generally will be equal to the greater of the fair market value of the shares
underlying the option on the exercise date or the option exercise price.

Incentive Stock Options. A participant generally will not recognize taxable income upon the grant or vesting
of an incentive stock option. If a participant exercises an incentive stock option during employment as an
employee or within three months after his or her employment ends (12 months in the case of permanent or total
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disability). the participant will not recognize taxable income at the time of exercise for regular U.S. federal
income tax purposes (although the participant generally will have taxabie income for alternative minimum tax
purposes at that time as if the option were a nonqualified stock option). If a participant sells or otherwise disposes
of the shares acquired upon exercise of an incentive stock option after the later of (a) one year from the date the
participant exercised the option and (b) two years from the grant date of the option, the participant generally will
recognize long-term capital gain or loss equal to the difference between the amount the participant received in
the disposition and the option exercise price. If a participant sells or otherwise disposes of the shares acquired
upon exercise of an incentive stock option before these holding period requirements are satisfied, the disposition
will constitute a “disqualifying disposition,” and the participant generally will recognize taxable ordinary income
in the year of dispositicn equal 10 the excess of the fair market value of the shares on the date of exercise over the
option exercise price (or, if less, the excess of the amount realized on the disposition of the shares over the option
exercise price). Additionally, the participant will have long-term or short-term capital gain or loss, as the case
may be, equal to the difference between the amount the participant received upon disposition of the shares and
the option exercise price increased by the amount of ordinary income, if any, the participant recognized by
reason of the disqualifying disposition.

With respect to both nonqualified stock options and incentive stock options, special rules apply if a
participant uses shares of the Company’s common stock already held by the participant to pay the exercise price
or if the shares received upon exercise of the option are subject to a substantial risk of forfeiture by the
participant.

Stock Appreciation Righits

A participant generally will not recognize taxable income upon the grant or vesting of an SAR. Upon the
exercise of an SAR, a participant will recognize compensation taxable as ordinary income in an amount equal to
the difference between the fair market value of the shares underlying the SAR on the date of exercise and the
grant price of the SAR.

Unrestricted Stock Awards

Upon receipt of a stock award that is not subject to restrictions, a participant generally will recognize
compensation taxable as ordinary income in an amount equal to the excess of the fair market value of the shares
at such time over the amount, if any, paid 1o the Company by the participant with respect to the shares. When the
participant sells the shares, the participant generally will recognize short-term or long-term capital gain or loss,
as the case may be, equal to the difference between the amount the participant received trom the sale and the tax
basis of the shares sold. The tax basis of the shares generally will be equal to the amount, if any, paid by the
participant with respect to the shares, plus the amount of taxable ordinary income recognized by the participant
upon receipt of the shares.

Restricted Stock Awards

A recipient of a restricted stock award generally will recognize compensation taxable as ordinary income
when the shares cease to be subject to restrictions in an amount equal to the excess of the fair market value of the
shares at such time over the amount, if any, paid to the Company by the participant with respect to the shares.
However, no later than 30 days after a participant receives the restricted stock award, the participant may elect to
recognize compensation taxable as ordinary income in the year of the award in an amount equal to the fair
market value of the shares at the time of receipt. This election is made under Section 83(b) of the Code and must
meet certain technical requirements.

The tax treatment of a subsequent disposition of restricted stock will depend on whether the participant has
made a timely and proper election under Section 83(b) of the Code. If the participant makes a timely and proper
Section 83(b) election, when a participant sells the restricted shares, the participant will have short-term or long-
term capital gain or loss, as the case may be. equal to the difference between the amount the participant received
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from the sale and the tax basis of the shares sold. If no Section 83(b) election is made, any disposition after the
restrictions lapse generally will result in short-term or long-term capital gain or loss, as the case may be, equal to
the difference between the amount the participant received from the sale and the tax basis of the shares sold. The
tax basis of the shares generally will be equal to the amount, if any, paid to the Company by the participant for
the shares plus the amount of taxable ordinary income recognized by the participant either at the time the
restrictions lapsed or at the time a Section 83(b) election was made, as the case may be. If the participant forfeits
the shares to the Company (e.g., upon the participant’s termination prior to expiration of the restriction period),
the participant may not claim a deduction with respect to the income recognized as a result of making a

Section &3(b) election.

Any dividends paid with respect to shares of restricted stock generally will be taxable as ordinary income to
the participant at the time the dividends are received.

Performance Awards and Other Stock Unit Awards

A participant generally will not recognize taxable income upon the grant of a performance award. Upon the
Jdistribution of cash, shares or other property to a participant pursuant to the terms of a performance award, the
participant generally will recognize compensation taxable as ordinary income in an amount equal to the excess of
the amount of cash or the fair market value of any property transferred to the participant pursuant to the terms of
the award over any amount paid to the Company by the participant with respect to the award. The U.S. federal
income tax consequences of other stock unit awards will depend upon the specific terms of each award.

Tax Consequences to the Company

In the foregoing cases, the Company generally will be entitled to a deduction at the same time and in the
same amount as a participant recognizes ordinary income, subject to certain limitations imposed under the Code.

Tax Withholding

The Company is authorized to deduct or withhold from any award granted or payment due under the
2004 Plan, or require a participant to remit to the Company, the amount of any withholding taxes due in respect
of the award or payment and to take such other action as may be necessary to satisfy all obligations for the
payment of applicable withholding taxes. The Compensation Committee is authorized to establish procedures for
election by participants to satisfy their obligations for the payment of withholding taxes by delivery of shares of
the Company’s stock or by directing the Company to retain stock otherwise deliverable in connection with the
award. The Company is not required to issue any shares of the Company’s common stock or otherwise settle an
award under the 2004 Plan until all tax withholding obligations are satisfied.

Other Information

A new plan benefits table, as described in the federal proxy rules, is not provided because all awards made
under the 2004 Plan are discretionary. The closing price of the Company’s commen stock, as reported on the
NASDAQ Global Select Market on April 7, 2008, was $41.45 per share.

THE COMPANY’S BOARD OF DIRECTORS UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS A VOTE “FOR” THE

APPROVAL OF THE AMENDMENT TO THE GYMBOREE CORPORATION
2004 EQUITY INCENTIVE PLAN
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PROPOSAL THREE: APPROVAL OF AN AMENDMENT TO THE GYMBOREE CORPORATION
1993 EMPLOYEE STOCK PURCHASE PLAN

The Board is asking the stockholders to approve an amendment to The Gymboree Corporation 1993
Employee Stock Purchase Plan (including the amendment that is the subject of this Proposal Three, the “ESPP™).
The Board voted to amend the ESPP on Apnil 1, 2008, to increase the number of shares authorized for issuance
under the ESPP by 150,000 shares {from 1,025,278 to 1,175,278 shares), effective only upon receipt of approval
by the Company’s stockholders.

The Board approved the increase in the number of shares authorized for 1ssuance under the ESPP because
the Board determined that the ESPP provides a valuable opportunity for employees to acquire an ownership
interest in the Company and provides stockholder value by aligning employee and stockholder interests.
Approximately six percent of the Company’s eligible employees participated in the ESPP in fiscal 2007. The
Board amended the ESPP to increase the number of shares reserved for issuance to permit employee participation
in the ESPP to continue at historical levels and preserve the ESPP’s benefits.

A copy of the ESPP is attached to this Proxy Statement as Appendix B. The following description of the
ESPP is a summary and does not purport to be a complete description. See Appendix B for more detailed
information.

Description of The Gymboree Corporation 1993 Amended and Restated Employee Stock Purchase Plan
Purpose

The purpose of the ESPP is to provide employees of the Company and the Company’s designated
subsidiaries with an opportunity to purchase the Company’s common stock through accumulated payroll
deductions pursuant to a plan that qualifies for beneficial tax treatment under Code Section 423 as an “employee
stock purchase plan.”

Administration / R

The ESPP may be administered by the Company’s Board or any committee appointed by the Board, or by ‘
one or more executive officers designated by the Board (the “plan administrator”). The plan administrator is |
authorized to administer and interpret the ESPP, subject in all cases to the limitations of Code Section 423, and
such decisions and determinations will be binding on all participants.

AN

Stock Subject to the ESPP I

Under the ESPP, eligible employees may purchase shares of common stock through payroll deductions at a
discount from market price without incurring broker commissions. A maximum of 1,175,278 shares of common
stock, subject to adjustments for stock splits, will be available for purchase under the ESPP, assuming the
Company receives siockholder approval of the proposed amendment. The comimon stock issued wnder the ESPP
will be from authorized but unissued shares of the Company’s common stock or from shares subsequently .
acquired as treasury shares.

Eligibility

To be eligible to participate in the ESPP, an employee must be employed by the Company at least 20 hours
a week and may not own 5% or more of the combined voting power or value of the Company’s capital stock or
that of any related corporation. The eligibility criteria may be changed by the plan administrator for fulure
offering periods within the limits of Code Section 423 as described in the ESPP. Non-employee directors are not
eligible to participate in the ESPP. As of April 7, 2008, approximately 3,671 employees were eligible to
participate in the ESPP. Under the ESPP, no employee may purchase more than $25,000 worth of common stock
(based on the fair market value of the common stock on the first day of the offering period) during any calendar
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year, no employee may purchase more than 2,000 shares during any purchase period, and the aggregate number
of shares purchased under the ESPP in any purchase period may not exceed 200,000 shares.

Offering Periods and Purchase Periods

The ESPP is generally divided into six-month offering periods with a new offering period beginning each
Janvary 1 and July 1 and ending on the next June 30 and December 31, respectively. Each offering period has
one six-month purchase period beginning on January 1 and July | and ending on June 30 and December 31,
respectively. The plan administrator can establish a different period for any future offering period. During the
offering periods, participating employees accumulate funds in an account used to buy common stock through
payroll deductions. Payroll deductions accrue at a rate of not less than 1% and not more than 10% of an
cmployee’s base pay, overtime, shift premiums and commissions paid during each payroll period in a purchase
period. At the end of each six-month purchase peried, the purchase price is determined and the participating
cmployee's accumulated funds are used to purchase the appropriate whole number of shares of common stock.
The purchase price per share of common stock is 85% of the lesser of (a) the fair market value of the common
stock on the first day of the offering period and (b) the fair market value on the last trading day of the purchase
period. “Fair market value” is defined in the ESPP as the closing sales price for that day as reported by

NASDAQ. On April 7, 2008, the closing price of the Company’s common stock, as reported on the NASDAQ

Global Select Market, was $41.45 per share.

Effect of Termination

Employees who terminate their employment with the Company for any reason prior to the last trading day
of a purchase period will not be allowed to acquire shares under the ESPP for that purchase period. Upon
termination of employment, the Company will pay the balance in the employee’s account to the employee or to
his or her estate without interest.

Transferability

Neither payroll deductions credited to an employee’s account under the ESPP nor any rights with regard to
the purchase of shares under the ESPP may be assigned, transferred, pledged or otherwise disposed of in any way
by the employee, other than by will or the laws of descent and distribution. However, a participant in the ESPP
may designate a beneficiary to receive any shares or cash remaining in such employee’s account at the time of
his or her death by providing written notice of such designation to the Company.

Change of Control

In the event of a merger or sale of all or substantially all of the Company’s assets, each option to purchase
shares during an ongoing offering period will be assumed or substituted for by the successor corporation unless
the Board determines in its sole discretion to shorten the offering period and set a new purchase date in lieu of
such assumption or substitution. In the event of a proposed liguidation or dissolution, the offering period will
terminate immediately prior to the consummation of such proposed action.

Amendment, Suspension and Termination of the ESPP

The Board has the power 1o amend, suspend or terminate the ESPP, except that the Board may not amend
the ESPP without stockholder approval if such approval is required under Code Section 423. Unless sooner
terminated, the ESPP will terminate on February 11, 2013.

Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences

The Company intends that the ESPP qualify as an “employee stock purchase plan” under Section 423 of the
Code. The following discussion is only a brief summary of the material U.S. federal income tax consequences of
the ESPP generally applicabie to the Company and the participating employees who are U.S. citizens in the
United States. The discussion is general in nature and does not purport to be legal or tax advice. The discussion is
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based on the Code, applicable Treasury Regulations and administrative and judicial interpretations thereof, each
as in effect on the date of this Proxy Statement and is, therefore, subject to future changes in the law, possibly
with retroactive effect. Furthermore, the discussion does not address issues relating to any U.S. gift or estate tax
consequences or the consequences of any state, local or foreign tax laws. The tax consequences of the ESPP will
depend on a participant’s own particular circumstances. Accordingly, participants are strongly urged to consult
with their own tax advisors regarding the U.S. federal tax consequences of the ESPP in light of their own
particular circumstances, as well as the effect of any state, local or foreign tax laws.

Under the Code, the Company is deemed to grant employee participants in the ESPP an “option” on the first
day of each offering period to purchase as many shares of the Company’s common stock as the employee will be
able to purchase with the payroll deductions credited to his or her account during the offering period. On the last
day of each six-month offering period, the purchase price is deiermined and the employee is deemed to have
exercised the “option” and purchased the number of shares of common stock his or her accumulated payroll
deductions will purchase at the purchase price.

The amounts deducted from a participating employee’s pay pursuant to the ESPP will be included in the
employee’s compensation and subject to applicable federal income and employment taxes. Generally, no
additional income will be recognized by the employee either at the beginning of the offering period {when the
“option” is granted} or at the time the employee purchases shares of common stock pursuant to the ESPP.

The required holding period for favorable federal income tax treatment upon disposition of the Company’s
common stock acquired under the ESPP is the later of (1) two years after the deemed “option” is granted (the first
day of the relevant offering period), and (2) one year afier the deemed “option” is exercised and the commen stock
is purchased (the last day of the relevant offering period). When the common stock is disposed of afier this period,
or after the employee’s death if the employee dies while holding the common stock (a “qualifying disposition™}, the
employee (or in the case of death, the employee’s estate) realizes ordinary income to the extent of the lesser of
(a) the amount by which the fair market value of the common stock at the time the deemed “option” was granted
exceeded the “‘option price” and (b) the amount by which the fair market value of the common stock at the time of
the disposition exceeded the “option price.” The “option price” is generally equal to 85% of the lesser of the fair
market value of the common stock on the first day of the offering period and the fair market value of the common
stock on the last day of the offering period. Thus, the maximum amount of gain taxable as ordinary income
generally is the amount of the [5% discount measured as of the last day of an offering period. Any further gain
recognized on a qualifying disposition will be long-term capital gain. If the sale price is less than the option price,
there is no ordinary income and any loss recognized generally will be a long-term capital loss.

When an employee sells or disposes of Company common stock acquired under the ESPP (including by
way of most gifts) before the expiration of the required holding period (a “disqualifying disposition™), the
employee generally will recognize ordinary income to the extent of the difference between the price actually paid
for the common stock and the fair market value of the common stock at the date the option was exercised (the
last day of the relevant offering period), regardless of the price at which the common stock is sold. Any
additional gain recognized upon the disqualifying disposition will be capital gain. The capital gain will be long
term if the employee held the shares more than 12 months. If the sale price is less than the fair market value of
the common stock at the date of exercise, then the employee will have a capital loss equal to such difference.

Even though an employee must treat part of his or her gain on a qualifying disposition of the common stock
acquired under the ESPP as ordinary income, the Company may not take a business deduction for such amount.
However, if an employee makes a disqualifying disposition of common stock acquired under the ESPP, the
amount of income that the employee must report as ordinary income generaily qualifies as a business deduction
for the Company in the year of such disposition, subject to certain limitations imposed under the Code.,

Other Information

Because participation in the ESPP is entirely within the discretion of the eligible employees, a new plan
benefits table, as described in the federal proxy rules, is not provided. Because the Company cannot predict the
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participation levels by employees, the rate of employee contributions or the eventual purchase price under the
ESPP, it is not possible to determine the value of benefits that may be obtained by executive officers and other
emptoyees under the ESPP.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS A VOTE “FOR” APPROVAL OF
THE AMENDMENT TO THE GYMBOREE CORPORATION 1993 EMPLOYEE STOCK PURCHASE

PLAN.

EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION

The following table sets forth certain information as of the end of fiscal 2007 with respect to the shares of

the Company's common stock that were authorized for issuance under all of the Company’s equity compensation
plans in effect as of the end of fiscal 2007. The table does not include shares that will be authorized pursuant to
the amendment to the 2004 Plan or the amendment to the ESPP, both of which are described above and
submitted to the stockholders for approval at the Annual Meeting. The Company does not have any equity
compensation plans that have not been approved by the Company’s stockholders.

Number of Shares to be

Issued Upon Exercise of Number of Shares
Qutstanding Options, Weighted-Average  Remaining Available
Warrants and Rights Exercise Price of for Future Issuance
and Vesting of Outstanding Options, Under Equity
Pian Category Restricted Stock Units  Warrants and Rights Compensation Plans

Equity Compensation Plan
Approved by Stockholders . ... 2.405,510(1) 13.94(2) 447,547(3)(4)(5)
Equity Compensation Plans Not

Approved by Stockholders .. .. —

(n
(2)
A)

4

3)

f

Total .....coovvviannn, 2,405,510 13.94 447,547

Includes 236.576 shares subject to outstanding restricted stock unit awards.
Does not include shares subject to outstanding restricted stock unit awards.

Consists of 281,473 and 166,074 shares of common stock remaining available for issuance under The
Gymboree Corporation 2004 Equity Incentive Plan and 1993 Amended and Restated Employee Stock
Purchase Plan. In addition, approximately 24,847 were subject to purchase during the open purchase period
under the 1993 Amended and Restated Employee Stock Purchase Plan as of the end of fiscal 2007.

From the inception of the 2004 Equity Incentive Plan to the end of fiscal 2007, 239,999 shares that were
subject to options under the 1993 Stock Option Plan became available for issuance under the Company’s
2004 Equity Incentive Plan when those options expired without having been exercised and 1,273,076 shares
became available for issuance under the Company's 2004 Equity Incentive Plan that were either previously
available for issuance and not subject to outstanding options under The Gymboree Corporation 2002 Stock
Incentive Plan or subject to options under the Company’s 2002 Stock Incentive Plan that expired without
having been exercised. Up 10 496,037 shares that are currently subject to outstanding options granted under
the 1993 Stock Option Plan or the Company’s 2002 Stock Incentive Plan may become available for issuance
under the Company's 2004 Equity Incentive Plan in the future to the extent those shares are not issued (for
example, if those options expire without being exercised). Shares available for issuance under the
Company's 2004 Equity Incentive Plan may be granted in the form of stock options, stock awards, restricted
stock awards. restricted stock units, stock appreciation rights or any other form of equity compensation
approved by the Compensation Committee or the Board.

The Company’s non-employee directors receive annual equity awards valued at $110,000. These awards
vest over a three-year term.
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PROPOSAL FOUR: ADVISORY VOTE ON APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED
PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Audit Committee has selected Deloitte & Touche LLP, an independent registered public accounting
firm, 1o audit the Company’s financial statements for fiscal year 2008, and recommends that the stockholders
vote in favor of such appointment.

Deloitte & Touche LLP has served as the Company’s independent registered public accounting firm since
1987. Stockholder approval of the selection of Deloitte & Touche LLP as the Company’s independent registered
public accounting firm is not required by the Company’s bylaws or otherwise. The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
requires the Audit Committee to be directly responsible for the appointment, compensation and oversight of the
audit of the Company's financial statements and the independent registered public accounting firm. The Audit
Committee will consider the results of the stockholder vote and in the event of a negative vote will reconsider its
selection of Deloitte & Touche LLP. Even in the event of an affirmative stockholder vote, the Audit Committee
in its discretion may direct the appointment of a different independent registered public accounting firm at any
time during the year if it determines that such a change would be in the best interests of the Company.

Representatives of Deloitte & Touche LLP are expected to be present at the Annual Meeting and will have
the opportunity to make a statement if they so desire, The representatives also are expected to be available to
respond to appropniate questions from stockholders.

THE COMPANY’S BOARD OF DIRECTORS UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS VOTING “FOR”
THE APPOINTMENT OF DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP AS THE COMPANY’S INDEPENDENT
REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM FOR FISCAL YEAR 2008

Wi
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OTHER INFORMATION

Other Matters of Business

The Company knows of no other matters to be submitted at the Annual Meeting. If any other matters
properly come before the Annual Meeting or any adjournment or postponement thereof, it is the intention of the
persons named in the enclosed form of proxy to vote the shares they represent as the Board may recommend.

Annual Report

Copies of The Gymboree Corporation 2007 Annual Report to Stockholders are being mailed to stockholders
together with this Proxy Statement. Additional copies may be obtained from the Secretary of the Company at 500
Foward Street, San Francisco, California 94105 or at http://ir.gymboree.com/annual.cfm.

The Gymboree Corporation Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended February 2, 2008, as
filed with the SEC, is included in The Gymboree Corporation 2007 Annual Report to Stockholders.

Corporate Governance Information

The following corporate governance materials of the Company are available in the Investors section of the
(Company’s website at www.gymboree.com. You may access the materials by clicking on the “Our Company-—
Corporate Governance” link:

+ Business & Ethics Code of Conduct;

«  Audit Committee, Nominating and Governance Committee and Compensation Committee charters;
s Code of Ethics for Senior Financial Officers; and

+  Corporate Governance Guidelines.

If any material provision of the Company's Business & Ethics Code of Conduct or the Company’s Code of
Ethics for Senior Financial Officers is waived for the Company’s Chief Executive Officer or senior financial
officers, or if any substantive changes are made to either code as they relate to any director or executive officer,
the Company will disclose that fact on the Company’s website within five business days of such waiver being
made.

Householding Information

As permitied by the SEC’s rules, the Company will deliver only one annual report or proxy statement 1o
multiple stockholders sharing an address unless the Company has received contrary instructions from one or
more of the stockholders. The Company will, upon written or oral request, deliver a separate copy of the annual
report or proxy statement to a stockholder at a shared address to which a single copy of the documents was
delivered and will include instructions as to how the stockholder can notify the Company that the stockholder
wishes to receive a separate copy of the annual report or proxy statement. Registered stockholders wishing to
receive a separate annual report or proxy statement in the future or registered stockholders sharing an address
wishing to receive a single copy of the annual report or proxy statement in the future may contact the Company’s
transfer agent Computershare Investor Services by mail at PO Box 43078, Providence, Rhode Island,
02940-3078, or by telephone at 877-282-1169.

Deadline for Receipt of Stockholder Proposals for 2009 Annual Meeting

Proposals of stockholders of the Company which are intended to be included in the Company’s proxy
statement and presented by such stockholders at the 2009 Annual Meeting must be received by the Company no
later than Friday, January 2, 2009. In addition, the Company’s bylaws establish an advance notice procedure for
stockholder proposals that are not intended to be included in the Company’s proxy statement, including
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nominations for the election of directors. A copy of the full text of the bylaw provisions setting forth the advance
notice procedure may be obtained by writing to the Company's Secretary. For proposals and nominations to be
properly brought before the 2009 Annual Meeting by a stockholder, the stockholder must provide written notice
delivered to or mailed to and received by the Company’s Secretary at the Company’s principal executive offices
no later than Friday, January 2, 2009. Any notice of a proposal or nomination received by the Company after that
date will be considered untimely. in addition, if the Company receives notice of a siockholder proposal after
Wednesday, March 18, 2009, the persons named as proxies in the proxy statement for the 2009 Annual Meeting
will have discretionary voting authority to vote on such proposal at the 2009 Annual Meeting.

Company Consideration of Stockholder-Recommended Director Nominees

The Company’s Nominating and Governance Committee will consider director nominee recommendations
submitted by stockholders, Stockholders who wish to recommend a director nominee should submit their
suggestions in writing to the following: Chairperson of Nominating and Governance Committee, Attn: Secretary,
The Gymboree Corporation, 300 Howard Street, San Francisco, California 94105.

Stockholders should include the name, biographical information, and other relevant information relating to
the recommended director nominee, including information that would be required to be included in the proxy
statement filed in accordance with applicable niles under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and
the written consent of the director nominee to be named as a nominee and to serve as a director, if elected.
Evaluation of any such recommendations is the responsibility of the Nominating and Governance Committee
under its written charter. In the event of any stockholder recommendations, the Nominrating and Governance
Committee will evaluate the persons recommended in the same manner as other candidates.

Stockholder Communications with the Board of Directors

Stockholders may contact the Company’s Board as a group or an individual director by sending written
correspondence to the following address: Board of Directors, Attn: Secretary, The Gymboree Corporation, 500
Howard Street, San Francisco, California 94105. Stockholders should clearly specify in each communication the -
name of the individual or group of directors to whom the communication is addressed. r

FOR THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

)

M|

=
Marina Armstrong
Secretary
Dated: May 2, 2008 \__
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APPENDIX A
THE GYMBOREE CORPORATION
2004 EQUITY INCENTIVE PLAN
SECTION 1. PURPOSE

The purpose of The Gymboree Corporation 2004 Equity Incentive Plan is to attract, retain and motivate
employees, officers, directors, consultants, agents, advisors and independent contractors of the Company and its
Related Companies by providing them the opportunity to acquire a proprietary interest in the Company and to
align their interests and efforts to the long-term interests of the Company’s stockholders.

SECTION 2. DEFINITIONS

Certain capitalized terms used in the Plan have the meanings set forth in Appendix A.

SECTION 3. ADMINISTRATION

3.1 Administration of the Plan

The Plan shall be administered by the Board or the Compensation Committee, which shall be composed of
two or more directors, each of whom is a “non-employee director” within the meaning of Rule 16b-3(b)(3)
promulgated under the Exchange Act, or any successor definition adopted by the Securities and Exchange
Commission, and an “outside director” within the meaning of Section 162(m) of the Code, or any successor
provision thereto. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Board may delegate responsibility for administering the
Plan with respect to designated classes of Eligible Persons to different committees consisting of one or more
members of the Board, subject to such limitations as the Board deems appropriate, except with respect to Awards
to Participants who are subject to Section 16 of the Exchange Act or Awards granted pursuant to Section 16 of
the Plan, Notwithstanding the foregoing, with respect to discretionary Awards to non-employee directors, the
Board shall delegate responsibility for administering the Plan to a committee composed of independent directors. e
Members of any committee shall serve for such term as the Board may determine, subject to removal by the ‘
Board at any time. To the extent consistent with applicable taw, the Board or the Compensation Committee may
authorize one or more officers of the Company to grant Awards to designated classes of Eligible Persons, within
limits specifically prescribed by the Board or the Compensation Committee; provided, however, that no such
officer shall have or obtain authority to grant Awards to himself or herself or to any person subject to Section 16 !
of the Exchange Act. All references in the Plan to the “Committee” shall be, as applicable, to the Compensation |
Committee or any other committee or any officer to whom the Board or the Compensation Committee has P
delegated authority to administer the Plan.

L
N N Y

3.2 Administration and Interpretation by Committee

{a) Except for the terms and conditions explicitly set forth in the Plan and to the extent permitted by N
applicable law, the Committee shall have full power and exclusive authority, subject to such orders or resolutions
not inconsistent with the provisions of the Plan as may from time to time be adopted by the Board or a
Committee composed of members of the Board, to (i) select the Eligible Persons to whom Awards may from
time to time be granted under the Plan; (il) determine the type or types of Award to be granted to each Participant
under the Plan; (iii) determine the number of shares of Common Stock to be covered by each Award granted
under the Plan; (iv) determine the terms and conditions of any Award granted under the Plan; (v) approve the
forms of notice or agreement for use under the Plan; (vi) determine whether, to what extent and under what
circumstances Awards may be settled in cash, shares of Common Stock or other property or canceled or
suspended; (vii) determine whether, to what extent and under what circumstances cash, shares of Commaon Stock,
other property and other amounts payable with respect to an Award shall be deferred either automatically or at
the election of the Participant; (viii) interpret and administer the Plan and any instrument evidencing an Award,
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notice or agreement executed or entered into under the Plan; (ix) establish such rules and regulations as it shall
dzem appropriate for the proper administration of the Plan; (x) delegate ministerial duties to such of the
Company’s employees as it so determines; and (xi} make any other determination and take any other action that
the Committee deems necessary or desirable for administration of the Plan.

(b) In no event, however, shall the Committee have the right, without stockholder approval, to (i) cancel or
zmend outstanding Options or SARs for the purpose of repricing, replacing or regranting such Options or SARs
with Options or SARs that have a purchase or grant price that is less than the purchase or grant price for the
original Options or SARs except in connection with adjustments provided in Section 15, or (ii) issue an Option or
amend an outstanding Option to provide for the grant or issuance of a new Option on exercise of the original
Dption.

(c) The effect on the vesting of an Award of a Company-approved leave of absence or a Participant’s
working less than full-time shall be determined by the Company’s chief human resources officer or other person
performing that function or, with respect to directors or executive officers, by the Compensation Committee,
whose determination shall be final.

(d) Decisions of the Committee shall be final, conclusive and binding on all persons, including the
Company, any Participant, any stockholder and any Eligible Person. A majority of the members of the
Committee may determine its actions.

SECTION 4. SHARES SUBJECT TO THE PLAN

4.1 Authorized Number of Shares

Subject to adjustment from time to time as provided in Section 15.1, the number of shares of Common
Stock available for issuance under the Plan shall be:

{a) 3,115,000 shares; plus

(b) any authorized shares (i) not issued or subject to outstanding options under the Company’s 2002
Amended and Restated Stock Incentive Plan and the Company’s Amended and Restated 1993 Stock Option
Plan (the “Prior Plans™) on the Effective Date and (ii) any shares subject to outstanding options under the
Prior Plans on the Effective Date that cease to be subject to such options (other than by reason of exercise or
settlement of the options to the extent they are exercised for or settled in shares), up to an aggregate
maximum of 5,268,841 shares, subject to adjustment from time to time as provided in Section 15.1, which
shares shall cease, as of the Effective Date, to be available for grant and issuance under the Prior Plans, but
shall be available for issuance under the Plan,

Shares issued under the Plan shall be drawn from authorized and unissued shares or shares now held or
subsequently acquired by the Company as treasury shares.

4.2  Share Usage

{2) Shares of Common Stock covered by an Award shall not be counted as used unless and untii they are
actually issued and delivered to a Participant. If any Award lapses, expires, terminates or is canceled prior to the
issuance of shares thereunder or if shares of Common Stock are issued under the Plan to a Participant and
thereafter are forfeited to or otherwise reacquired by the Company, the shares subject to such Awards and the
forfeited or reacquired shares shatl again be available for issuance under the Plan. Any shares of Common Stock
(i) tendered by a Participant or retained by the Company as full or partial payment to the Company for the
purchase price of an Award or to satisfy tax withholding obligations in connection with an Award, or (ii) covered
by an Award that is settled in cash, or in a manner such that some or all of the shares of Common Stock covered
by the Award are not issued, shall be available for Awards under the Plan. The number of shares of Common
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Stock available for issuance under the Plan shall not be reduced to reflect any dividends or dividend equivalents
that are reinvested into additional shares of Common Stock or credited as additional shares of Common Stock
subject or paid with respect 10 an Award.

(b) The Committee shall also, without limitation, have the authority to grant Awards as an alternative to or
as the form of payment for grants or rights earned or due under other compensation plans or arrangements of the
Company.

(c) Notwithstanding anything in the Plan to the contrary, the Committee may grant Substitute Awards under
the Plan. Substitute Awards shall not reduce the number of shares authorized for issuance under the Plan. In the
event that an Acquired Entity has shares available for awards or grants under one or more preexisting plans not
adopted in contemplation of such acquisition or combination, then, to the extent determined by the Board or the
Compensation Committee, the shares available for grant pursuant to the terms of such preexisting plan (as
adjusted, to the extent appropriate, using the exchange ratio or other adjustment or valuation ratio or formula
used in such acquisition or combination to determine the consideration payable to holders of common stock of
the entities that are parties to such acquisition or combination) may be used for Awards under the Plan and shall
not reduce the number of shares of Common Stock authorized for issuance under the Plan; provided, however,
that Awards using such available shares shall not be made afier the date awards or grants could have been made
under the terms of such preexisting plans, absent the acquisition or combination, and shall only be made to
individuals who were not employees or directors of the Company or a Related Company prior to such acquisition
or combination. In the event that a written agreement between the Company and an Acquired Entity pursuant to
which a merger or consolidation is completed is approved by the Board and said agreement sets forth the terms
and conditions of the substitution for or assumption of outstanding awards of the Acquired Entity, said terms and
conditions shall be deemed to be the action of the Committee without any further action by the Committee,
except as may be required for compliance with Rule {6b-3 under the Exchange Act, and the persons holding such
awards shall be deemed to be Participants.

(d) Notwithstanding the other provisions in this Section 4.2, the maximum number of shares that may be
issued upon the exercise of Incentive Stock Options shall equal the aggregate share number stated in Section 4.1,
subject to adjustment as provided in Section 15.1.

4.3 Limitations

(a) Subject to adjustment as provided in Section 5.1, the aggregate number of shares that may be issued
pursuant to Awards granted under the Plan, other than Awards of Opticns or Stock Appreciation Rights, that are
not (i} subject to restrictions based on the satisfaction of specified performance goals or (ii) granted in lien of the
payment of performance-based cash incentive awards shall not exceed 50% of the aggregate maximum number
of shares specified in Section 4.1.

(b) Subject to adjustment as provided in Section 15.1, the aggregate number of shares that may be issued
pursuant to Awards granted under the Plan, other than Awards of Options or Stock Appreciation Rights, that
contain no restrictions or restrictions based solely on continuous employment or services for less than three years
{except where Termination of Service occurs by reason of death or Disability) shall not exceed 50% of the
aggregate maximum number of shares specified in Section 4.1.

(c) Each grant of Stock Awards, Restricted Stock and Restricted Stock Units granted pursuant to Sections 10,
11 or 12 of the Plan shall be subject to a minimum repurchase or forfeiture restriction such that the Award shall
remain subject to repurchase or forfeiture for at least (i) one year after the Grant Date if the applicable restrictions
are based on the achievement of performance goals and (ii) three years after the Grant Date if the applicable
restrictions are based on continuous service with the Company or a Related Company; and the Committee may
waive the applicable restrictions during the applicable restriction period only in connection with (x) a Company
Transaction that is not a Related Party Transaction, (y) a Change in Control or (z) the Participant’s Termination of
Service without Cause or by reason of the Participant’s death, Disability or retirement.
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SECTION 5. ELIGIBILITY

An Award may be granted to any employee, officer or director of the Company or a Related Company
whom the Committee from time to time selects. An Award may also be granted to any consultant, agent, advisor
or independent contractor for bona fide services rendered to the Company or any Related Company that (a) are
not in connection with the offer and sale of the Company’s securities in a capital-raising transaction and (b) do
not directly or indirecily promote or maintain a market for the Company’s securities,

SECTION 6. AWARDS

6.1 Form, Grant and Settlement of Awards

The Commitiee shall have the authority, in its sole discretion, to determine the type or types of Awards to be
granted under the Plan. Such Awards may be granted either alone or in addition to or in tandem with any other
type of Award. Any Award settlement may be subject to such conditions, restrictions and contingencies as the
Committee shall determine.

6.2 Evidence of Awards

Awards granted under the Plan shall be evidenced by a written, including an electronic, notice or agreement
that shall contain such terms, conditions, limitations and restrictions as the Committee shall deem advisable and
that are not inconsistent with the Plan.

6.3 Deferrals

The Committee may permit or require a Participant to defer receipt of the payment of any Award. If any
such deferral election is permitted or required, the Committee, in its sole discretion, shall establish rules and
procedures for such payment deferrals, which may include the grant of additional Awards or provisions for the
payment or crediting of interest or dividend equivalents, including converting such credits to deferred stock unit
equivalents.

6.4 Dividends and Distributions

Participants may, if the Committee so determines, be credited with dividends paid with respect to shares of
Common Stock underlying an Award in a manner determined by the Committee in its sole discretion, The
Committee may apply any restrictions to the dividends or dividend equivalents that the Commitiee deems
appropriate. The Committee, in its sole discretion, may determine the form of payment of dividends or dividend
equivalents, including cash, shares of Common Stock, Restricted Stock or Stock Units,

SECTION 7. OPTIONS

7.1  Grant of Options

The Committee may grant Options designated as Incentive Stock Options or Nongualified Stock Options.

7.2 Option Exercise Price

The exercise price for shares purchased under an Option shall be as determined by the Committee, but shall
not be less than 100% of the Fair Market Value on the Grant Date, except in the case of Substitute Awards.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Committee, in its sole discretion, may establish an exercise price that is equal
to the average of 100% of the Fair Market Value over a period of trading days not to exceed 30 days from the
Grant Date.
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7.3 Term of Options

Subject to eartier termination in accordance with the terms of the Plan and the instrument evidencing the
Option, the maximum term of a Nongualified Stock Option shall be as established for that Option by the
Committee or, if not so established, shall be ten years from the Grant Date.

7.4  Exercise of Options

The Committee shall establish and set forth in each instrument that evidences an Option the time at which,
ot the installments in which, the Option shall vest and become exercisable, any of which provisions may be
waived or modified by the Committee at any time. If not so established in the instrument evidencing the Option,
the Option shall vest and become exercisable according to the following schedule, which may be waived or
modified by the Committee at any time:

Period of Participant’s Continuous
Employment or Service With the

Company or Its Related Companies Portion of Total Option

From the Vesting Commencement Date That Is Vested and Exercisable
After 1 year 1/4th

Each additional one-month period of continuous An additional 1/48th

service completed thereafter

Afier 4 years 100%

To the extent an Option has vested and become exercisable, the Option may be exercised in whole or from
time to time in part by delivery to or as directed or approved by the Company of a properly executed stock option
exercise agreement or notice, in a form and in accordance with procedures established by the Committee, setting
forth the number of shares with respect to which the Option is being exercised, the restrictions imposed on the
shares purchased under such exercise agreement. if any, and such representations and agreements as may be
required by the Committee, accompanied by payment in full as described in Sections 7.5 and 13. An Option may
be exercised only for whole shares and may not be exercised for less than a reasonable number of shares at any
one time, as determined by the Committee.

7.5 Payment of Exercise Price

The exercise price for shares purchased under an Qption shall be paid in full to the Company by delivery of
consideration equal to the product of the Option exercise price and the number of shares purchased. Such
consideration must be paid before the Company will issue the shares being purchased and must be in a form or a
combination of forms acceptable to the Committee for that purchase, which forms may include:

(a) cash, check or wire transfer;

(b) tendering (either actually or, so long as the Common Stock is registered under Section 12(b) or
12(g) of the Exchange Act, by attestation) shares of Common Stock that on the day prior to the exercise date
have an aggregate Fair Market Value equal to the aggregate exercise price of the shares being purchased
under the Option owned by the Participant for at least six months (or any shorter period necessary to avoid a
charge to the Company’s earnings for financial reporting purposes);

{c) so long as the Common Stock is registered under Section 12(b) or 12(g) of the Exchange Act, and
to the extent permitted by law, delivery of a properly executed exercise notice, together with irrevocable
instructions to a brokerage firm designated or approved by the Company to deliver promptly to the
Company the aggregate amount of proceeds to pay the Option exercise price and any withholding tax
obligations that may arise in connection with the exercise, all in accordance with the regulations of the
Federal Reserve Board; or

(d) such other consideration as the Committee may permit.
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7.6  Effect of Termination of Service

The Committee shall establish and set forth in each instrument that evidences an Option whether the Option
shall continue to be exercisable, and the terms and conditions of such exercise, after a Termination of Service,
any of which provisions may be waived or modified by the Committee at any time. If not so established in the
instrument evidencing the Option, the Option shall be exercisable according to the following terms and
conditions, which may be waived or modified by the Committee at any time:

(a) Any portion of an Option that is not vested and exercisable on the date of a Participant’s
Termination of Service shall expire on such date.

(b) Any portion of an Qption that is vested and exercisable on the date of a Participant’s Termination of
Service shall expire on the earliest to occur of:

(i) if the Participant’s Termination of Service occurs for reasons other than Cause, Disability or
death, the date that is three months afier such Termination of Service;

(ii) if the Participant’s Termination of Service occurs by reason of Disability or death, the
one-year anniversary of such Termination of Service; and

(iii) the last day of the maximum term of the Option (the “Option Expiration Date”).

Notwithstanding the foregoing, if a Participant dies after his or her Termination of Service but while an
Option is otherwise exercisable, the portion of the Option that is vested and exercisable on the date of such
Termination of Service shall expire upon the earlier to occur of (y) the Option Expiration Date and (z) the
one-year anniversary of the date of death, unless the Committee determines otherwise.

Also notwithstanding the foregoing, in case a Participant’s Termination of Service occurs for Cause, all
Options granted to the Participant shall automatically expire upon first notification to the Participant of such
termination, unless the Committee determines otherwise. If a Participant’s employment or service
relationship with the Company is suspended pending an investigation of whether the Participant shall be
terminated for Cause, all the Participant’s rights under any Option shall likewise be suspended during the
period of investigation. If any facts that would constitute termination for Cause are discovered after a
Participant’s Termination of Service, any Option then held by the Participant may be immediately
terminated by the Committee, in its sole discretion.

(c) A Participant’s change in status from an employee to a consultant, advisor or independent
contractor, or a change in status from a consultant, advisor or independent contractor to an employee, shall
not be considered a Termination of Service for purposes of this Section 7.6.

SECTION 8. INCENTIVE STOCK OPTION LIMITATIONS

Notwithstanding any other provisions of the Plan, the terms and conditions of any Incentive Stock Options
shall in addition comply in all respects with Section 422 of the Code, or any successor provision, and any
applicable regulations thereunder, including, to the extent required thereunder, the following:

8.1 Deollar Limitation

To the extent the aggregate Fair Market Value (determined as of the Grant Date) of Common Stock with
respect to which a Participant’s Incentive Stock Options become exercisable for the first time during any
czlendar year (under the Plan and alt other stock option plans of the Company and its parent and subsidiary
corporations) exceeds $100,000, such portion in excess of $100,000 shall be treated as a Nonqualified Stock
Option. In the event the Participant holds two or more such Options that become exercisable for the first time in
the same calendar year, such limitation shall be applied on the basis of the order in which such Options are
granted.
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8.2 Eligible Employees

Individuals who are not employees of the Company or one of its parent or subsidiary corporations may not
be granted Incentive Stock Options.

8.3 Exercise Price

The exercise price of an Incentive Stock Option shall be at least 100% of the Fair Market Value of the
Common Stock on the Grant Date, and in the case of an Incentive Stock Option granted to a Participant who
owns more than 10% of the total combined voting power of all classes of the stock of the Company or of its
parent or subsidiary corporations (a “Ten Percent Stockholder”), shall not be less than 110% of the Fair Market
Value of the Common Stock on the Grant Date. The determination of more than 10% ownership shall be made in
accordance with Section 422 of the Code.

84 Option Term

Subject to earlier termination in accordance with the terms of the Plan and the instrument evidencing the
Option, the maximum term of an Incentive Stock Option shall not exceed ten years, and in the case of an
Incentive Stock Option granted to a Ten Percent Stockholder, shall not exceed five years.

8.5 Exercisability

An Option designated as an Incentive Stock Option shall cease to qualify for favorable tax treatment as an
Incentive Stock Option to the extent it is exercised (if permitted by the terms of the Option) (a) more than three
months after the date of a Participant’s Termination of Service if termination was for reasons other than death or
disability, (b) more than one vear after the date of a Participant’s Termination of Service if termination was by
reason of disability, or {c) after the Participant has been on leave of absence for more than 90 days, unless the
Participant’s reemployment rights are guarantced by statute or contract.

8.6 Taxation of Incentive Stock Options

In order to obtain certain tax benefits afforded to Incentive Stock Options under Section 422 of the Code,
the Participant must hold the shares acquired upon the exercise of an Incentive Stock Option for two years after
the Grant Date and one year after the date of exercise.

A Participant may be subject to the alternative minimum tax at the time of exercise of an Incentive Stock
Option. The Participant shall give the Company prompt notice of any disposition of shares acquired on the
exercise of an Incentive Stock Option prior to the expiration of such holding periods.

8.7 Code Definitions

” G

For the purposes of this Section § “disability,” “parent corporation” and “subsidiary corporation” shall have
the meanings attributed to those terms for purposes of Section 422 of the Code.

SECTION 9. STOCK APPRECIATION RIGHTS

9.1 Grant of Stock Appreciation Rights

The Committee may grant Stock Appreciation Rights to Participants at any time on such terms and
conditions as the Committee shall determine in its sole discretion. An SAR may be granted in tandem with an
Option or alone (“freestanding™). The grant price of a tandem SAR shall be equal to the exercise price of the
related Option. The grant price of a freestanding SAR shall be established in accordance with procedures for
Options set forth in Section 7.2. An SAR may be exercised upon such terms and conditions and for the term as
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thz Comimittee determines in its sole discietion; provided, however, that, subject to earlier termination in
accordance with the terms of the Plan and the instrument evidencing the SAR, the term of a freestanding SAR
shall be as established for that SAR by the Committee or, if not so established, shall be ten years, and in the case
of a tandem SAR, (a) the term shall not exceed the term of the related Option and (b) the tandem SAR may be
exercised for all or part of the shares subject to the related Option upon the surrender of the right to exercise the
equivalent portion of the related Option, except that the tandem SAR may be exercised only with respect to the
shares for which its related Option is then exercisable.

9.2 Payment of SAR Amount

Upon the exercise of an SAR, a Participant shall be entitled to receive payment in an amount determined by
maltiplying: (a) the difference between the Fair Market Value of the Common Stock for the date of exercise over
thz grant price of the SAR by (b} the number of shares with respect to which the SAR is exercised. At the
discretion of the Committee as set forth in the instrument evidencing the Award, the payment upon exercise of an
SAR may be in cash, in shares, in some combination thereof or in any other manner approved by the Committee
in its sole discretion.

SECTION 10. STOCK AWARDS, RESTRICTED STOCK AND STOCK UNITS

16.1 Grant of Stock Awards, Restricted Stock and Stock Units

The Cominittee may grant Stock Awards, Restricted Stock and Stock Units on such terms and conditions
and subject to such repurchase or forfeiture restrictions, if any, which may be based on continuous service with
the Company or a Related Company or the achievement of any performance goals, as the Committee shall
determine in its sole discretion, which terms, conditions and restrictions shall be set forth in the instrument
evidencing the Award.

10.2 Vesting of Restricted Stock and Stock Units

Upon the satisfaction of any terms, conditions and restrictions prescribed with respect to Restricted Stock or
Stock Units, or upen a Participant’s release from any terms, conditions and restrictions of Restricted Stock or
Stock Units, as determined by the Committee, and subject to the provisions of Section 13, (a) the shares of
Restricted Stock covered by each Award of Restricted Stock shall become freely transferable by the Participant,
and (b) Stock Units shall be paid in shares of Common Stock or, if set forth in the instrument evidencing the
Awards, in cash or a combination of cash and shares of Common Stock. Any fractional shares subject to such
Arwvards shall be paid to the Participant in cash.

10.3 Waiver of Restrictions

Notwithstanding any other provisions of the Plan, the Committee, in its sole discretion, may waive the
reaurchase or forfeiture period and any other terms, conditions or restrictions on any Restricted Stock or Stock
Unit under such circumstances and subject to such terms and conditions as the Committee shall deem
appropriate.

SECTION 11. PERFORMANCE AWARDS

11.1 Performance Shares

The Committee may grant Awards of Performance Shares, designate the Participants to whom Performance
Shares are to be awarded and determine the number of Performance Shares and the terms and conditions of each
such Award. Performance Shares shall consist of a unit valued by reference to a designated number of shares of
Common Stock, the value of which may be paid to the Participant by delivery of shares of Common Stock or, if
set forth in the instrument evidencing the Award, of such property as the Committee shall determine, including,

A-8




without limitation, cash, shares of Common Stock, other property, or any combination thereof, upon the
attainment of performance goals, as established by the Committee, and other terms and conditions specified by
the Committee. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the amount to be paid under an Award of Performance Shares
may be adjusted on the basis of such further consideration as the Committee shall determine in its sole discretion.

11.2 Performance Units

The Committee may grant Awards of Performance Units, designate the Participants to whom Performance
Units are 1o be awarded and determine the number of Performance Units and the terms and conditions of each
such Award. Performance Units shall consist of a unit valued by reference to a designated amount of property
other than shares of Common Stock, which value may be paid to the Participant by delivery of such property as
the Committee shall determine, including, without limitation, cash, shares of Common Stock, other property, or
any combination thereof, upon the attainment of performance goals, as established by the Committee, and other
terms and conditions specified by the Committee. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the amount to be paid under an
Award of Performance Units may be adjusted on the basis of such further consideration as the Committee shall
determine in its sole discretion.

SECTION 12, OTHER STOCK OR CASH-BASED AWARDS

Subject to the terms of the Plan and such other terms and conditions as the Committee deems appropriate,
the Committee may grant other incentives payable in cash or in shares of Common Stock under the Plan,

SECTION 13. WITHHOLDING

The Company may require the Participant to pay to the Company the amount of (a) any taxes that the
Company is required by applicable federal, state, local or foreign law to withhold with respect to the grant,
vesting or exercise of an Award (“tax withholding obligations”) and (b) any amounts due from the Participant
to the Company or to any Related Company (“other obligations™). The Company shall not be required to issue
any shares of Common Stock or otherwise settle an Award under the Plan untii such tax withholding obligations
and other obligations are satisfied.

The Committee may permit or require a Participant to satisfy all or part of the Participant’s tax withholding
obligations and other obligations by (a) paying cash to the Company, (b) having the Company withhold an
amount from any cash amounts otherwise due or to become due from the Company to the Participant, (c) having
the Company withhold a number of shares of Common Stock that would otherwise be issued to the Participant
(or become vested, in the case of Restricted Stock) having a Fair Market Value equal to the tax withholding
obligations and other obligations, or (d) surrendering a number of shares of Common Stock the Participant
already owns having a value equal to the tax withholding obligations and other obligations. The value of the
shares so withheld may not exceed the employer’s minimum required tax withholding rate, and the vatue of the
shares so tendered may not exceed such rate to the exteat the Participant has owned the tendered shares for less
than six months if such limitations are necessary to avoid a charge to the Company for financial reporting

purposes.

SECTION 14. ASSIGNABILITY

No Award or interest in an Award may be sold, assigned, pledged (as collateral for a loan or as security for
the performance of an obligation or for any other purpose) or transferred by a Participant or made subject to
attachment or similar proceedings otherwise than by will or by the applicable laws of descent and distribution,
except to the extent the Participant designates one or more beneficiaries on a Company-approved form who may
exercise the Award or receive payment under the Award after the Participant’s death. During a Participant’s
lifetime, an Award may be exercised only by the Participant. Notwithstanding the foregoing and to the extent
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pzrmitted by Section 422 of the Code, the Committee, in its sole discretion, may permit a Participant to assign or
transfer an Award subject to such terms and conditions as the Committee shall specify.

SECTION 15. ADJUSTMENTS

1;5.1 Adjustment of Shares

In the event, at any time or from time to time, a stock dividend, stock split, spin-off, combination or
exchange of shares, recapitalization, merger, consolidation, distribution to stockholders other than a normal cash
dividend, or other change in the Company’s corporate or capital structure results in (a) the outstanding shares of
Common Stock, or any securities exchanged therefor or received in their place, being exchanged for a different
number or kind of securities of the Company or (b} new, different or additional securities of the Company or any
other company being received by the holders of shares of Common Stock, then the Committee shall make
proportional adjustments in (i} the maximum number and kind of securities available for issuance under the Plan;
(i) the maximum number and kind of securities issuable as Incentive Stock Options as set forth in Section 4.2;
and (ii{) the number and kind of securities that are subject to any outstanding Award and the per share price of
such securities, without any change in the aggregate price to be paid therefor. The determination by the
Committee as to the terms of any of the foregoing adjustments shall be conclusive and binding.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the issuance by the Company of shares of stock of any class, or securities
ccnvertible into shares of stock of any class, for cash ar property, or for labor or services rendered, either upon
direct sale or upon the exercise of rights or warrants to subscribe therefor, or upon conversion of shares or
obligations of the Company convertible into such shares or other securities, shall not affect, and no adjustment by
reason thereof shall be made with respect to. outstanding Awards. Also notwithstanding the foregoing, a
dissolution or liquidation of the Company or a Company Transaction shall not be governed by this Section 15.1
but shall be governed by Sections 15.2 and 15.3, respectively.

15.2 Dissolution or Liquidation

To the extent not previously exercised or settled, and unless otherwise determined by the Committee in its
sole discretion, Awards shall terminate immediately prior to the dissolution or liquidation of the Company. To
the: extent a vesting condition, forfeiture provision or repurchase right applicable to an Award has not been
wiived by the Committee, the Award shall be forfeited immediately prior to the consummation of the dissolution
or liquidation.

15.3 Company Transaction; Change in Control

15.3.1 Effect of a Company Transaction That Is Not a Change in Control or a Related Party
Transaction

Notwithstanding any other provision of the Plan to the contrary, unless the Committee shall determine
otherwise at the time of grant with respect to a particular Award, in the event of a Company Transaction that is
not {a) a Change in Control or (b) a Related Party Transaction:

(i) All outstanding Awards, other than Performance Shares and Performance Units, shall become fully
and immediately exercisable, and all applicable deferral and restriction limitations or forfeiture provisions
shall lapse, immediately prior to the Company Transaction and shall terminate effective at the effective time
of the Company Transaction, unless such Awards are converted, assumed or replaced by the Successor
Company. Notwithstanding the foregoing, with respect to Options or Stock Appreciation Rights, the
Committee, in its sole discretion, may instead provide that a Participant’s outstanding Options shall
terminate upon consummation of such Company Transaction and that each such Participant shall receive, in
exchange therefor, a cash payment equal to the amount (if any) by which (x) the Acquisition Price
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multiplied by the number of shares of Common Stock subject to such outstanding Options or SARs
(whether or not then exercisable) exceeds (y) the respective aggregate exercise price for such Options or
grant price for such SARs.

For the purposes of this Section 15.3.1, an Award shall be considered assumed or substituted for if
following the Company Transaction the option or right confers the right to purchase or receive, for each
share of Common Stock subject to the Award immediately prior to the Company Transaction, the
consideration (whether stock, cash or other securities or property) received in the Company Transaction by
hoiders of Common Stock for each share held on the effective date of the transaction (and if holders were
offered a choice of consideration, the type of consideration chosen by the holders of a majority of the
outstanding shares); provided, however, that if such consideration received in the Company Transaction is
not solely common stock of the Successor Company, the Committee may, with the consent of the Successor
Company, provide for the consideration to be received upon the exercise of the Option, for each share of
Common Stock subject thereto, to be solely common stock of the Successor Company substantially equal in
fair market value to the per share consideration received by holders of Common Stock in the Company
Transaction. The determiration of such substantial equality of value of consideration shall be made by the
Committee, and its determination shall be conclusive and binding.

(ii) All Performance Shares or Performance Units earned and outstanding as of the date the Company
Transaction is determined to have occurred shall be payable in full at the target level in accordance with the
payout schedule pursuant to the Award agreement. Any remaining Performance Shares or Performance
Units (including any applicable performance period) for which the payout level has not been determined
shall be prorated at the target payout level up to and including the date of such Company Transaction and
shall be payable in full at the target level in accordance with the payout schedule pursuant to the Award
agreement. Any existing deferrals or other restrictions not waived by the Commitiee in its sole discretion
shall remain in effect.

15.3.2 Effect of a Change in Control

Notwithstanding any other provision of the Plan to the contrary, unless the Committee shall determine

otherwise at the time of grant with respect to a particular Award, in the event of a Change in Control:

(a) any Options and Stock Appreciation Rights outstanding as of the date such Change in Control is
determined to have occurred, and which are not then exercisable and vested, shall become fully exercisable
and vested to the full extent of the original grant;

(b) any restrictions and deferral limitations applicable to any Restricted Stock or Stock Units shatl
lapse, and such Restricted Stock or Stock Units shall become free of all restrictions and limitations and
become fully vested and transferable to the full extent of the original grant;

(c) all Performance Shares and Performance Units shall be considered to be earned at the target level
and payable in full, any deferral or other restriction shall lapse and such Performance Shares and
Performance Units shall be immediately settled or distributed; and

(d) any restrictions and deferral limitations and other conditions applicable to any other Awards shall
lapse, and such other Awards shall become free of all restrictions, limitations or conditions and become
fully vested and transferable to the full extent of the original grant.

15.3.3 Change in Control Cash-Out

Notwithstanding any other provision of the Plan, during the 60-day period from and after a Change in

Control (the “Change in Control Exercise Period™), if the Commitiee shall so determine at, or at any time after,
the time of grant, a Participant holding an Option, SAR, Restricted Stock Unit or Performance Share, shall have
the right, whether or not the Award is fully vested and/or exercisable and without regard to any deferral or other
restriction and in lieu of the payment of the purchase price for the shares of Common Stock being purchased
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under an Option, to elect by giving notice to the Company within the Change in Control Exercise Period to
surrender all or part of the Award to the Company and to receive cash, within 30 days of such notice:

(a) for an Option or SAR, in an amount equal to the amount by which the Acquisition Price per share of
Common Stock on the date of such election shall exceed the exercise price per share of Common Stock
under the Option, or the grant price per share of Common Stock under the SAR; and

(b) for a Restricted Stock Unit or Performance Share, in an amount equal to the Acquisition Price per
share of Commeon Stock under the Restricted Stock or Performance Share, multiplied by the number of
shares of Common Stock granted under the Award as to which the right granted under this Section 15.3.3
shall have been exercised.

15.4 Further Adjustment of Awards

Subject to Sections 15.2 and 15.3, the Committee shall have the discretion, exercisable at any time before a
sale, merger, consolidation, reorganization, liquidation, dissolution or change in control of the Company, as
defined by the Committee, 1o take such further action as it determines to be necessary or advisable with respect to
Awards. Such authorized action may include (but shall not be limited to) establishing, amending or waiving the
type. terms, conditions or duration of, or restrictions on, Awards so as to provide for earlier, later, extended or
acditional time for exercise, lifting restrictions and modifications, and the Committee may take such actions with
respect to all Participants, to certain categories of Participants or only to individual Participants. The Committee
may take such action before or after granting Awards to which the action relates and before or after any public
announcement with respect to such sale, merger, consolidation, reorganization, liquidation, dissolution or change
in control that is the reason for such action.

15.5 No Limitations

The grant of Awards shall in no way affect the Company’s right to adjust, reclassify, reorganize or
otherwise change its capital or business structure or to merge, consolidate, dissolve, liquidate or sell or transfer
all or any part of its business or assets.

15.6 Fractional Shares

In the event of any adjustment in the number of shares covered by any Award, each such Award shall cover
only the number of full shares resulting from such adjustment.

SECTION 16. CODE SECTION 162(m) PROVISIONS

Notwithstanding any other provision of the Plan, if the Committee determines, at the time Awards are
grented to a Participant who is, or is likely to be as of the end of the tax year in which the Company would claim
a tax deduction in connection with such Award, a Covered Employee, then the Committee may provide that this
Section 16 is applicable to such Award.

16.1 Performance Criteria

If an Award is subject o this Section 16, then the lapsing of restrictions thereon and the distribution of cash,
shzres of Common Stock or other property pursuant thereto, as applicable, shall be subject to the achievement of
one or more objective performance goals established by the Committee, which shall be based on the attainment
of specified levels of one of or any combination of the following “performance criteria” for the Company as a
whole or any business unit of the Company, as reported or calculated by the Company: cash flows (including, but
not limited to, operating cash flow, free cash flow or cash flow return on capital); working capital; earnings per
share: book value per share; operating income (including or excluding depreciation, amottization, extraordinary
iterns, restructuring charges or other expenses); revenues; operating margins; return on assets; inventory turns;
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return on equity; debt; debt plus equity; market or economic value added; stock price appreciation; total
stockholder return; cost control; strategic initiatives; store openings; growth and development of new concepts;
market share: net income (including or excluding extraordinary items, restructuring charges or other expenses);
return on invested capital; improvements in capital structure; or customer satisfaction, employee satisfaction,
services performance, cash management or asset management metrics (together, the “Performance Criteria™).
Such performance goals also may be based on the achievement of specified levels of Company performance (or
performance of an applicable affiliate, division or business unit of the Company) under one or more of the
Performance Criteria described above relative to the performance of other corporations. Such performance goals
shall be set by the Committee within the time period prescribed by, and shall otherwise comply with the
requirements of, Section 162({m) of the Code, or any successor provision thereto, and the regulations thereunder.

16.2 Adjustment of Awards

Notwithstanding any provision of the Plan other than Section 15, with respect to any Award that is subject
to this Section 16, the Committee may adjust downwards, but not upwards, the amount payable pursuant to such
Award, and the Committee may not waive the achievement of the applicable performance goals except in the
case of the death or disability of the Covered Employee.

16.3 Limitations

Subject to adjustment from time to time as provided in Section 15.1, no Covered Employee may be granted
Awards other than Performance Units subject to this Section 16 in any calendar year period with respect to more
than 400,000 shares of Common Stock for such Award, except that the Company may make additional one time
grants of such Awards for up to 400,000 shares to newly hired individuals, and the maximum dollar value
payable with respect to Performance Units subject to this Section 16 granted to any Covered Employee in any
one calendar year is $10,000,000.

The Committee shall have the power to impose such other restrictions on Awards subject to this Section 16
as it may deem necessary or appropriate to ensure that such Awards satisfy all requirements for “performance-
based compensation” within the meaning of Section 162{m)(4)(C) of the Code, or any successor provision
thereto.

SECTION 17. AMENDMENT AND TERMINATION

17.1 Amendment, Suspension or Termination

The Board or the Compensation Committee may amend, suspend or terminate the Plan or any portion of the
Plan at any time and in such respects as it shall deem advisable; provided, however, that, to the extent required
by applicable law, regulation or stock exchange rule, stockholder approval shall be required for any amendment
to the Plan; and provided, further, that any amendment that requires stockholder approval may be made only by
the Board. Subject to Section 17.3, the Committee may amend the terms of any outstanding Award, prospectively
or retroactively.

17.2 Term of the Plan

Unless sooner terminated as provided herein, the Plan shall terminate ten years from the Effective Date.
After the Plan is terminated, no future Awards may be granted, but Awards previously granted shail remain
outstanding in accordance with their applicable terms and conditions and the Plan’s terms and conditions.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, no Incentive Stock Options may be granted more than ten years after the later of
(a) the Effective Date and (b) the approval by the stockholders of any amendment to the Plan that constitutes the
adoption of a new plan for purposes of Section 422 of the Code.
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17.3 Consent of Participant

The amendment, suspension or termination of the Plan or a portion thereof or the amendment ofan
outstanding Award shall not, without the Participant’s consent, materially adversely affect any nights under any
Award theretofore granted to the Participant under the Plan. Any change or adjustment to an outstanding
Incentive Stock Option shall not, without the consent of the Participant, be made in a manner so as to constituie a
“modification” that would cause such Incentive Stock Option to fail to continue to qualify as an Incentive Stock
Option. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any adjustments made pursvant to Section 15 shall not be subject to these
re strictions,

SECTION 18. GENERAL

18.1 No Individual Rights

No individual or Participant shall have any claim to be granted any Award under the Plan, and the Company
has no obligation for uniformity of treatment of Participants under the Plan.

Furthermore, nothing in the Plan or any Award granted under the Plan shall be deemed to constitute an
employment contract or confer or be deemed to confer on any Participant any right to continue in the employ of,
or to continue any other relationship with, the Company or any Related Company or limit in any way the right of
the Company or any Related Company to terminate a Participant’s employment or other relationship at any time,
with or without cause.

18.2 Issuance of Shares

Notwithstanding any other provision of the Plan, the Company shall have no obligation to issue or deliver
anv shares of Common Stock under the Plan or make any other distribution of benefits under the Plan unless, in
the opinion of the Company’s counsel, such issuance, delivery or distribution would comply with all applicable
laws (including, without limitation, the requirements of the Securities Act or the laws of any state or foreign
jurisdiction) and the applicable requirements of any securities exchange or similar entity.

The Company shall be under no obligation to any Participant to register for offering or resale or to qualify
for exemption under the Securities Act, or to register or qualify under the laws of any state or foreign
jurisdiction, any shares of Common Stock, security or interest in a security paid or issued under, or created by,
the Plan, or to continue in effect any such registrations or qualifications if made.

As a condition to the exercise of an Option or any other receipt of Common Stock pursuant to an Award
under the Plan, the Company may require (a) the Participant to represent and warrant at the time of any such
exercise or receipt that such shares are being purchased or received only for the Participant’s own account and
without any present intention to sell or distribute such shares and (b) such other action or agreement by the
Parvicipant as may from time to time be necessary to comply with the federal, state and foreign securities laws.
At the option of the Company, a stop-transfer order against any such shares may be placed on the official stock
books and records of the Company, and a legend indicating that such shares may not be pledged, sold or
otherwise transferred, unless an opinion of counsel is provided (concurred in by counsel for the Company) stating
that such transfer is not in violation of any applicable law or regulation, may be stamped on stock certificates to
ensure exemption from registration. The Committee may also require the Participant to execute and deliver to the
Company a purchase agreement or such other agreement as may be in use by the Company at such time that
describes certain terms and conditions applicable to the shares.

To the extent the Plan or any instrument evidencing an Award provides for issuance of stock certificates to
reflect the issuance of shares of Common Stock, the issuance may be effected on a noncertificated basis, to the

exteat not prohibited by applicable law or the applicable rules of any stock exchange.
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18.3 Indemnification

Each person who is or shall have been a member of the Board, or a committee appointed by the Board, or an
officer of the Company to whom authority was delegated in accordance with Section 3, shall be indemnified and
held harmless by the Company against and from any loss, cost, liability or expense that may be imposed upon or
reasonably incurred by such person in connection with or resulting from any claim, action, suit or proceeding to
which such person may be a party or in which such person may be involved by reason of any action taken or
failure to act under the Plan and against and from any and all amounts paid by such person in settlement thereof,
with the Company’s approval, or paid by such person in satisfaction of any judgment in any such claim, action,
suit or proceeding against such person; provided, however, that such person shall give the Company an
opportunity, at its own expense, to handle and defend the same before such person undertakes to handle and
defend it on such person’s own behalf, unless such loss, cost, liability or expense is a result of such person’s own
willful misconduct or except as expressly provided by statute.

The foregoing right of indemnification shall not be exclusive of any other rights of indemnification to which
such person may be entitled under the Company’s certificate of incorporation or bylaws, as a matter of law, or
otherwise, or of any power that the Company may have to indemnify or hold harmless.

18.4 No Rights as a Stockholder

Unless otherwise provided by the Committee or in the instrument evidencing the Award or in a written
employment, services or other agreement, no Award, other than a Stock Award, shall entitle the Participant to
any cash dividend, voting or other right of a stockholder unless and until the date of issuance under the Plan of
the shares that are the subject of such Award.

18.5 Compliance With Laws and Regulations

In interpreting and applying the provisions of the Plan, any Option granted as an Incentive Stock Option
pursuant to the Plan shall, to the extent permitted by law, be construed as an “incentive stock option” within the
meaning of Section 422 of the Code.

18.6 Participants in Other Countries or Jurisdictions

Without amending the Plan, the Committee may grant Awards to Eligible Persons who are foreign nationals
on such terms and conditions different from those specified in this Plan as may, in the judgement of the
Commitiee, be necessary or desirable to foster and promote achievement of the purposes of the Plan and shall
have the authority to adopt such modifications, procedures, subplans and the like as may be necessary or
desirable to comply with provisions of the laws or regulations of other countries or jurisdictions in which the
Company or any Related Company may operate or have employees to ensure the viability of the benefits from
Awards granted to Participants employed in such countries or jurisdictions, meet the requirements that permit the
Plan to operate in a qualified or tax-efficient manner, comply with applicable foreign laws or regulations and
meet the objectives of the Plan.

18.7 No Trust or Fund

The Plan is intended to constitute an “unfunded” plan. Nothing contained herein shall require the Company
to segregate any monies or other property, or shares of Common Stock, or to create any trusts, or to make any
special deposits for any immediate or deferred amounts payable to any Participant, and no Participant shall have
any rights that are greater than those of a general unsecured creditor of the Company.,

18.8 Successors

All obligations of the Company under the Plan with respect to Awards shall be binding on any successor to
the Company, whether the existence of such successor is the result of a direct or indirect purchase, merger,
consolidation, or otherwise, of all or substantially all the business and/or assets of the Company.
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18.9  Severability

If any provision of the Plan or any Award is determined to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any
jurisdiction, or as to any person, or would disqualify the Plan or any Award under any law deemed applicable by
tte Commiltee, such provision shall be construed or deemed amended to conform to applicable laws, or, if it
cannot be so construed or deemed amended without, in the Committee’s determination, materially altering the
intent of the Plan or the Award, such provision shall be stricken as to such jurisdiction, person or Award, and the
remainder of the Plan and any such Award shall remain in full force and effect.

18.10 Choice of Law

The Plan, all Awards granted thereunder and all determinations made and actions taken pursuant hereto, to
th2 extent not otherwise governed by the laws of the United States, shall be governed by the laws of the State of
California without giving effect to principles of conflicts of law.

1§.11 Legal Requirements

The granting of Awards and the issuance of shares of Common Stock under the Plan are subject to all
applicable laws, rules and regulations and to such approvals by any governmental agencies or national securities
exchanges as may be required.

SECTION 19. EFFECTIVE DATE

The effective date (the “Effective Date”) is the date on which the Plan is approved by the stockholders of
the Company. If the stockholders of the Company do not approve the Plan within 12 months after the Board’s
adoption of the Plan, any Incentive Stock Options granted under the Plan will be treated as Nonqualified Stock
Ogtions.
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APPENDIX A
DEFINITIONS

As used in the Plan,

“Acquired Entity” means any entity acquired by the Company or a Related Company or with which the
Company or a Related Comipany merges or combines.

“Acquisition Price” means the higher of (a) the highest reported sales price, regular way, of a share of
Common Stock in any transaction reported on the New York Stock Exchange or other national exchange on
which the Common Stock is listed or on the Nasdag National Market during the 60-day period prior to and
including the date of a Company Transaction or Change in Control or {b) if the Company Transaction or Change
in Control is the result of a tender or exchange offer or a negotiated acquisition of the Company’s Common
Stock, the highest price per share of Common Stock paid in such tender or exchange offer or acquisition. To the
extent that the consideration paid in any such transaction described above consists all or in part of securities or
other noncash consideration, the value of such other securities or other noncash consideration shall be determined
by the Board in its sole discretion.

“Award” means any Option, Stock Appreciation Right, Stock Award, Restricted Stock, Stock Unit,
Performance Share, Performance Unit, cash-based award or other incentive payable in cash or in shares of
Common Stock as may be designated by the Committee from time to time.

“Board” means the Board of Directors of the Company.

“Cause,” unless otherwise defined in the instrument evidencing an Award or in a written employment,
services or other agreement between the Participant and the Company or a Related Company, means dishonesty,
fraud, serious or willful misconduct, unauthorized use or disclosure of confidential information or trade secrets,
or conduct prohibited by law (except minor violations), in each case as determined by the Company’s chief
human resources officer or other person performing that function or, in the case of directors and executive
officers, the Compensation Committee, whose determination shall be conclusive and binding.

“Change in Control,” unless the Committee determines otherwise with respect 1o an Award at the time the
Award is granted, means the happening of any of the following events:

(a) an acquisition by any Entity of beneficial ownership (within the meaning of Rule 13d-3
promulgated under the Exchange Act) of 50% or more of either (1) the then outstanding shares of common
stock of the Company (the “Outstanding Company Common Stock™) or (2) the combined voting power of
the then outstanding voting securities of the Company entitled to vote generally in the election of directors
(the “Outstanding Company Voting Securities™), excluding, however, the following (i) any acquisition
directly from the Company, other than an acquisition by virtue of the exercise of a conversion privilege
where the security being so converted was not acquired directly from the Company by the party exercising
the conversion privilege, (ii) any acquisition by the Company, (iii) any acquisition by any employee benefit
plan (or related trust) sponsored or maintained by the Company or any Related Company, or (iv) a Related
Party Transaction; or

(b} a change in the composition of the Board during any two-year period such that the individuals who,
as of the beginning of such two-year period, constitute the Board (the “Incumbent Board”) cease for any
reason to constitute at least a majority of the Board; provided, however, that for purposes of this definition,
any individual who becomes a member of the Board subsequent to the beginning of the two-year period,
whose election, or nomination for election by the Company’s stockholders, was approved by a vote of more
than half of those individuals who are members of the Board and who were also members of the Incumbent
Board (or deemed to be such pursuant to this proviso) shall be considered as though such individual were a
member of the Incumbent Board; and provided further, however, that any such individual whose initial
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assumption of office occurs as a result of or in connection with an actual or threatened solicitation of proxies
or consents by or on behalf of an Entity other than the Board shall not be considered a member of the
Incumbent Board.

“Change in Control Exercise Period” has the meaning set forth in Section 15.3.3.
“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended from time to time.
“Committee” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.1.

“Common Stock” means the common stock, par value $0.001 per share, of the Company.
“Company” means The Gymboree Corporation, a Delaware corporation.

“Company Transaction,” unless otherwise defined in the instrument evidencing the Award or in a written
employment, services or other agreement between the Participant and the Company or a Related Company,
means consummation of:

(a) a merger or consolidation of the Company with or into any other company or other entity;

(b) a sale in one transaction or a series of transactions undertaken with a common purpose of more than
50% of the Company’s outstanding voting securities; or

(c) a sale, lease, exchange or other transfer in one transaction or a series of related transactions
undertaken with a common purpose of all or substantially all of the Company’s assets.

Where a series of transactions undertaken with a common purpose is deemed to be a Company Transaction, the
date of such Company Transaction shall be the date on which the last of such transactions is consummated.

“Compensation Committee” means the Compensation Committee of the Board.

“Covered Employee” means a “covered employee” as that term is defined for purposes of
Section 162(m)(3) of the Code or any successor provision.

“Disability,” unless otherwise defined by the Committee or in the instrument evidencing the Award or in a
written employment, services or other agreement between the Participant and the Company or a Related
Company, means a mental or physical impairment of the Participant that is expected to resuit in death or that has
Izsted or is expected to last for a continuous period of 12 months or more and that causes the Participant to be
u:aable to perform his or her material duties for the Company or a Related Company and to be engaged in any
substantial gainful activity, in each case as determined by the Company's chief human resources officer or other
person performing that function or, in the case of directors and executive officers, the Compensation Committee,
whose determination shall be conclusive and binding.

“Effective Date” has the meaning set forth in Section 19,
*“Eligible Person” means any person eligible to receive an Award as set forth in Section 5.

“Entity” means any individual, entity or group (within the meaning of Section 13(d)(3) of the Exchange
Azt

“Exchange Act” means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended from time to time,

“Fair Market Value” means the average of the high and low trading prices for the Common Stock on any
given date during regular trading, or if not trading on that date, such price on the last preceding date on which the
Common Stock was traded, unless determined otherwise by the Committee using such methods or procedures as
it may establish.

A-18




“Grant Date” means the later of (a) the date on which the Committee completes the corporate action
authorizing the grant of an Award or such later date specified by the Committee or (b} the date on which all
conditions precedent to an Award have been satisfied, provided that conditions to the exercisability or vesting of
Awards shall not defer the Grant Date.

“Incentive Stock Option” means an Option granted with the intention that it qualify as an “incentive stock
option” as that term is defined for purposes of Section 422 of the Code or any successor provision.

“Nongqualified Stock Option™ means an Option other than an Incentive Stock Option.
“Option” means a right to purchase Common Stock granted under Section 7.

“Parent Company” means a company or other entity which as a result of a Company Transaction owns the
Company or all or substantially all of the Company’s assets either directly or through one or more subsidiaries.

“Participant” means any Eligible Person to whom an Award is granted.

“Performance Award” means an Award of Performance Shares or Performance Units granted under
Section 11,

“Performance Criteria” has the meaning set forth in Section 16.1.

“Performance Share” means an Award of units denominated in shares of Common Stock granted under
Section 11.1.

“Performance Unit” means an Award of units denominated in cash or property other than shares of
Common Stock granted under Section 11.2.

“Plan™ means The Gymboree Corporation 2004 Equity Incentive Plan.

“Related Company” means any entity that is directly or indirectly controlled by, in control of or under
common control with the Company.

“Related Party Transaction” means a Company Transaction pursuant to which:

(a) the Entities who are the beneficial owners of the Qutstanding Company Common Stock and
Outstanding Company Voting Securities immediately prior to such Company Transaction will beneficially
own, directly or indirectly, at least 50% of the outstanding shares of common stock, and the combined
voting power of the then outstanding voting securities entitled to vote generally in the election of directors
of the Successor Company in substantially the same proportions as their ownership, immediately prior to
such Company Transaction, of the Outstanding Company Common Stock and Qutstanding Company Voting
Securities;

(b) no Entity (other than the Company, any employee benefit plan (or related trust) of the Company or
a Related Company, the Successor Company or, if reference was made to equity ownership of any Parent
Company for purposes of determining whether clause (a) above is satisfied in connection with the applicable
Company Transaction, such Parent Company) will beneficially own, directly or indirectly, 50% or more of,
respectively, the outstanding shares of common stock of the Successor Company or the combined voting
power of the outstanding voting securities of the Successor Company entitled to vote generaily in the
election of directors unless such ownership resulted solely from ownership of securities of the Company
prior to the Company Transaction; and

(c) individuals who were members of the Incumbent Board will immediately after the consummation of
the Company Transaction constitute at least a majority of the members of the board of directors of the
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Successor Company (or, if reference was made to equity ownership of any Parent Company for purposes of
determining whether clause (a) above is satisfied in connection with the applicable Company Transaction, of
the Parent Company).

“Restricted Stock” means an Award of shares of Common Stock granted under Section 10, the rights of
ownership of which are subject to restrictions prescribed by the Committee.

“Securities Act” means the Securities Act of 1933, as amended from time to time.

“Stock Appreciation Right” or “SAR” means a right granted under Section 9.1 to receive the excess of the
Fair Market Value of a specified number of shares of Common Stock over the grant price.

“Stock Award” means an Award of shares of Common Stock granted under Section 10, the rights of
ownership of which are not subject to restrictions prescribed by the Committee.

“Stock Unit” means an Award denominated in units of Common Stock granted under Section 10.

“Substitute Awards” means Awards granted or shares of Common Stock issued by the Company in
substitution or exchange for awards previously granted by an Acquired Entity.

“Successor Company” means the surviving company, the successor company or Parent Company, as
applicable, in connection with a Company Transaction.

“Termination of Service” means a termination of employment or service relationship with the Company or
a Related Company for any reason, whether voluntary or involuntary, including by reason of death or Disability.
Any question as to whether and when there has been a Termination of Service for the purposes of an Award and
the cause of such Termination of Service shall be determined by the Company’s chief human resources officer or
other person performing that function or, with respect to directors and executive officers, by the Compensation
C'ommittee, whose determination shall be conclusive and binding. Transfer of a Participant’s employment or
service relationship between the Company and any Related Company shall not be considered a Termination of
Service for purposes of an Award. Unless the Compensation Committee determines otherwise, a Termination of
Service shall be deemed to occur if the Participant’s employment or service relationship is with an entity that has
czased to be a Related Company,

“Vesting Commencement Date’” means the Grant Date or such other date selected by the Committee as the
date from which an Award begins to vest.
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APPENDIX B

THE GYMBOREE CORPORATION
1993 AMENDED AND RESTATED EMPLOYEE STOCK PURCHASE PLAN

The following constitute the provisions of the 1993 Amended and Restated Employee Stock Purchase Plan
of the Gymboree Corporation.

1.  Purpose

The purpose of the Plan is to provide eligible employees of the Company and its Designated Subsidiaries
with an opportunity to purchase Common Stock of the Company through accumulated payroll deductions, It is
the intention of the Company to have the Plan qualify as an “Employee Stock Purchase Plan” under Section 423
of the Internal Revenue Code, as amended. The provisions of the Plan, accordingly, shall be construed so as to
extend and limit participation in a manner consistent with the requirements of that Section of the Code.

2. Definitions
(a) “Board” shall mean the Board of Directors of the Company.

{b) “Code” shall mean the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.
(c) “Common Stock” shall mean the Common Stock of the Company.
(d) “Company’ shall mean The Gymboree Corporation, a Delaware corporation.

(e)y “Designated Subsidiary” shall mean the Subsidiaries which have been designated by the Board (or any
committee acting as Plan Administrator) from time to time in its sole discretion as eligible to participate in the
Plan.

(f) “Eligible Compensation™ shall mean all base straight time gross earnings plus payments of overtime,
shift premiums and commissions, but excluding incentive compensation, incentive payments, bonuses, awards,
severance pay, living and relocation bonuses, pay in lieu of vacations, gain from stock option exercises, and other
special compensation.

(g) “Eligible Employee” shall mean any individual who is a regular employee of the Company or a
Designated Subsidiary for purposes of tax withholding under the Code and, for purposes of the Plan, works at
least twenty (20) hours a week. Further, the employment relationship shall be treated as continuing intact while
the individual is on sick leave or other leave of absence approved by the Company. Where the period of leave
exceeds 90 days and the individual's right to reemployment is not guaranteed either by statute or by contract, the
employment relationship will be deemed to have terminated on the 91st day of such leave, If the Company
permits any employee of a Designated Subsidiary to participate in the Plan, then all employees of that Designated
Subsidiary who meet the requirements of this paragraph shall also be considered Eligible Employees.

(h) “Enrollment Date™ shall mean the first day of each Offering Period.
(i) “ESPP Broker” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 13(c).
(j) “Exercise Date” shall mean the last day of each Purchase Period.

(k) “Fair Market Value” shall mean the per share value of Common Stock determined in good faith by the
Plan Administrator or, if the Common Stock is (a) listed on the Nasdaq National Market, the closing sales price
for the Common Stock as reported by that market for regular session trading for a single trading day, (b) listed on
the New York Stock Exchange or the American Stock Exchange, the closing sales price for the Common Stock
as such price is officially quoted in the composite tape of transactions on such exchange for regular session
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trading for a single trading day, (c) quoted on the Nasdaq SmallCap Market, the last sales price as reported by
that market for a single trading day, or (d) quoted on the OTC Bulletin Board Service or by the National
Quotation Bureau, Inc., the average of the high bid and low asked prices reported by such service for a single
'rading day. If there is no such reported price for the Common Stock for the date in question, then such price on
-he last preceding date for which such price exists shall be determinative of Fair Market Value.

(1) “Offering Period” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 4.

(m) “Participant” shall mean any Eligible Employee who has elected to participate in an Offering Period in
accordance with the procedures in Section 6 and who has not withdrawn from the Plan or whose participation in
the Plan is not otherwise terminated.

(n) “Plan” shall mean this Employee Stock Purchase Plan.
{0} “Plan Administrator” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 14.

(p) “Purchase Price” shall mean an amount equal to 85% of the Fair Market Value of a share of Common
Stock on the Enrollment Date or the Exercise Date, whichever is lower.

(q) “Purchase Period” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 5.

(r) “Subsidiary” shall mean a corporation, domestic or foreign, of which not less than 50% of the voting
shares are held by the Company or a Subsidiary, whether or not such corporation now exists or is hereafter
crganized or acquired by the Company or a Subsidiary.

(s) “Trading Day” shall mean a day on which national stock exchanges and the National Association of
Securities Dealers Automated Quotation (Nasdaq) System are open for trading.

3. Eligibility
(a) Any Eligible Employee who shall be employed by the Company on a given Enrollment Date shall be
¢ligible to participate in the Plan.

(b) Any provisions of the Plan to the contrary notwithstanding, no Eligible Employee shall be granted an
option under the Plan (i) if, immediately after the grant, such Eligible Employee (or any other person whose
stock would be attributable to such Eligible Employee pursuant to Section 424(d) of the Code) would own stock
aad/or hold outstanding options to purchase stock possessing five percent (5%) or more of the Company or of
any Subsidiary of the Company, or (i1} which permits his or her rights to purchase stock under all employee stock
parchase plans of the Company and its Subsidiaries to accrue at a rate which exceeds Twenty-Five Thousand
Collars ($25,000) worth of stock (determined at the Fair Market Value of the shares at the time such option is
g-anted) for each calendar year in which such option is outstanding at any time.

{c) Notwithstanding paragraph {b) above, the maximum number of shares a Participant may purchase during
each Purchase Period of any Offering Period shall be 2,000 Shares (subject to adjustment pursuant to Section 18),
and provided further that such purchase shall be subject to the limitations set forth in Section 13.

4.  Offering Periods

The Plan shall be implemented by a series of consecutive, offering periods that each last six (6) months
(each, an “Offering Period™) with a new Offering Period commencing on the first Trading Day on or after
January 1 and July | each year, or on such other date as the Plan Administrator shall determine, and continuing
thereafter until terminated in accordance with Section 19 hereof. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Plan '
A-ministrator shall have the power to change the duration of an Offering Period (including the commencing and
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ending dates thereof) with respect to future offerings; provided, however, that no Offering Period may exceed
five (5) vears and, further, if the Purchase Price may be less than 85% of the Fair Market Value of the Common
Stock on the Exercise Date, the Offering Period may not exceed 27 months. If the last day of an Offering Period
is not a regular business day, the last day of the Offering Period shall be deemed to be the last preceding Trading
Day.

5. Purchase Periods

Each Offering Period shall consist of one purchase period (each, a “Purchase Period”). The last day of each
Purchase Period shall be the Exercise Date for options issued at the commencement of such Purchase Period. A
Purchase Period shall commence on each January 1 and July | and shall end on the next June 30 and
December 31, respectively. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Plan Administrator shall have the power to
change the duration of Purchase Periods {including the commencing and ending dates thereof) with respect to
future Purchase Periods. If the last day of a Purchase Period is not a regular business day, the last day of the
Purchase Period shall be deemed to be the last preceding Trading Day.

6.  Participation

(a) An Eligible Employee may become a Participant in the Plan by completing a subscription agreement in
the form provided by the Company and filing it with the Company’s Human Resources Department (as set forth
in Section 20 below) at least fifteen (15) business days before the applicable Enrollment Date, unless a different
time for filing the subscription agreement is set by the Plan Administrator for all eligible Employees with respect
to a given Offering Period. Such subscription agreement shall (a) indicate the Eligible Employee’s election to
participate in the Plan, (b) authorize payroll deductions and state the amount to be deducted regularly from the
Participant’s Eligible Compensation and {c) authorize the purchase of Common Stock for the Eligible Employee
in each Purchase Period.

(b) Payroll deductions for a Participant shall commence on the first payroll period following the Enrollment
Date and shall end on the last payroll period in the Offering Period, unless sooner terminated by the Participant
as provided in Section 11 hereof,

{c) An Eligible Employee who does not deliver a subscription agreement pursuant to Section 6(a) hereof
shall not participate in the Plan for that Offering Period or for any subsequent Offering Peried unless such
Eligible Employee subsequently enrolls in the Plan by filing a subscription agreement pursuant to Section 6(a)
for such subsequent Offering Period. The Company may, from time to time, change the deadline for filing of
subscription agreements for future Offering Periods as deemed advisable by the Plan Administrator, in its sole
discretion, for the proper administration of the Plan.

(d) An employee who becomes eligible to participate in the Plan after an Offering Period has commenced
shall not be eligible to participate in such Offering Period but may participate in any subsequent Offering Period,
provided that such employee is still an Eligible Employee as of the commencement of such subsequent Offering
Period.

(e) Eligible Employees may not participate in more than one Offering Period at a time.

{f) A Participant who has elected to participate in an Offering Period shall automatically participate in the
next Offering Period until such time as the Participant withdraws from the Plan or terminates employment as
provided in Section 11.

7.  Payroll Deductions

(a) At the time a Participant files his or her subscription agreement, he or she shall elect to have payroll
deductions made on each pay day during the Offering Period in an amount not exceeding ten percent (10%) of
the Eligible Compensation which he or she receives on each pay day during the Offering Period, and the
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aggregate of such payroll deductions during the Offering Period shall not exceed ten percent (109) of the
Participant’s Eligible Compensation during said Offering Period. Amounts shall be withheld in whole
percentages only.

{b) Individual accounts shall be maintained for each Participant for memorandum purposes. All payroll
deductions made for a Participant shall be credited to his or her account under the Plan but shall be deposited
with the general funds of the Company. Subject to Section 7(¢), Common Stock acquired pursuant to the exercise
of all or any portion of an option granted under the Plan may be paid for only by means of payroll deductions
from the Participant’s Eligible Compensation and a Participant may not make any additional payments into such
account. All payroll deductions received or held by the Company may be used by the Company for any corporate
purpose.

(¢) Unless the Plan Administrator establishes otherwise for a future Offering Period, a Participant may
discontinue his or her participation in the Plan as provided in Section 11 hereof, or may increase or decrease the
rate of his or her payroll deductions, including to 0%, for a future Offering Period by filing with the Company’s
Human Resources Department (as set forth in Section 20 below) a new subscription agreement authorizing a
increase or decrease in payroll deduction rate at least fifteen (15) business days before the commencement of the
upcoming Offering Period, uniess a different time for filing a new subscription agreement is set by the Plan
Administrator for all eligible Employees with respect to a given Offering Period. A Participant’s amended
subscription agreement shail remain in effect for successive Purchase Periods and Offering Periods unless the
Participant again changes such subscription agreement in accordance with the terms of the Plan or the
subscription agreement is terminated as provided in Section 11. The Board shali be authorized to limit the
namber of participation rate changes during any Offering Period.

(d) Notwithstanding the foregoing, to the extent necessary to comply with Section 423(b)(8) of the Code and
Section 3(b) hereof, a Participant’s payroll deductions may be decreased to 0% at such time during any Purchase
Period that is scheduled to end during the current calendar year (the “Current Purchase Period™) as the
aggregate of all payroll deductions that were previously used to purchase stock under the Plan in a prior Purchase
Period that ended during the current calendar year plus all payroll deductions accumulated with respect to the
Current Purchase Period equal $21,250. Payroll deductions shall recommence at the rate provided in such
Participant’s subscription agreement at the beginning of the first Purchase Period scheduled to end in the
following calendar year, unless terminated by the Participant as provided in Section 11.

{e) During unpaid leaves of absence approved by the Company and meeting the requirements of the
applicable treasury regulations promulgated under the Code, a Participant may elect to continue participation in
thz Plan by continuing to accrue payroll deductions equal to such amount as if the Participant had not taken a
leave of absence. Currently the treasury regulations provide that a Participant may continue participation in the
Plan only during the first 90 days of a leave of absence unless the Participant’s reemployment rights are
guaranteed by contract or statute.

(f) At the time the option is exercised, in whole or in part, or at the time some or all of the Company’s
Common Stock issued under the Plan is disposed of, the Participant must make adequate provision for the
Company’s federal, state or other tax withholding obligations, if any, that arise upon the exercise of the option or
the: disposition of the Common Stock. At any time, the Company may, but will not be obligated to, withhold from
the Participant’s compensation the amount necessary for the Company to meet applicable withholding
obligations, including any withholding required to make avaitable to the Company any tax deductions or benefit
attributable to sale or early disposition of Common Stock by the employee.

8.  Grant of Option

On the Enrollment Date of each Offering Period, each Eligible Employee participating in such Offering
Pe-iod shall be granted an option to purchase on each Exercise Date during such Offering Period (at the
applicable Purchase Price) up to a number of shares of the Company’s Common Stock determined by dividing
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such Eligible Employee’s payroll deductions accumulated prior to such Exercise Date and credited to the
Participant’s memorandum account as of the Exercise Date by the applicable Purchase Price; provided that such
purchase shall be subject to the limitations set forth in Sections 3(b}, 3{c) and 13 hereof. Exercise of the option
shall occur as provided in Section 9, unless the Participant has withdrawn pursuant to Section 11, and the option
shall expire on the last day of the Offering Period.

9.  Exercise of Option

Unless a Participant withdraws from the Plan as provided in Section 11 below, his or her option for the
purchase of shares will be exercised antomatically on each Exercise Date, and the maximum number of full
shares subject to the option shall be purchased for such Participant at the applicable Purchase Price with the
accumulated payroll deductions in his or her account. No fractional shares will be purchased {unless the Plan
Administrator has determined for a future Offering Period that fractional shares may be issued under the Plan);
any payroll deductions accumulated in a Participant’s account which are not sufficient to purchase a full share
shall remain credited to the Participant’s account for the subsequent Purchase Period, subject to earlier
withdrawal by the Participant as provided in Section t[. Any other money left over in a Participant’s account
after the Exercise Date shall be returned to the Participant without payment of interest. In the event that the
Participant does not participate in the next Purchase Period, the entire remaining cash balance shall be refunded
to the Participant as soon as practicable after the Exercise Date without payment of interest. During a
Participant’s lifetime, a Participant’s option to purchase shares hereunder is exercisable only by him or her.

10. Delivery

Unless the Plan Administrator has designated or approved an ESPP Broker pursuant to Section 13(c), as
promptly as practicable after each Exercise Date on which a purchase of shares occurs, the Company shall
arrange the delivery 10 each Participant, as appropnate, of a certificate representing the shares purchased upon
exercise of his or her option.

11. Withdrawal; Termination of Employment

(a) A Participant may withdraw all but not less than all the payroll deductions credited to his or her account
and not used to exercise his or her option under the Plan at any time by giving writlen notice to the Company’s
Human Resources Department (as set forth in Section 20 below) in a form provided by the Company for such
purpose. All of the Participant’s payroll deductions credited to his or her account will be paid to such Participant
promptly after receipt of notice of withdrawal and such Participant’s option for the Offering Period will be
automatically terminated, and no further payroll deductions for the purchase of shares will be made during the
Offering Period. If a Participant withdraws from an Offering Period, payroll deductions will not resume at the
beginning of the succeeding Offering Period unless the Participant delivers to the Company a new subscription
agreement.

(b) Upon a Participant’s ceasing to be an Eligible Employee for any reason or upon termination of a
Participant’s employment relationship (as described in Section 2(g)), the payroil deductions credited to such
Participant’s account but not yet used to exercise the option will be returned to such Participant or, in the case of
his or her death, to the person or persons entitled thereto under Section 15, and such Participant’s option will be
automatically terminated.

{c) No Common Stock shall be purchased on behalf of a Participant on an Exercise Date if his or her
participation in the current Offering Period or the Plan has terminated on or before such Exercise Date or if the
Participant has otherwise terminated employment prior to such Exercise Date.

12. Interest

No interest shall accrue on payroll deductions of a Participant in the Plan.
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13.  Stock

(a) The maximum number of shares of the Company’s Common Stock which shall be made available for
sale under the Plan shall be 1,175,278 shares, subject to adjustment upon changes in capitalization of the
(Zompany as provided in Section 18. During any Purchase Period under the Plan, the maximum number of shares
of the Company's Common Stock that shall be made available for sale under the Plan during such Purchase
Period shatl be 200,000 shares, which number of shares shal! apply as a cumulative limit to the number of shares
which shall be made available for sale under all Purchase Periods occurring simultaneously under separate
Offering Periods under the Plan, subject to adjustment upon changes in capitalization as provided in Section 18.
If on a given Exercise Date the number of shares with respect to which options are to be exercised exceeds the
number of shares then available under the Plan, the Company shall make a pro rata allocation of the shares
remaining available for purchase in as uniform a manner as shall be practicable and as it shall determine to be
equitable. Shares issued under the Plan shall be drawn from authorized and unissued shares or from shares
subsequently acquired by the Company as treasury shares.

(b} The Participant shall not be deemed to be a stockholder of the Company and will have no interest in or
voting right with respect to shares covered by his or her option until such option has been exercised and a
certificate or its equivalent has been issued to the Participant for the shares following exercise.

(c) If the Plan Administrator designates or approves a stockbroker or other financial services firm (the
“ESPP Broker”) to hold shares purchased under the Plan for the accounts of Participants, the following
procedures shali apply. Promptly following each Exercise Date, the number of shares of Common Stock
purchased by each Participant shali be deposited into an account established in the name of the Participant with
the ESPP Broker. Each Participant shall be the beneficial owner of the Common Stock purchased under the Plan
and shall have all rights of beneficial ownership in such Common Stock. A Participant shall be free to undertake
a disposition of the shares of Common Stock in his or her account at any time, but, in the absence of such a
disposition, the shares of Common Stock must remain in the Participant’s account at the ESPP Broker until the
holding period set forth in Code Section 423 has been satisfied. With respect to shares of Common Stock for
which the holding period set forth above has been satisfied, the Participant may move those shares of Common
Stock to another brokerage account of the Participant’s choosing or request that a stock certificate be issued and
dalivered to him or her. Dividends paid in the form of shares of Common Stock with respect to Common Stock in
a Participant’s account shall be credited to such account. A Participant who is not subject to payment of
U.S. income taxes may move his or her shares of Common Stock to another brokerage account of his or her
choosing or request that a stock certificate be delivered to him or her at any time, without regard to the Code
Saction 423 holding period.

(d) In the event that no ESPP Broker is designated or approved by the Plan Administrator, the shares to be
delivered to a Participant under the Plan will be registered in the name of the Participant or in the name of the
Participant and his or her spouse,

(e) By enrolling in the Plan, each Participant agrees to promptly give the Company notice of any Common
Stock disposed of within the later of one year from the Exercise Date and two years from the Offering Date for
stch Common Stock, showing the number of such shares disposed of and the Exercise Date for such Common
Stock. This notice shall not be required if and so long as the Company has a designated ESPP Broker.

14.  Administration

The Plan shall be administered by the Board or a committee of members of the Board appointed by the
Board or, if and to the extent the Board or the committee appointed to administer the Plan designates one or more
executive officers to administer the Plan, by such executive officer(s) (each, the “Plan Administrator”). The
Plan Administrator shall have full and exclusive discretionary authority to construe, interpret and apply the terms
of the Plan, to determine eligibility and to adjudicate all disputed claims filed under the Plan. Every finding,
decision and determination made by the Plan Administrator shall, to the full extent permitted by law, be final and
biding upon all parties.
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15. Designation of a Beneficiary

(a) A Participant may file a written designation of a beneficiary who is 1o receive any shares and cash, if
any, from the Participant’s account under the Plan in the event of such Participant’s death subsequent to the
Exercise Date on which the option is exercised but prior to delivery to such Participant of such shares and cash.
In addition, a Participant may file a written designation of a beneficiary who is to receive any cash from the
Participant’s account under the Plan in the event of such Participant’s death prior to exercise of the option. If a
Participant is married and the designated beneficiary is not the spouse, spousal consent shall be required for such
designation to be effective.

(b} Such designation of beneficiary may be changed by the Participant (and his or her spouse, if any) at any
time by written notice as provided in Section 20 below. In the event of the death of a Participant and in the
absence of a beneficiary validly designated under the Plan who is living at the time of such Participant’s death,
the Company shall deliver such shares and/or cash to the executor or administrator of the estate of the
Participant, or if no such executor or administrator has been appointed (to the knowledge of the Company), the
Company, in its discretion, may deliver such shares and/or cash to the spouse or to any one or more dependents
or relatives of the Participant, or if no spouse, dependent or relative is known to the Company, then to such other
person as the Company may designate.

16. Transferability

Neither payroll deductions credited to a Participant’s account nor any rights with regard to the exercise of an
option or to receive shares under the Plan may be assigned, transferred, pledged or otherwise disposed of in any
way {other than by will, the laws of descent and distribution or as provided in Section 15 hereof) by the
Participant. Any such attempt at assignment, transfer, pledge or other disposition shall be without effect, except
that the Company may treat such act as an election to withdraw funds from an Offering Period in accordance
with Section 11.

17. Reports

Individual memorandum accounts will be maintained for each Participant in the Plan. Statements of account
will be given to participating Employees at least annually, which statements will set forth the amounts of payroll
deductions, the Purchase Price, the number of shares purchased and the remaining cash balance, if any.

18. Adjustments Upon Changes in Capitalization, Dissolution, Merger or Asset Sale

(a) Changes in Capitalization. Subject to any required action by the stockholders of the Company, the (i) the
maximum number and kind of shares of Commeon Stock subject to the Plan, (ii) the number and kind of securities
that are subject to any outstanding options and the per share price of such securities and (iii) the maximum
number of shares of Common Stock that may be purchased by a Participant in a Purchase Period shall be
proportionately adjusted for any increase or decrease in the number of issued shares of Common Stock resulting
from a stock split, reverse stock split, stock dividend, combination or reclassification of the Commen Stock, or
any other increase or decrease in the number of shares of Common Stock effected without receipt of
consideration by the Company; provided, however, that conversion of any convertible securities of the Company
shall not be deemed to have been “effected without receipt of consideration.” Such adjustment shall be made by
the Board, whose determination in that respect shall be final, binding and conclusive. Except as expressly
provided herein, no issue by the Company of shares of stock of any class, or securities convertible into sales of
stock of any class, shall affect, and no adjustment by reason thereof shall be made with respect to, the number or
price of shares of Common Stock subject to an option. The Board may, if it so determines in the exercise of its
sole discretion, make provision for adjusting the Reserves, as well as the price per share of Common Stock
covered by each outstanding option, in the event the Company effects one or more reorganizations,
recapitalizations, rights offerings or other increases or reductions of shares of its cuistanding Common Stock,
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(b) Dissolution or Liquidation. In the event of the proposed dissolution or liquidation of the Company, the
Offering Periods will terminate immediately prior to the consummation of such proposed action, unless
otherwise terminated by the Board. '

(c) Merger or Asset Sale. In the event of a proposed sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the
(Company, or the merger of the Company with or into another corporation, each option under the Plan shall be
assumed or an equivalent option shall be substituted by such successor corporation or a parent or subsidiary of
such successor corporation, unless the Board determines, in the exercise of its sole discretion and in lieu of such
assumption or substitution, to shorten the Offering Periods then in progress by setting a new Exercise Date (the
“New Exercise Date”). If the Board shortens the Offering Periods then in progress in licu of assumption or
cubstitution in the event of a merger or sale of assets, the Board shall notify each Participant in writing, at least
ten (10) days prior to the New Exercise Date, that the Exercise Date for his or her option has been changed to the
WNew Exercise Date and that his or her option will be exercised automatically on the New Exercise Date, unless
prior to such date he or she has withdrawn from the Offering Period as provided in Section 11. For purposes of
this Section 18, an option granted under the Plan shall be deemed to be assumed if, following the sale of assets or
merger, the option confers the right to purchase, for each share of option stock subject to the option immediately
prior to the sale of assets or merger, the consideration (whether stock, cash or other securities or property)
received in the sale of assets or merger by holders of Common Stock for each share of Common Stock held on
the effective date of the transaction (and if such holders were offered a choice of consideration, the type of
consideration chosen by the holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of Common Stock); provided,
however, that if such consideration received in the sale of assets or merger was not solely common stock of the
successor corporation or its parent (as defined in Section 424(e) of the Code), the Board may, with the consent of
the successor corporation and the Participant, provide for the consideration to be received upon exercise of the
option to be solely common stock of the successor corporation or its parent equal in fair market value to the per
share consideration received by holders of Common Stock in the sale of assets or merger.

(d) The grant of options under the Plan shall in no way aftect the Company’s right to adjust, reclassify,
reorganize or otherwise change its capital or business structure or to merge, consolidate, dissolve, liquidate or
sell or transfer all or any part of its business or assets.

19. Amendment, Suspension or Termination

(a) The Board may at any time and for any reason terminate, suspend or amend the Plan. Except as provided
in Section 18, no such termination can affect options previously granted, provided that an Offering Period may be
tzrminated by the Board on any Exercise Date if the Board determines that the termination of the Plan is in the
best interests of the Company and its stockholders. During any period of suspension or upon termination of the
Plan, no options shall be granted under the Plan. Except as provided in Section 18, no amendment may make any
change in any option theretofore granted which adversely affects the rights of any Participant. To the extent
recessary to comply with Section 423 of the Code (or any successor rule or provision or any other applicable law
cr regulation). the Company shall obtain stockholder approval for any amendment that will (i) increase the total
rumber of shares that may be issued under the Plan (i) medify the class of employees eligible to participate in
t1e Plan, or (iii) otherwise require stockholder approval under any applicable law or regulation in such a manner
and to such a degree as required.

(b) Without stockholder consent and without regard to whether any Participant rights may be considered to
have been “adversely affected,” the Plan Administrator shall be entitled to change the Purchase Periods and/or
Offering Periods, limit the frequency and/or number of changes in the amount withheld during Purchase Periods
and/or Offering Periods, establish the exchange ratio applicable to amounts withheld in a currency other than
U.S. dollars, permit payroll withholding in excess of the amount designated by a Participant in order to adjust for
delays or mistakes in the Company’s processing of properly completed withholding elections, establish
r2asonable waiting and adjustment periods and/or accounting and crediting procedures to ensure that amounts
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applied toward the purchase of Common Stock for each Participant properly correspend with amounts withheld
from the Participant’s Eligible Compensation, and establish such other dimitations or procedures as the Plan
Administrator determines in its sole discretion advisable which are consistent with the Plan.

20. Notices

All notices or other communications by a Participant to the Company under or in connection with the Plan
shall be given via overnight courier, certified mail (return receipt requested), facsimile or such other form as
approved by the Plan Administrator, and shall be deemed to have been duly given when received in the form
specified by the Plan Administrator by the Company's Human Resources Department at the Company’s
corporate headquarters.

21. Conditions Upon Issuance of Shares

Shares shall not be issued with respect to an option unless the exercise of such option and the issuance and
delivery of such shares pursuant thereto shall comply with all applicable provisions of law, domestic or foreign,
including, without limitation, the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended, the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder, and the requirements of any stock exchange upon
which the shares may then be listed, and shall be further subject to the approval of counsel for the Company with
respect to such compliance.

As a condition to the exercise of an option, the Company may require the person exercising such option to
represent and warrant at the time of any such exercise that the shares are being purchased only for investment
and without any present intention to sell or distribute such shares if, in the opinion of counsel for the Company,
such a representation is required by any of the aforementioned applicable provisions of law.

22.  Term of Plan

The Plan shall become effective upon the earlier to occur of its adoption by the Board of Directors or its
approval by the stockholders of the Company. It shall continue in effect until February 11, 2013, unless sooner
terminated pursuant to Section 19.

23. Automatic Transfer to Low Price Offering Period

If the Fair Market Value of the Common Stock on any Exercise Date in an Offering Period is lower than the
Fair Market Value of the Common Stock on the Enrollment Date of such Offering Period, then all Participants in
such Offering Period shall be automatically withdrawn from such Offering Period immediately after the exercise
of their options on such Exercise Date and automatically re-enrolled in the immediately following Offering
Period as of the first day thereof.

24. No Rights as an Employee

Nothing in the Plan shall be construed to give any person (including any Eligible Employee or Participant)
the right to remain in the employ of the Company or any Subsidiary or to affect the right of the Company or any
Subsidiary to terminate the employment of any person (including any Eligible Employee or Participant) at any
time with or without cause.

25. Effect Upon Other Plans

Nothing in the Plan shall be construed to limit the right of the Company or any Subsidiary to (a) establish
other forms of incentives or compensation for employees of the Company or any Subsidiary or (b) grant or
assume options otherwise than under the Plan in connection with any proper corporate purpose, including, but
not by way of limitation, the grant or assumption of options in connection with the acquisition, by purchase,
lease, merger, consolidation or otherwise, of the business, stock or assets of any corporation, firm or association.
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Corporate Profile

The Gymboree Corporation's specialty retail brands offer unigue, high-quality products detivered with personalized
customer service. As of February 2, 2008, the Company operated a total of 786 retail stores: 597 Gymboree® stores
{565 in the United States, 30 in Canada and 2 in Puerto Rico), 82 Gymboree Outlet stores, 93 Janie and Jack® shops
and 14 Crazy 8" stores in the United States. The Company also operates online stores at gymboree.com, janieandjack.com
and crazy8.com, and offers directed parent-child developmental play programs at 559 franchised and Company-operated
centers in the United States and 32 other countries.

Board of Directors Executive Officers Shareholder Information Corporate Information
Matthew K. McCauley Matthew K. McCauley Annual Meeting The Gymboree Corporation
Chairman of the Board and Chairman of the Board and Shareholders are invited to 500 Howard Street
Chief Executive Officer, Chief Executive Officer attend our annual meeting San Francisco, CA 94105
The Gymboree Corporation . _ at 9 a.m. on Tuesday, June tel 415 278 7000
_ Kip M. Garcia 10, 2008, at our corporate fax 415 278 7100
gag M. :s'l_ President headquarters at 500 Howard investor Relations
USIness visor; .

Founder C.F.1.L. Blair W. Lambert (S::e:;.lzasn Francisco, investor information is

. Chief Operating Officer and ’ available at gymboree.com
g::’,’; ‘g..Latr.nb%r:f g Chief Financial Officer Common Stock Trading or by written request to:

1a eratin, 1Cer an
it Financinl Officer Marina Armstrong common siock of e The Gymboree Corporation
' N . Gymboree Corporation is .
The Gymboree Corporation Senior Vice President, traded on the Nasdag Investor Relations
Stores, Human Resources, ) 500 Howard Street

Daniel R. Lyle and Play & Music, National Market System San Francisco, CA 94105
Retired Fartner, and Secretary under the symbol GYMB.

. Independent Auditors
Registrar and Transfer Agent Deloitte & Touche LLP

Shareholders should

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Lynda G. Gustafson

John C. Pound Vice President, Lo . 50 Fremont Street

President, Integrity Brands, inc, Corporate Controifer direct inquiries regarding San Francisco, CA 94105
address changes and lost

William U. Westerfield Jeffrey P. Harris certificates to: Corporate Counsel

Retired Partner, Vice President, Finance Computershare Perkins Coie LLP -

Price Waterhouse LLP P.O. Box 43078 1620 26th Street, Sixth Floor

Santa Monica, CA 90404

Pravidence, Rl 02940
tel 310 788 9900

tel 877 282 1169
computershare.com
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